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SECTION I- DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Draft Prospectus uses certain definitions and abbreviations which, unless the context otherwise indicates or
implies or unless otherwise specified, shall have the meaning as provided below. References to any legislation, act,
regulations, rules, guidelines or policies shall be to such legislation, act, regulations, rules, guidelines or policies as
amended, supplemented, or re-enacted from time to time and any reference to a statutory provision shall include any
subordinate legislation made from time to time under that provision.

The words and expressions used in this Draft Prospectus, but not defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to
such terms under SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Companies Act, the SCRA, the Depositories Act, and the rules and
regulations made thereunder.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the terms not defined but used in the chapters titled “Statement of Tax Benefits”,
“Restated Financial Statements”, “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” and section titled “Main
Provisions of Articles of Association” beginning on pagenos. 77,176, 211 and 277 respectively, shall have the
meanings ascribed to such terms in the respective sections.

COMPANY RELATED TERMS

Nidan Laboratories and
Healthcare Limited/ NIDAN
LABORATORIES / NLAHL /
NIDAN/ The Company/
Company/ We/ Us/ Our/ our
Company/ the Issuer

Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies refers to Nidan
Laboratories and Healthcare Limited, a public limited company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with its
registered office at Swapnshilpa, Behind Aarti Apartment, Vartak Road,
Virar (West) — 401303, Palagar, Maharashtra, India

TERM DESCRIPTION

AGM Annual General Meeting

AS

Accounting Standards as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India

Articles / Articles of Association
/A0A

Unless the context otherwise requires, refers to the Articles of Association of
Nidan Laboratories and Healthcare Limited, as amended from time to time.

Audit Committee

The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as the Company‘s Audit
Committee in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015

Auditors/ Statutory  Auditors/
Statutory  Auditors of the
Company

The Statutory & Tax Auditors of our Company, being M/s R. K. Chapawat &
Co, Chartered Accountants.

Board of Directors / Board /
Director(s) / Our Board

The Board of Directors of our Company, including all duly constituted
Committee(s) thereof.

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Financial Officer of our Company in this case being, Ms. Tejal Anil
Jayakar

Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of our Company is Mr. Akshay
Joshi

Director(s)

Director(s) of our Company unless otherwise specified

Equity Shares/ Shares

Equity Shares of our Company having a face value of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid-
up, unless otherwise specified in the context thereof.

Equity Shareholders

Persons holding Equity shares of our Company unless otherwise specified in
the context otherwise.

ESOP

Employee Stock Option

FV

Value of paid-up Equity Capital per Equity Share, in this case Rs. 10/- each.

Group Companies

Such entities as are included in the Chapter in ‘Our Promoter Group And
Group Companies / Entities’ beginning on page 146 of this Draft Prospectus.

Independent Director

A non-executive and independent director of our Company appointed as per
Section 149(6) the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations. For details, please refer to the chapter titled “Our
Management” beginning on page no. 132 of this Draft Prospectus.

Key Managerial Personnel /

The personnel are listed as Key Managerial Personnel our Company as per

4




KMP Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(bb) of the SEBI
(ICDR), Regulation, 2018 and as identified in the chapter titled ‘Our
Management’ beginning on page 132 of this Draft Prospectus.

MOA / Memorandum /| Memorandum of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time.

Memorandum of Association

Non- Resident

A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA Regulations.

NRIs/Non-Resident Indians

A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and who is a citizen
of India or a Person of Indian Origin under Foreign Exchange Management
(Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident Outside India) Regulations,
2000.

Peer Review Auditor

The Peer Review Auditors of our Company, being M/s R. K. Chapawat & Co,
Chartered Accountants.

Promoter/ Promoters of our

Company

Promoter of our Company is Dr. Nithin Vitthalrao Thorave

Promoter Companies/ Promoter
Group

Unless the context otherwise requires, refers to such persons and entities
constituting the Promoter Companies/ Promoter Group of our Company in
terms of Regulation 2(1)(pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and as
disclosed in ‘Our Promoter Group And Group Companies / Entities’
beginning on page 146 of this Draft Prospectus.

Registered Office

The Registered Office of our Company which is located at Swapnshilpa,
Behind Aarti Apartment, Vartak Road, Virar (West) — 401303, Palagar,
Maharashtra, India

SME Exchange

Unless the context otherwise requires, refer to the NSE EMERGE, SME
Platform of NSE.

Stock Exchange

Unless the context otherwise requires, refers to the NSE EMERGE, SME
Platform of NSE.

Stakeholders’
Committee

Relationship

The stakeholders’ relationship committee of our Board as described in “Our
Management” beginning on page no. 132 of this Draft Prospectus.

ISSUE RELATED TERMS

TERM

DESCRIPTION

Acknowledgement Slip

The slip or document issued by the Designated Intermediary to an Applicant as
proof of registration of the Application

Allot / Allotment / Allotment of
Equity Shares

Unless the context otherwise requires, the allotment of the Equity Shares
pursuant to the Fresh Issue and transfer of the Equity Shares pursuant to the
issue to the successful Applicants.

Allocation / Allocation of Equity
Shares

Unless the Context otherwise requires, the allocation of Equity Shares pursuant
to this Issue to successful Applicants.

Allotment Advice

Note, advice or intimation of Allotment sent to the Applicants who have been
or are to be Allotted the Equity Shares after the Basis of Allotment has been
approved by the Designated Stock Exchange

Allottee’s

The successful applicant to whom the Equity Shares are/ have been allotted.

Applicant(s)

Any prospective investor who makes an application for Equity Shares in terms
of this Draft Prospectus.

Application Amount

The amount at which the Applicant makes an application for Equity Shares of
our Company in terms of this Draft Prospectus.

Application
Intermediary

Collecting

1) an SCSB, with whom the bank account to be blocked, is maintained.

2) a syndicate member (or sub-syndicate member),

3) astock broker registered with a recognized stock exchange(and whose name
is mentioned on the website of the stock exchange as eligible for this
activity)("broker"),

4) a depository participant ('DP) (and whose name is mentioned on the
website of the stock exchange as eligible for this activity),

5) a registrar to an issue and share transfer agent('RTA")(and whose name is
mentioned on the website of the stock exchange as eligible for this activity)

Application Form

The form in terms of which the prospective Applicants shall apply for the
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TERM

DESCRIPTION

Equity Shares of our Company.

Application Supported by
Blocked Amount/ASBA

An application, whether physical or electronic, used by all applicants to make a
Bid authorizing a SCSB to block the application amount in the ASBA Account
maintained with the SCSB and willinclude amounts blocked by Rlls using UPI
Mechanism.

ASBA Account

Account maintained by an ASBA Applicants with an SCSB which will be
blocked by such SCSB to the extent of the Application Amount.

ASBA Applicant(s)

Any prospective investor who makes an Application pursuant to the terms of
the Prospectus and the Application Form.

ASBA Application

An application form (with and without the use of UPI, as may be applicable),
whether physical or electronic, used by ASBA Bidders which will be
considered as the application for Allotment in terms of the Draft Prospectus.

Banker(s) to the Company

Such banks which are disclosed as bankers to our Company in the chapter
titled “General Information’’ beginning on page 48 of this Draft Prospectus..

Banker(s) to the Issue/ Escrow
Collection Bank(s)/Public Issue
Bank/ Refund Banker

The banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as Banker to
an Issue with whom Escrow Account will be opened and in this case being [e].

Basis of Allotment

The basis on which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful Applicants
under the Issue in consultation with the Stock Exchange which is described in
the Chapter titled ‘Issue Procedure’ beginning on page 250 of this Draft
Prospectus.

Broker Centres

Broker centres notified by the Stock Exchanges, where the Applicants can
submit the Application forms to a Registered Broker. the details of such broker
centres, along with the names and contact details ofthe Registered Brokers, are
available on the website of the NSE on the following link:

Business Day

Monday to Friday(except public holidays)

CAN [/ Confirmation of
Allocation Note

The note or advice or intimation sent to each successful Applicant indicating
the Equity Shares which will be Allotted, after approval of Basis of Allotment
by the Designated Stock Exchange.

Client ID Client identification number maintained with one of the Depositories in
relation to demat account
Collecting Depository | A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996,

Participant(s) or CDP(s)

registered with SEBI and who is eligible to procure Applications at the
Designated CDP Locations in terms of  circular No.
GR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 issued by SEBI

Collecting Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent

Registrar to an offer and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and
eligible to procure Bids at the Designated RTA Locations in terms of circular
no. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 issued by
SEBI

Controlling Branch

Such Branches of the SCSBs which co-ordinate Applications by the
Applicants with the Registrar to the Offer and the Stock Exchanges and a list
of which is available at http://www.sebi.gov.in or at such other website as may
be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Demaographic Details

The demographic details of the Applicants such as their Name, Address,
Pan, Occupation, Applicant Status and Bank Account details etc.

Depository/Depositories

A Depository registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Depositories and
Participants) Regulations, 1996, as amended from time to time.

Depository Participant/DP

A Depository Participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996, as
amended from time to time.

Designated Branches

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Forms from the
ASBA  Applicants and a list of which is available on
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes
&intmld=35, or at such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time
to time.

Designated Date

The date on which the funds blocked by the SCSBs are transferred from the
ASBA Accounts specified by the Applicants to the Public Offer Account.

Designated Stock Exchange/ SE

SME Platform of the NSE Limited (NSE)-NSE EMERGE
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TERM

DESCRIPTION

Draft Prospectus

The Draft Prospectus dated Ocober 08, 2021 issued in accordance with section
26 of the Companies Act, 2013 and filed with the NSE under SEBI (ICDR)
Regulation, 2018 as amended from time to time.

Escrow Agreement Agreement dated [e] entered in to amongst our Company, Lead Manager and
the Registrar, the Banker(s) to the Issue/ Escrow Collection Bank(s) for
collection of the Application Amounts from the ASBA Applicants through the
SCSBs Bank Account on the Designated Date in the Public Issue Account.

Eligible NRIs NRIs from such jurisdiction outside India where it is not unlawful for our

Company to make this Issue or an invitation under this Issue and in relation to
whom the Draft Prospectus constitutes an invitation to subscribe to the Equity
Shares offered herein.

Escrow Collection Bank(s)

The banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as Banker(s)
to the Issue/ Escrow Collection Bank(s) at which bank(s) the Escrow Account
of our Company will be opened, in this case being [e].

First/Sole Applicant

The Applicant whose name appears first in the Application Form or Revision
Form and in case of joint bids, whose name shall also appear as the first holder
of the beneficiary account held in joint names.

Issue / lIssue Size/ IPO/Initial
Public Offering/Public Issue

Public Issue of 40,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid of Nidan
Laboratories and Healthcare Limited (“NIDAN” or “the Company” or “the
Issuer”) for cash at a price of Rs. 125/- Per Equity Share aggregating to Rs.
5000.00 Lakhs. The Net Issue will constitute 27.34% of the post issue paid up
capital of the Company

Issue Period

The Issue period shall be [e], being the Issue Opening Date, to [e], being the
Issue Closing Date.

Issue Closing Date

[e], The Date on which Issue closes for subscription

Issue Opening Date

[e], The Date on which Issue opens for subscription

Issue Price

The price at which the Equity Shares are being issued by our Company under
this Draft Prospectus being Rs. 125/- per equity share.

Issue Proceeds

The proceeds to be raised by our Company through Fresh Issue is Rs. 5000.00
Lakhs.

LM / Lead Manager

Lead Manager to the Issue, in this case being First Overseas Capital Limited,
SEBI Registered Category | Merchant Bankers.

Listing Agreement with NSE-
SME PLATFORM of NSE

Unless the context specifies otherwise, this means the Equity Listing
Agreement to be signed between our Company and the SME Platform of NSE.

Market Making Agreement

Market Making Agreement dated NNM Securities Private Limited between
our Company, Lead Manager and Market Maker.

Market Maker/MM

October 01, 2021 will act as the Market Maker and has agreed to receive or
deliver the specified securities in the market making process for a period of
three years from the date of listing of our Equity Shares or for any other period
as may be notified by SEBI from time to time.

Market
Portion

Maker  Reservation

The Reserved portion of 2,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at Rs. 125/-
Per Equity Shares aggregating to Rs. 250.00 Lakhs for Market Maker in the
Initial Public Issue of Nidan Laboratories and Healthcare Limited.

Memorandum of Understanding

The agreement dated October 01, 2021 between our Company and the Lead
Manager, pursuant to which certain arrangements are agreed to in relation to
the Issue.

Mutual Fund(s)/ MF

A mutual fund registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Mutual Funds)
Regulations,1996, as amended from time to time.

Net Issue The Issue (excluding the Market Maker Reservation Portion) of 38,00,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each of Nidan Laboratories And Healthcare Limited
at Rs. 125/- Per Equity Share aggregating to Rs. 4750.00 Lakhs.

NIF National Investment Fund set up by resolution F. No. 2/3/2005-DD-II dated

November 23, 2005 of Government of India published in the Gazette of India

Non-Institutional Investors/

Applicants/NlIs

All Applicants(including Category Il FPIs which are foreign corporate or
foreign individuals but not including NRIs, other than eligible NRIs) that are
not Qualified Institutional Buyers(QIBs)(including Anchor Investors or Retail
Individual Applicants/Investors and who have applied for Equity Shares for an
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TERM

DESCRIPTION

amount more than Rs. 2,00,000.

Non-Indian Resident/ NRI

A person resident outside India, who is a citizen of India or a Person of Indian
Origin as defined under FEMA Regulation, as amended from time to time

NSE

National Stock Exchange of India Limited

OCB/Overseas Corporate Body

A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or
indirectly to the extent of at least 60% by NRIs, including overseas trust in
which not less than 60% of beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs
directly or indirectly as defined under Foreign Exchange Management
(Deposit) Regulations, 2000. OCBs are not allowed to invest in this Issue.

Payment through electronic Payment through UPI, NECS, Direct Credit, RTGS or NEFT, as applicable.

transfer of funds

Person/Persons Any individual, sole proprietorship, unincorporated  association,
unincorporated organization, body corporate, corporation, company,
partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, or trust or any other
entity or organization validly constituted and/or incorporated in the
jurisdiction in which it exists and operates, as the context requires.

Prospectus The Prospectus to be filed with the ROC in accordance with Section 26 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (ICDR), Regulations containing inter alia, the
Issue opening and Issue closing dates and other certain information

Public Issue Account

Account opened with Banker to the Issue, i.e. [®] under Section 40 of the
Companies Act, 2013 to receive monies from the SCSBs from the bank
accounts of the ASBA Applicants on the Designated Date.

Qualified
QIBs

InstitutionalBuyers /

A Qualified Institutional Buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of SEBI
(ICDR), Regulations, 2018

Registrar Agreement

The agreement dated October 04, 2021 between our Company and the
Registrar to the Issue in relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the
Registrar to the Issue pertaining to the Issue.

Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents or RTAs

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents registered with SEBI and eligible to
procure Applications at the Designated RTA Locations in terms of circular no.
CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 issue by SEBI

Registrar/ Registrar to the Issue

Registrar to this Issue being Bigshare Services Private Limited having an
registered office situated at Bharat Tin Works Building, 1% Floor, Opp. Vasant
Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400059,
Maharashtra, India.

Retail Individual Investors

Individual investors, or minors applying through their natural guardians
(including HUFs, in the name of Karta and Eligible NRIs) who apply for the
Equity Shares of a value of not more than or equal to Rs. 2,00,000/-.

Revision Form

The form used by the Applicants to modify the quantity of Equity Shares in
any of their Application Forms or any previous Revision Form(s).

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks/
SCSB

Banks registered with SEBI, offering services in relation to ASBA, a list of
which is available on the website of SEBI at www.sebi.gov.in and updated
from time to time and at such other websites as may be prescribed by SEBI
from time to time.

SCSB Agreement

The deemed agreement between the SCSBs, the Lead Manager, the Registrar
to the Issue and our Company, in relation to the collection of Applications
from the ASBA Applicants and payment of funds by the SCSBs to the Public
Issue Account

SME Platform of NSE

The SME Platform of NSE, i.e., NSE EMERGE for listing of equity shares
offered under Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended
from time to time

Specified Securities

Equity Shares are being offered through this Draft Prospectus

Sponsor Banker

The Banker(s) registered with SEBI which is appointed by our Company to act
as a conduit between the Stock Exchanges and the NPCI in order to push the
mandate collect requests and / or payment instructions of the Retail Applicants
into the UPI, in this case being [e].

TRS / Transaction Registration
Slip

The slip or document issued by a member of the Syndicate or an SCSB (only
on demand), as the case may be, to the Applicant, as proof of registration of the
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TERM

DESCRIPTION

Application.

Underwriters to the Issue

First Overseas Capital Limited

Underwriting Agreement

The Agreement dated October 01, 2021 entered into between the Underwriters
and our Company.

Unified Payments Interface/ UPI

UPI is an instant payment system developed by the NPCI. It enables merging
several banking features, seamless fund routing & merchant payments into one
hood. UPI allows instant transfer of money between any two persons’ bank
accounts using a payment address which uniquely identifies a person's bank
alc.

UPI'ID

ID created on Unified Payment Interface (UPI) for single-window mobile
payment system developed by the National Payments Corporation of India
(NPCI).

Request

UPI Mandate Request / Mandate

A request (intimating the RII by way of a notification on the UPI application
and by way of a SMS directing the RII to such UPI application) to the RII
initiated by the Sponsor Bank to authorize blocking of funds on the UPI
application equivalent to Application Amount and subsequent debit of funds in
case of Allotment.

UPI Mechanism

The bidding mechanism that may be used by an RIl to make an Application in
the Issue in accordance with SEBI circular
(SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138) dated November 01, 2018

UPI PIN

Password to authenticate UPI transaction.

Willful Defaulter

Willful Defaulter is defined under Regulation 2(1)(lll) of SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018, means a person or an issuer who or which is categorized as
a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines
on willful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

Working Days

In accordance with Regulation 2(1)(mmm) of SEBI (ICDR), Regulations,
2018, working day means all days on which commercial banks in the city as
specified in the offer document are open for business.

- However, till Application / Issue closing date: All days other than 2" and 4"
Saturday of the month, Sunday or a public holiday;

- Post Application / Issue closing date and till the Listing of Equity Shares:
Working days shall be all trading days of stock exchanges excluding
Sundays and bank holidays (in accordance with the SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL/CIR/P/2016/26 dated January 21, 2016).

ABBREVIATIONS

ABBREVIATIONS FULL FORMS

Alc Account

ACS Associate Company Secretary

AGM Annual General Meeting

AlF Alternative Investment Funds as defined in and registered under SEBI AlF
Regulations

AS Accounting Standards as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India

ASBA Applications Supported by Blocked Amount

AY Assessment Year

Bn Billion

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate

CAPEX Capital Expenditure

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CFO Chief Financial Officer

Cll Confederation of Indian Industry

CIN Company Identification Number
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ABBREVIATIONS

FULL FORMS

CST

Central Sales Tax

Contract Act The Indian Contract Act, 1872 as amended from time to time

COoVID-19 Coronavirus disease 2019

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility

DIN Director Identification Number

DP Depository Participant

DP ID Depository Participant‘s Identity

DB Designated Branch

DTC Direct Tax Code, 2013

EBIDTA Earning/Revenues from operations (net) less total expenses (expenses other
than finance cost, depreciation and amortization)

ECS Electronic Clearing System

EGM Extraordinary General Meeting

EOU Export Oriented Unit

EPS Earnings Per Share

ESOP Employee Stock Option Plan

FCNR Foreign Currency Non Resident Account

FDI Foreign Direct Investment
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, as amended from time to time, and

FEMA the regulations framed there under
Foreign Institutional Investor, as defined under the Securities and Exchange

Flls Board of India (Foreign Institutional Investors) Regulations, 2014, as
amended from time to time and registered with the SEBI under applicable
laws in India

FIPB Foreign Investment Promotion Board

FPls Foreign Portfolio Investor as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations and
registered with SEBI under applicable laws in India

FTP Foreign Trade Policy,2009

FY/ Fiscal/ Financial
Year

Period of twelve months ended March 31 of that particular year, unless
otherwise stated

FVCI Foreign Venture Capital Investors (as defined under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors) Regulations,
2000) registered with SEBI under applicable laws in India.

GAAP General Accepted Accounting Principles

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GFSR Global Financial Stability Report

Gol/ Government Government of India

GST Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017

HNI High Networth Individuals

HR Human Resources

HUF Hindu Undivided Family

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India

ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

ICDR/ ICDR | The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Regulations/  SEBI | Requirements) Regulations, 2018 issued by SEBI on September 11, 2018 as

ICDR/ SEBI (ICDR)

amended, including instructions and clarifications issued by SEBI from time

Regulations to time.

ICSI Institute of Company Secretaries Of India

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

IFSC Indian Financial System Code

IGST Integrated GST

IMPS Immediate Payment Service

IPR Intellectual Property Rights

IRDA Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority

I.T. Act Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to time
INR/Rs./Rupees/ Indian Rupees, the legal currency of the Republic of India
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ABBREVIATIONS

FULL FORMS

JV

Joint Ventures

Km Kilometres

KMP Key Managerial Personnel

LM Lead Manager

LMT Lakh Metric Tonnes

Ltd Limited

MB Merchant Banker as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992, as amended from time to time.

MD Managing Director

MGNREGS Mahatma Gandhi National Rural Employment Guarantee Scheme

MICR Magnetic Ink Character Recognition

Mkt. Market

Mn Million

MOA Memorandum of Association

MoF Ministry of Finance, Government of India

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

MSP Minimum Support Price

N.A./n.a. Not Applicable

NACH National Automated Clearing House

NAV Net Asset Value

NBFC Non- Banking Finance Company

NECS National Electronic Clearing System

NEFT National Electronic Fund Transfer

NOC No Objection Certificate

No. Number

NPCI National payments Corporation of India

NPV Net Present Value

NR Non-Resident

NRE Account Non Resident External Account

NRIs Non Resident Indians

NRO Account Non Resident Ordinary Account

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

NTA Net Tangible Assets

0OCB Overseas Corporate Bodies

p.a. per annum

P/E Ratio Price/ Earnings Ratio

PAC Persons Acting in Concert

PAN Permanent Account Number

PAT Profit After Tax

PBT Profit Before Tax

NLAHL Nidan Laboratories and Healthcare Limited

PE Private Equity

PE Ratio Price/ Earning Ratio

PIO Persons of Indian Origin

POA Power of Attorney

PPE Personal Protective Equipment

Pvt. Private

Pvt. Ltd. Private Limited

QFI Qualified Foreign Investors

QIB Qualified Institutional Buyers

RBI The Reserve Bank of India

R&D Research and Development

RoC Registrar of Companies

ROE Return on Equity

RONW Return on Net Worth
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ABBREVIATIONS

FULL FORMS

RTGS

Real Time Gross Settlement

SCRA Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended from time to time
SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended from time to time.
Sec. Section

Securities Act The U.S. Securities Act as amended from time to time

SEZ Special Economic Zone

SGST State GST

SME Small and Medium Entreprise

SSI Undertakings

Small Scale Industrial Undertakings

STT

Securities Transaction Tax

TIN Tax ldentification Number

TAN Tax Deduction and Collection Account Number

TRS Transaction Registration Slip

TNW Total Net Worth

UIN Unigue Identification Number

u/s Under Section

UPI Unified Payment Interface

US/ United States United States of America

USD/ US$/ $ United States Dollar, the official currency of the Unites States of America

Venture Capital | Venture Capital Funds as defined and registered with SEBI under Securities

Fund(s)/ VCF(s) and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations, 1996, as
amended from time to time.

VAT Value Added Tax

WDV Written Down Value

WEO World Economic Outlook

w.e.f. With Effect From

WTD Whole Time Director

WTO World Trade Organization

YoY Year over year

TECHNICAL/ INDUSTRY RELATED TERMS

TERM DESCRIPTION
ANDA Abbreviated New Drug Application
CClI Competition Commission Of India
CT Computed Tomography
DPIIT Department For Promotion Of Industry And Internal Trade
MRI Magnetic Resonance Imaging
NABL National Accreditation Board Of Laboratories
NBCFDC National Backward Classes Finance And Development Corporation
OPD Outpatient Department
PHCs Primary Healthcare Centres
ANDA Abbreviated New Drug Application

Notwithstanding the following:-

1. In the section titled ‘Main Provisions of the Articles of Association’ beginning on page 277 of this Draft

Prospectus, defined terms shall have the meaning given to such terms in that section;

2. In the section titled ‘Summary of Issue Document’ beginning on page no. 16 of this Draft Prospectus, defined

terms shall have the meaning given to such terms in that section;

3. In the section titled ‘Risk Factors’ beginning on page 21 of this Draft Prospectus, defined terms shall have the

meaning given to such terms in that section;

4. In the chapter titled ‘Statement of Tax Benefits’ beginning on page 77 of this Draft Prospectus, defined terms

12




shall have the meaning given to such terms in that section;

. In the chapter titled ‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of
Operations’ beginning on page 201 of this Draft Prospectus, defined terms shall have the meaning given to
such terms in that section; and

. In the section titled ‘Restated Financial Statement’ beginning on page 176 of this Draft Prospectus, defined
terms shall have the meaning given to such terms in that section.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL, INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA
Certain Conventions

99 G 9% ¢ CEINNT3

In this Draft Prospectus, the terms “we”, “us”, “our”, the “Company”, “our Company”, “Nidan Laboratories and
Healthcare Limited” and/or “NIDAN” or “NLAHL” and/or “NIDAN LABORATORIES”, unless the context
otherwise indicates or implies, refers to Nidan Laboratories and Healthcare Limited.

All references in this Draft Prospectus to “India” are to the Republic of India. All references in the Draft Prospectus
to the “U.S.”, “USA” or “United States” are to the United States of America. Unless stated otherwise, all references
to page numbers in this Draft Prospectus are to the page numbers of this Draft Prospectus.

Financial Data

Unless stated otherwise, the financial data which is included in this Draft Prospectus is derived from our restated/
audited financial statements for period ended June 30, 2021 and the financial years ending on March 31, 2021, 2020
and 2019 prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP, Accounting Standards, the Companies Act, 2013 (Such
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 which were in force as on date) and restated financial statements of our
company prepared in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Indian GAAP which are included in this
Draft Prospectus, and set out in the section titled ‘Financial Statements’ beginning on page 176 of this Draft
Prospectus.

Our Financial Year commences on April 1% of each year and ends on March 31% of the following year, so all
references to a particular Financial Year are to the (12) twelve-month period ended March 31% of that year. In this
Draft Prospectus, discrepancies in any table, graphs or charts between the total and the sums of the amounts listed
are due to rounding-off. Further, figure represented in the BRACKETor with the sign “ - ” indicates NEGATIVE
data in this Draft Prospectus in relation to our Company and Industries.There are significant differences between
Indian GAAP, IFRS and U.S. GAAP. Our Company has not attempted to explain those differences or quantify their
impact on the financial data included herein, nor do we provide a reconciliation of our financial statements to those
under U.S. GAAP or IFRS and the investors should consult their own advisors regarding such differences and their
impact on the financial data. Accordingly, the degree to which the restated financial statements included in this Draft
Prospectus will provide meaningful information is entirely dependent on the reader's level of familiarity with Indian
accounting practices/ Indian GAAP, the Companies Act and the SEBI Regulations. Any reliance by persons not
familiar with Indian accounting practices on the financial disclosures presented in this Draft Prospectus should
accordingly be limited.

Any percentage amounts, as set forth in the chapters titled ‘Risk Factors’, ‘Business Overview’ and ‘Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations’ beginning on page 21, 100 and 201,
respectively, of this Draft Prospectus and elsewhere in this Draft Prospectus, unless otherwise indicated, have been
calculated on the basis of our restated financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP, the
Companies Act and SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Currency and Units of presentation

In this Draft Prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, all references to;

* ‘Rupees’ or ‘Rs.” or ‘INR’ or ‘“are to Indian rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India.

* “US Dollars’ or ‘US$’ or ‘USD’ or ‘$’ are to United States Dollars, the official currency of the United States of
America.

All references to the word “Lakh/Lakhs or Lac” means “One Hundred Thousand”, the word “Crore/Crores” means
“Hundred Lakhs”, the word “Million (million) or Mn” means “Ten Lakhs”, the word “Crores” means “Ten Million”
and the word “Billion (bn)” means “One Hundred Crores”.

Industry and Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, industry data used throughout this Draft Prospectus has been obtained or derived from
industry and government publications, publicly available information and sources. Industry publications generally
state that the information contained in those publications has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable but
that their accuracy and completeness are not guaranteed, and their reliability cannot be assured. Although our
Company believes that industry data used in this Draft Prospectus is reliable, it has not been independently verified.
Further, the extent to which the industry and market data presented in the Draft Prospectus is meaningful depends on
the reader's familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. There are no
standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which we conduct our business, and methodologies and
assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT

All statements contained in this Draft Prospectus that are not statements of historical facts constitute ‘forward
looking statements’. All statements regarding our expected financial condition and results of operations, business,
objectives, strategies, plans, goals and prospects are forward-looking statements. These forward- looking statements
include statements as to our business strategy, our revenue and profitability, planned projects and other matters
discussed in this Draft Prospectus regarding matters that are not historical facts. These forward looking statements
and any other projections contained in this Draft Prospectus (whether made by us or any third party) are predictions
and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results,
performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements or other projections.

99 CCot o 90 Gl

These forward looking statements can generally be identified by words or phrases such as “will”, “may”, “aim”, “is
likely to result”, “will likely result”, “believe”, “expect”, “will continue”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “intend”, “plan”,
“contemplate”, “seek to”, “future”, “objective”, “goal”, “project”, “should”, “will pursue” and similar expressions or
variations of such expressions. Similarly, statements that describe our objectives, strategies, plans or goals are also

forward looking statements.

These forward-looking statements are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties and assumptions that could
significantly affect our current plans and expectations and our future financial condition and results of operations.
Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include but are not limited
to the followings:

» General economic and business conditions in the markets in which we operate and in the local, regional and
national and international economies;

« Our ability to successfully implement our growth strategy and expansion plans,technological initiatives, and to
launch and implement various projects and business plans for which funds are being raised through this Issue;

» Our ability to respond to technological changes;

« Our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel;

» Our ability to meet our capital expenditure requirements;

» Fluctuations in operating costs and impact on the financial results;

» The effect of wage pressures, seasonal hiring patterns and the time required to train and productively utilize new
employees;

» General social and political conditions in India which have an impact on our business activities or investments;

» Potential mergers, acquisitions restructurings and increased competition;

» Occurrences of natural disasters or calamities affecting the areas in which we have operations;

» Market fluctuations and industry dynamics beyond our control;

» Changes in the competition landscape;

» Our ability to finance our business growth and obtain financing on favorable terms;

+ Our ability to manage our growth effectively;

« Our ability to compete effectively, particularly in new markets and businesses;

« Changes in government policies and regulatory actions that apply to or affect our business;

» Developments affecting the Indian economy; and

« Inability to meet our obligations, including repayment, financial and other covenants under our debt financing
arrangements.

For a further discussion of factors that could cause our current plans and expectations and actual results to differ,
please refer to the chapters titled ‘Risk Factors’, ‘Business Overview’ and ‘Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations’ beginning on page 21, 100 and 201, respectively of
this Draft Prospectus.

Forward looking statements reflects views as of the date of this Draft Prospectus and not a guarantee of future
performance. By their nature, certain risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what
occurs in the future. As a result, actual future gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been
estimated. Neither our Company, our Directors nor the Lead Managers, nor any of their respective affiliates or
associates have any obligation to, and do not intend to, update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting
circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying
assumptions do not come to fruition. In accordance with SEBI requirements, our Company and the Lead Manager
will ensure that investors in India are informed of material developments until the listing and trading permission is
granted by the Stock Exchange(s).
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SECTION Il - SUMMARY OF THE ISSUE DOCUMENT
Overview of the Industry
Healthcare Introduction

Healthcare has become one of India’s largest sector, both in terms of revenue and employment. Healthcare
comprises hospitals, medical devices, clinical trials, outsourcing, telemedicine, medical tourism, health insurance
and medical equipment. The Indian healthcare sector is growing at a brisk pace due to its strengthening coverage,
services and increasing expenditure by public as well private players.

Indian healthcare delivery system is categorised into two major components public and private. The Government,
i.e. public healthcare system, comprises limited secondary and tertiary care institutions in key cities and focuses on
providing basic healthcare facilities in the form of primary healthcare centres (PHCs) in rural areas. The private
sector provides majority of secondary, tertiary, and quaternary care institutions with major concentration in metros
and tier | and tier Il cities.

India's competitive advantage lies in its large pool of well-trained medical professionals. India is also cost
competitive compared to its peers in Asia and Western countries. The cost of surgery in India is about one-tenth of
that in the US or Western Europe.

Healthcare has become one of India's largest sector, both in terms of revenue and employment. The industry is
growing at a tremendous pace owing to its strengthening coverage, service and increasing expenditure by public as
well private players. In 2016-22, the market is expected to record a CAGR of 17.69%. The total industry size is
estimated to reach US$ 193.83 billion by 2020 and US$ 372 billion by 2022. In Budget 2021, India’s public
expenditure on healthcare stood at 1.2% as a percentage of the GDP. Health insurance is gaining momentum in
India. Gross direct premium income underwritten by health insurance grew 17.16% y-o0-y to Rs. 51,637.84 crore
(US$ 7.39 billion) in FY20. This is due to rising income, easier access to high-quality healthcare facilities and
greater awareness of personal health and hygiene. Greater penetration of health insurance aided the rise in healthcare
spending, a trend likely to intensify in the coming decade. Economic prosperity is driving the improvement in
affordability for generic drugs in the market. In Budget 2021, India’s public expenditure on healthcare stood at 1.2%
as a percentage of the GDP. The Government is planning to increase public health spending to 2.5% of the country's
GDP by 2025. The share of healthcare in GDP is expected to rise 19.7% by 2027.

Diagnostic Sector

The diagnostic industry has emerged as an attractive play in India's growing healthcare sector and is one of the
fastest growing services in the country. The domestic diagnostic industry is estimated at USD9bn (around INR
675bn) and is expected to grow at a compounded annual growth rate (CAGR) of ~10% over the next 5 years.
Growth will be primarily driven by change in demographics, increase in lifestyle diseases, and higher income levels
across all strata of society, rise in preventive testing, deeper penetration with asset-light expansion, and spread of
healthcare services and insurance.

The diagnostic segment is a critical component of the healthcare sector. Globally, ~80% of physician diagnoses are a
result of laboratory tests. There are mainly 3 types of tests: Routine, clinical lab and specialty tests.

o Routine tests: Common tests like sugar, cholesterol, HIV, pap, pregnancy, etc.
o Clinical lab tests to monitor diseases and drug treatments
o Specialty tests: Genetics, immunology, oncology, endocrinology and other critical segments

The industry is broadly segregated into pathology testing and imaging diagnostic services. Pathology testing (in-
vitro diagnosis) includes sample collection in the form of blood, urine and stool. This is followed by the sample's
analysation using laboratory equipment and technology to derive useful clinical information for assisting in patient
treatment. The imaging diagnostic segment consist of more complex tests like computed tomography (CT) scans and
magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) and other highly specialised tests like positron emission tomography (PET)-CT
scans. As per estimates, the pathology segment contributes ~58% of total market revenue.
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The market share is categorized as: unorganized (47%), hospital-based lab (37%) while the remaining (~16%) is
with the organized players. Doctor referrals constitute a large part of this business. This includes commission
payments to doctors in lieu of referring a diagnostic lab. Further, currently, the illness diagnosis segment is more
prevalent than wellness segment in India.

The diagnostic industry has emerged as an attractive play in India's growing healthcare sector and is one of the
fastest growing service segments in the country. Diagnostic is a business of economies of scale and the most
important metric is the cost of processing a sample. The existing players are still in the nascent stages of their
growth cycles and have a long runway ahead. We are positive on the national diagnostic chains in India, given their
advantages of many years of experience, brand trust and recall, global quality standards and accreditations, wide test
menus, extensive patient touchpoints to service patients locally, value-added offerings, and ability to sustainably
grow in new markets. Potential consolidation in the industry, organic and inorganic expansion, complemented by
their strong balance sheets and return ratios, would provide tailwinds to their growth in the medium term.

The large listed Indian diagnostic chains - Dr. Lal, Metropolis, Thyrocare - remain beneficiaries of what we view as
attractive long-term industry growth story. Given the outbreak of COVID-19 and its impact on people mindset about
healthcare and preventive measures over the next one to two years; we are giving higher valuation to these stocks.
We see the potential for increased inclusion of diagnostic testing in health insurance and ample runway for higher
market penetration as standards of living increase and preventive healthcare awareness rises.

For more information on the Industry our Company is in, please refer to chapter titled “Industry Overview” on page
no. 80 of this Draft Prospectus.

Overview of the Business

Our Company was originally incorporated as Abhi Diagnostic Imagings Private Limited on December 05, 2000
under the Companies Act, 1956 vide certificate of incorporation issued by the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra.
Subsequently, the name of the company was changed from “Abhi Diagnostic Imagings Private Limited” to “Nidan
Laboratories And Healthcare Private Limited” under the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to a special resolution
passed by our shareholders at the EGM held on February 26, 2021 and had obtained fresh certificate of
incorporation dated March 24, 2021 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra. Subsequently, our
Company was converted into a public limited company and the name of our Company was changed to ‘Nidan
Laboratories And Healthcare Limited’ and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon conversion to public
limited company was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra, on May 24, 2021. The CIN of
the Company is U33111MH2000PLC129883.

Nidan was established as a proprietary Firm in 1994 by our Promoter- Dr. Nithin Vitthalrao Thorave in the Northern
District of Mumbai where diagnostic services was provided under one roof at reliable and affordable price. The
business was carried out under sole proprietorship, which was later taken over by our Company in 2000. From the
year 2000, he expanded the diagnostic’s business by setting up various centre’s within the Northern District of
Mumbai and Pune and Southern District of Pune. As on this date, 30 diagnostic cum collection centres are
operational under the brand name of “Nidan Healthcare” and offer radiology, neurology, cardiology, dental as well
as pathology services. Out of the 35 Centre’s, 16 centre’s are under the Franchisee model where 1 centre acts as a
fully operated diagnostic centre and 15 centre’s act solely as standalone collection centres. We provide integrated
diagnostics services more than 1 million patients per year. Since 2000, private and government hospitals have been
using our services and diagnostics centre’s for various pathology and radiology tests. After more than a decade of
experience, we have successfully set our diagnostics centre in Asian Heart Hospital, Mumbai under the name of
“Asian Nidan Imaging Centre”. To enable our patients to easily distinguish our pathology and radiology services,
we introduced “NIDANPATH” and “NIDAN DIAGNOSTICS” respectively in the year 2017. As on March 31,
2021, we offer a comprehensive range of approximately 740 routine and 3000 specialized pathology tests and
approximately 220 basic and 320 advanced radiology tests that cover a range of specialties and disciplines.

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

Established brand name

Customer Centric Services

Location Benefit

One-Stop Solution at Affordable Price
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o Robust Technical Capability and State of the Art Technology with Strong IT Infrastructure
o Dedicated Management Team with Significant Industry Experience

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGY

Focusing on increasing reach within PAN Mumbai and PAN India

Continue to Focus on Providing Customer Centric Services and Offerings

Expand our offerings of diagnostic sources with focuses on splendid diagnostic services
Branding & Advertising

For more information on our Company’s business, please refer to chapter titled “Business Overview” on page no.
100 of this Draft Prospectus.

Names of the Promoters

Dr. NitinVithalraoThorave is the Promoter of our Company.

Size of the Issue

This is the Fresh Issue of Equity Shares. Initial Public Offer is of 40,00,000 of face value of Rs. 10 each of the
Company for cash at a price of Rs. 125 per Equity Share (including a share premium of Rs. 115 per Equity Share)
aggregrating up to Rs. 5000.00 Lakhs.

Objects of the Issue
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Particulars Amount to be funded from the IPO Proceeds
1. Repayment / pre-payment of certain borrowings 2500.00
2. Additional Working Capital 1700.00
3. General Corporate Expenses 440.00
4. To meet the expenses of the Issue 360.00
Total 5000.00

Offer For Sale-There is no Offer for Sale as Our Company is making only a Fresh Initial Public Offer/Issue.

For detailed information on the “Objects of the Issue”, please refer to chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” on page
no. 69 of this Draft Prospectus.

Pre-Issue Shareholding of the Promoter and Promoter Group

The aggregate shareholding of Our Promoter and Promoter Group before the Issue is set forth below:

Pre-lssue Post-Issue
ilrd_ Name of the Shareholders No. of equity PArSe?I;?ung No. of equity QSS?_ (:/gsﬂfe
shares . shares .
Capital Capital
A Promoter
1. Dr. Nitin Vithalrao Thorave 8,941,500 90.32 8,941,500 64.33
Total (A)
B Promoter Group & Relatives 957,600 9.67 957,600 6.89
C TOTAL (A+B) 9,899,100 99.99 9,899,100 71.22

For further details relating to the allotment of Equity Shares to our Promoters and Promoter Group members, please
refer to the chapter titled ‘ Capital Structure’ beginning on page no. 58 of this Draft Prospectus.

Financial Information
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The following tables set forth details the financial information as per the Restated Audited Financial Statements for
the period ended June 30, 2021 and financial year ended on March 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019.

For detail information, please refer to the chapters and notes mentioned therein titled ‘RestatedFinancial Statement’
and ‘Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations’ beginning on
page no. 176 and 201 respectively of this Draft Prospectus.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars June. 30, As at March 31,

2021 2021 2020 2019
Share Capital 990.00 990.00 990.00 990.00
Net Worth 1441.85 1333.10 1102.86 1031.39
Total Revenue from operations 784.58 2185.32 2219.18 2097.22
Profit after Tax 108.74 230.24 71.46 22.35
EPS (in Rs.)- Basis & Diluted 1.09 2.32 0.72 0.23
NAV per equity share (in Rs.) 14.56 13.46 11.14 10.42
Total borrowings (as per restated balance sheet) 3709.11 3649.76 3435.04 3216.89

Auditors’ Qualifications which have not been given effect to in the RestatedFinancial Statements

Independent Auditor’s Report on Restated Financial Statements is issued by M/s. R. K. Chapawat & Co,Chartered
Accountants, Mumbai contains following Qualifications.

The Restated Financial Statements do not contain any qualification requiring adjustments by the Auditors.

Summary of the Outstanding Litigations

For further details in relation to legal proceedings involving our Company, Promoters, Directors and Group
Companies, please refer chapters titled “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” and “Risk Factors”
on page no. 211 and 21, respectively, of this Draft Prospectus.

Risk Factors

An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. Potential Investors should carefully consider all
the information in this Draft Prospectus and are advised to read the section titled “Risk Factors” beginning on page
no. 21 of this Draft Prospectus, including the risks and uncertainties, before making/taking an investment decision in
our Equity Shares.

In making an investment decision prospective investors must rely on their own examination of our Company and the
terms of this issue including the merits and risks involved.The risks described in the said chapter are relevant to the
industries our Company is engaged in, our Company and our Equity Shares. Any potential investor in, and
subscriber of, the Equity Shares should also pay particular attention to the fact that we are governed in India by a
legal and regulatory environment in which some material respects may be different from that which prevails in other
countries.

For further details, please refer to the Section titled “Risk Factors” beginning from page no. 21 of this Draft
Prospectus.

Summary of Contingent Liabilities

For detailed information on the Contingent Liabilities on our Company, please refer “4nnexure 31: Statement of
Contingent Liabilities” appearing on page 199 of this Draft Prospectus under Chapter titled “Restated Financial
Information” beginning on Page no. 176 of this Draft Prospectus.

Summary of Related Party Transactions

For detailed information on the Related Party Transaction on our Company, please refer “Annexure 32: Statement
of details of Related Party Transactions” appearing on page 199 of this Draft Prospectus under Chapter titled
“Restated Financial Information” beginning on Page no. 176 of this Draft Prospectus.
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Details of Financing Arrangements

The Promoters, member of Promoter Group, the Directors of the Company which a Promoter of the Issuer, the
Director of our company and their relatives have not financed the purchase by any other person of securities of our
Company other than in the normal course of the Business of the financing entity during the period of six months
immediately preceding the date of filing of this Draft Prospectus.

Cost of Acquisition of Shares &Weighted Average Costof the Shares Acquired by our Promoters

During the preceding one year from the date of the Draft Prospectus, no shares were acquired by the promoters

Average Cost of Acquisition of Shares

The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters is set forth in the table below:

Name of Promoter No. of equity share held Average cost of acquisition (in Rs.)
Dr. Nitin Vithalrao Thorave 8,941,500 10.00

Pre-1PO Placement

Our Company has not placed any Pre-IPO Placement as on date of filing this Draft Prospectus.

Equity Shares issued for Consideration Other Than Cash

Our Company has not issued any other equity shares for consideration other than cash during last one year preceding
the date of filing this Draft Prospectus.

Split / Consolidation of Equity Shares

Our Company has not done any split or consolidation of Equity Shares during the last one year from the date of
filing this Draft Prospectus.
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SECTION Il - RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the information
in this Draft Prospectus, including the risks and uncertainties summarized below, before making an investment in
our Equity Shares. In making an investment decision prospective investor must rely on their own examination of our
Company and the terms of this issue including the merits and risks involved. The risks described below are relevant
to the industries our Company is engaged in, our Company and our Equity Shares. Any potential investor in, and
subscriber of, the Equity Shares should also pay particular attention to the fact that we are governed in India by a
legal and regulatory environment in which some material respects may be different from that which prevails in other
countries. The risks and uncertainties described in this section are not the only risks and uncertainties we currently
face. Additional risks and uncertainties not known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also have an
adverse effect on our business. If any of the following risks, or other risks that are not currently known or are now
deemed immaterial, actually occur, our business, results of operations and financial condition could suffer, the price
of our Equity Shares could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment. Additionally, our business
operations could also be affected by additional factors that are not presently known to us or that we currently
consider as immaterial to our operations.

This Draft Prospectus also contains forward looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual
results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of many
factors, including the considerations described below and elsewhere in this Draft Prospectus. These risks are not
the only ones that our Company faces. Unless specified or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in
a position to quantify financial or other implication of any risks mentioned herein.

To obtain a complete understanding of our Company, you should read this section in conjunction with the chapters
titled 'Business Overview' and 'Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of
Operations' beginning on page 100 and 201 respectively, of this Draft Prospectus as well as the other financial and
statistical information contained in this Draft Prospectus. Prior to making an investment decision, prospective
investors should carefully consider all of the information contained in the section titled 'Financial Statements'
beginning on page 176 of this Draft Prospectus. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information of our Company
used in this section is derived from our restated financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP and
the Companies Act and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Materiality

The risk factors have been determined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been considered
for determining the materiality of the Risk Factors:

1. Some events may not be material individually but may be material when considered collectively.
2. Some events may have material impact quantitatively.

3. Some events may have an impact which is qualitative though not quantitative.

4. Some events may not be material at present but may have a material impact in the future.

Note:

The risk factors are as envisaged by the management along with the proposals to address the risk, if any. The
financial and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable, have been disclosed in the risk
factors mentioned below. However, there are risk factors where the impact may not be quantifiable and hence the
same has not been disclosed in such risk factors. Unless otherwise stated, we are not in a position to specify or
quantify the financial or other risks mentioned herein. For capitalized terms used but not defined in this chapter,
refer to the chapter titled “Definitions and Abbreviation” beginning on page 4 of this Draft Prospectus. The
numbering of the risk factors has been done to facilitate ease of reading and reference and does not in any manner
indicate the importance of one risk factor over another.

In this Draft Prospectus, any discrepancies in any table between total and sums of the amount listed are due to
rounding off. Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Draft Prospectus unless
otherwise indicated, has been calculated on the basis of the amount disclosed in our restated financial statements
prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP.
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INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

RISKS RELATING TO OUR COMPANY AND BUSINESS

1.

There are certain outstanding tax proceedings against our Company and our Promoters which may
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

There are certain tax proceedings pending at different levels of adjudication before various authorities, enquiry
officers and appellate forums. Such proceedings could divert management time, attention and consume financial
resources in their defense. Further, an adverse judgment in some of these proceedings could have an adverse
impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations. A summary of the outstanding
proceedings against our Company and our Promoters as disclosed in this Draft Prospectus, to the extent
quantifiable, have been set out below:

Cases filed by | Cases filed Against
Nature of case Number of cases A T
Promoter 3 160.56 23.47
Group Entities 4 485.78 6.97

The table above does not include those penalties, interests and costs, if any, which may be imposed or which
may have been pleaded but not quantified in the course of legal proceedings, or which the Court / Tribunal
otherwise has the discretion to impose. The imposition and amount of such penalties / interests / costs are at the
discretion of the court / tribunal where the case is pending. Such liability, if any, would crystallize only on the
order of the tribunal where the case(s) is / are pending.

For further details, please refer to section titled "Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments"
beginning on page no. 211 of this Draft Prospectus.

Our business and prospects may be adversely affected if we are unable to maintain and grow our brand
name and brand image.

Since we primarily derive almost all of our revenues from walk-in customers, our brand and reputation are
critical for the success of our business and operations. Our ability to maintain and improve our brand name and
brand image is dependent on factors such as quality, accuracy and efficiency of our diagnostic tests, turnaround
time and patient satisfaction, the performance of our service network, the introduction of new tests and services.
Further, as we expand into new geographic markets within India, and as the market becomes increasingly
competitive, maintaining and enhancing our brand may become costly and difficult.

Our services are designed to diagnose and detect early symptoms of diseases and to help prevent diseases and
other health conditions by monitoring a variety of health indicators. While there have not been any past material
incidences of errors, users of our services have a greater sensitivity to errors than users of services or products
that are not intended for the diagnosis, treatment and prevention of diseases. We train our medical personnel,
including physicians, radiologists, technicians and other staff to provide accurate and timely test results.
However, any delays or inaccuracies in the results we provide, including due to inherent limitations in the
technology and equipment used or due to wrong interpretation of test results by doctors, may result in the wrong
treatment being prescribed to a patient, which may cause potential harm to such patient and may induce
negative publicity and cause other harm to our brand and reputation. In addition, if our personnel make errors in
the handling and labelling of patient specimens, or in the operation of our complex medical equipment, or if
they inadequately or improperly extract specimens from patients causing bodily harm, our test results may not
be accurate and we may become liable under healthcare or other laws for acts or omissions by our employees,
which may adversely affect our brand and reputation.

Further, our quality certifications and accreditations are critical for our brand image. As of June 30, 2021, all of
our laboratories are PCPNDT accreditations. If our testing services fail to meet accreditation standards, or if we
fail to adapt to evolving diagnostic standards, we could lose one or more of our accreditations, which may
adversely affect our business and prospects.

22



Any inability on our part to maintain quality standards could adversely impact our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Quality of services is a vital element for our sector. We provide distinguished services to a variety of customers
which provides us a safeguard against the change of trend with any type of customer as our operational cash
influxes get balanced with other type of our customer base. Any rapid change in our customers’ expectation on
account of changes in technology or introduction of new kind of services or any other reason and failure on our
part to meet their expectation could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Any failure on our part to successfully meet customer demand or preference may negatively affect our business,
results of operation and financial condition.

Negative publicity with respect to our products or the industry in which we operate could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our business is dependent on the trust our clients have in the quality of our services and products. Any negative
publicity regarding our Company, services, brand, products and industry including those arising from a drop in
quality of our services, or any other unforeseen events could affect our reputation and our results from
operations. Any damage to our brand or our reputation may result in withdrawal of business by our existing
clients as well as loss of new business. Furthermore, negative publicity may result in an increase in regulatory
scrutiny of industry practices as well as an increase in claims litigation, which may further increase our costs of
doing business and affect our profitability. Accordingly, any adverse effect on our brand and reputation may
have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of our operations.

Also, any failure or defect in our services could result in a claim against us for damages, regardless of our
responsibility for such a failure or defect. We currently carry no services liability insurance with respect to our
services. Although we attempt to maintain quality standards, we cannot assure that all our services would be of
uniform quality, which in turn could adversely affect the value of our brand, and our sales could be diminished
if we are associated with negative publicity.

The recent outbreak of the novel coronavirus could have a significant effect on our results of operations, and
could negatively impact our business, revenues, financial condition and results of operations.

An outbreak of COVID-19 was recognized as a pandemic by the WHO on March 11, 2020. In response to the
COVID-19 outbreak, the governments of many countries, including India, have taken preventive or protective
actions such as imposing country-wide lockdowns, as well as restrictions on travel and business operations.
Since May 2020 many of these measures have been lifted. We proactively engaged with our clients to reassure
them and to demonstrate our commitment to restart our operations and to build confidence in the safety
protocols deployed at our office. If we do not respond appropriately to the pandemic, or if customers do not
perceive our response to be adequate, we could suffer damage to our reputation and our brand, which could
adversely affect our business in the future.

Further, the lockdown was again imposed by the government in some parts of India during April 2021, which
was partially relaxed in June 2021, during this lockdown although we have continued with our business, the
execution of our business operations was delayed by few weeks.

We cannot predict the degree to, or the time period over, which our business will be affected by the COVID-19
outbreak. For example, this pandemic could necessitate further lockdowns, resulting in significant additional
effects on our revenue, financial condition and results of operations. There are numerous uncertainties
associated with the COVID-19 outbreak, including the number of individuals who will become infected,
availability of a vaccine or a cure that mitigates the effect of the virus, the extent of the protective and
preventative measures imposed by governments and whether the virus' impact will be seasonal, among others.
Consequently, there may be adverse effects of this pandemic on our short-term business operations and our
financial results may be impacted.

Our operations are concentrated in Northern District of Mumbai and Pune and Southern District of Pune,

and any loss of business in such region could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.
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10.

While 35 diagnostic cum collection centres are well spread in Northern District of Mumbai and Pune and
Southern District of Pune, our significant portion of our operations are concentrated in the Northern District of
Mumbai. We derived 90 %, 91%, 91 % and 84%, of our revenue from operations from Northern District of
Mumbai for the three months ended June 30, 2021 and the financial years 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
We also derived 10%, 9 %, 9 % and 6%, of our revenue from operations from Northern District of and Southern
District of Pune for the three months ended June 30, 2021 and the financial years 2021, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. In the event of a regional slowdown in the economic activity in any of the respective locations, or
any other developments including political or civil unrest, disruption or sustained economic downturn that
reduce the demand for our services in the city of Mumbai and Pune and/ or states of Maharashtra, could
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition, which are largely dependent on the
performance and other prevailing conditions affecting the economies of Northern District of Mumbai.

We have not entered into any long-term contracts with any of our suppliers and / or customers and orders
are not backed-up by a letter of credit facility.

We do not have any long-term contracts with our suppliers and any change in the selling pattern of the suppliers
could adversely affect the business of our Company. Although we have satisfactory business relations with our
suppliers and have received continued business from them in the past, there is no certainty that the same will
continue in the years to come and may affect our profitability.

Our operations are significantly located in the Northern District of Mumbai and Pune and Southern District
of Pune and failure to expand our operations may restrict our growth and adversely affect our business

Currently, all diagnostic centre’s are situated in the Northern District of Mumbai and Pune and Southern
District of Pune and we are carrying our business mainly from these centres. Our registered/ corporate offices is
also Northern District of Mumbai. Hence our major revenues are generated from operations in these regions
only. In the event that demand for our services in general reduces or stops by any reason including political
discord or instability or change in policies of State, then our financial condition and operating results may be
materially and adversely affected. Geographical and functional expansion of our business domain requires
establishment of adequate network. As we seek to diversify our regional focus we may face the risk that our
competitors may be better known in other markets, enjoy better relationships with customers. Our lack of
exposure in geographical boundaries outside our operating region could impact our future revenues.

Our Company entered into various Business Agreements for expansion our business. Any termination or
dispute in relation to these agreements may have an adverse effect on our business operations and results
thereof.

Our Promoters along with the Management decided to expand our business through the business models in the
year 2000. Owing to this strategy, Our Company has entered into a APSC agreement with Metropolis
Healthcare Limited and Franchise Agreements with various parties as on the date of filing this Draft Prospectus.
For details on the same, please refer to the chapter titled ‘Business Overview’ and “History and Certain
Corporate Matters” beginning on page no. 100 and 128 respectively of the Draft Prospectus. Any non-
compliance by either of the parties in relation to any period of agreement, term & conditions, any dispute due to
owing to usage of Nidan brand names or any other, may result in the termination of the agreements and
consequently we lose business. This will further either lead to reduced revenues or increase cost of operations or
lose of client or cancellation of events. Further, we also cannot assure you that either of the parties will not
terminate the agreement before the expiry date of the agreement, which would require us to either locate another
parties or negotiate the terms with the existing parties or execute our operations and services at hundred percent.
This may have an adverse effect on our conducting our business operations, economics of scale and revenues.

Our success depends largely on our senior management and our ability to attract and retain our key
personnel.

Our success is dependent on our management team whose loss could seriously impair the ability to continue to
manage and expand business efficiently. Our success largely depends on the continued services and
performance of our management and other key personnel. The loss of service of the Key Managerial Personnel
and other senior management could seriously impair the ability to continue to manage and expand the business
efficiently. Further, the loss of any of the senior management or other key personnel may adversely affect the
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12.

13.

14.

operations, finances and profitability of our Company. Any failure or inability of our Company to efficiently
retain and manage its human resources would adversely affect our ability to expand our business.

Our Promoter is disqualified u/s 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Our Promoter is disqualified u/s 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 due to irregular filings or non-filings done
by various of Promoter Group Companies/ Entities. Due to this reason, he has not been appointed as the
Director or KMP of the Company since April 04, 2019. For details on the same, please refer to the chapter titled
“Our Promoter & Promoter Group Companies” beginning on page no.146 of this Draft Prospectus.

We are dependent on our Promoter, our senior management, directors and key personnel of our Company
for success whose loss could seriously impair the ability to continue to manage and expand business
efficiently.

Our Promoter, Directors, senior management and key managerial personnel collectively have many years of
experience in the industry and are difficult to replace. They provide expertise which enables us to make well
informed decisions in relation to our business and our future prospects. For further details of our Directors and
key managerial personnel, please refer to Section “Our Management” on page 132 of this Draft Prospectus.
Our success largely depends on the continued services and performance of our management and other key
personnel. The loss of service of the Promoters and other senior management could seriously impair the ability
to continue to manage and expand the business efficiently.

Further, the loss of any of the senior management or other key personnel may adversely affect the operations,
finances and profitability of our Company. Any failure or inability of our Company to efficiently retain and
manage its human resources would adversely affect our ability to implement new projects and expand our
business.

Our Company doesn’t own the premises where its registered and corporate office is situated, and leave &
license agreement have been executed for the same. Any termination or dispute in relation to this lease/
rental agreement may have an adverse effect on our business operations and results thereof.

Our Registered office is situated at Swapnshilpa, Behind Aarti Apartment, Vartak Road, Virar (West) — 401303,
Palagar, Maharashtra, India, is a leased premises which we have been taken for 55 months on lease beginning
from 01/09/2021 which is owned by Nitin Vitthalrao Thorave, who is the Promoter of our Company. Our
business operations are also conducted from the said premise. As per the leave & license agreement, the lease is
for a period of 55 months and any non-compliance by us in relation to any term of lease may result in the
termination of the leave & license agreement and consequently we have to vacate the said premises. We also
cannot assure you that lessor will not terminate the leave & license agreement, which would require us to locate
to another premise and may have an adverse effect on our conducting our business operations.

Our intellectual property rights may be infringed upon or we may infringe the intellectual property rights of
third parties.

Our Company has registered for various trademarks under the Trade Marks Act, 1999. For details of our
trademarks, please refer the chapter titled “Government and Other Statutory Approvals” beginning on page
224 of this Draft Prospectus. However, there is no assurance that our Trademark will not be infringed upon.
Depending on whether we are able to discover any such infringement of our Trademark or successfully enforce
our legal rights in the jurisdictions where such infringements may occur, our business and branding may suffer
as a result of any misuse of our trademark. In such circumstances, our reputation and business may be adversely
affected. Further, if we decide to pursue action against such infringements to protect our reputation, it could
result in diversion of our resources and our financial results may be adversely affected. Similarly, we may also
infringe the intellectual property rights of third parties in the use of our Trademark in our operations. Although
we are not aware of any such infringement by us, there is no assurance that we will not infringe or have not
infringed the intellectual property rights of any third party. In the event of any such infringement, we may be
subject to our claims or actions and our business, reputation, financial condition and results of operations may
be adversely affected.

Further, some of our trademarks are registered under the name of Abhi Diagnostic Imagings Private Limited.
Our Company is yet to make an application for changing the name from to “Nidan Laboratories and Healthcare
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Limited”. While filing the application for change of name, if the same is not accepted or if there are oppositions
filed against the trademark application if any, are successful, our company may lose the statutory protection
available to it under the Trade Marks Act, 1999 for such trademarks thereby affecting our business, reputation,
financial condition and results of operations.

Further, our company has made various applications with the Trade Mark Registry, Mumbai to register its
brands. For details of one the same, please refer the chapter titled “Government and Other Statutory
Approvals” beginning on page 224 of this Draft Prospectus. However, the approval for the same is pending to
received. While filing application for registration if the same is not accepted or if there are oppositions filed
against the trademark application if any, are successful, our company may lose the statutory protection available
to it under the Trade Marks Act, 1999 for such trademarks thereby affecting our business, reputation, financial
condition and results of operations.

Certain agreements may be inadequately stamped or may not have been registered or may not have necessary
disclosure as a result of which our operations may be adversely affected.

Few of our agreements may not be stamped adequately or registered or may not have not the necessary
disclosures. The effect of inadequate stamping is that the document is not admissible as evidence in legal
proceedings and parties to that agreement may not be able to legally enforce the same, except after paying a
penalty for inadequate stamping. The effect of non-registration, in certain cases, is to make the document
inadmissible in legal proceedings. Any potential dispute due to non-compliance of local laws relating to stamp
duty and registration may adversely impact the operations of our Company. Further, effect of non-disclosure of
certain necessary points as required under the Contract Act, 1872 (as amended from time to time) and/ or under
any other law, rules, regulations, in certain cases, is to make the document inadmissible in legal proceedings.
Any potential dispute due to non-disclosure of necessary points/ rules/regulations/ law relating to Contract Act,
1872 (as amended from time to time) and/ or under any other law, rules, regulations may adversely impact the
operations of our Company.

Our Company had negative cash flow in recent fiscals, details of which are given below. Sustained negative
cash flow could adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As on June As on March 31,
30, 2021 2021 2020 2019
Net cash from (used in) Operating activities 295.71 446.23 461.82 894.62
Net cash from (used in) Investing activities (130.90) (324.44) (0.88) 99.74
Net cash from (used in) Financing activities (31.34) (131.42) (156.09) (580.74)
Net Cash Flow 133.47 (9.64) 304.84 413.62

Cash flow of a company is a key indicator to show the extent of cash generated from operations to meet its
capital expenditure, pay dividends, repay loans and make new investments without raising finance from external
resources. If we are not able to generate sufficient cash flow, it may adversely affect our business and financial
operations. For further details please refer to the section titled “Financial Statements” and chapter titled
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations” beginning on
page no. 201 and page no. 176 respectively, of this Draft Prospectus.

Our Group Companies have incurred losses in the past and may incur losses in the future.

Our Group Companies have incurred loss in the past. The following table sets forth information on losses
incurred by our Group Companies in the past:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

. . As on March 31,
Name of the Group Companies Particulars 2020 2019 2018
San Trica Realtors Private Limited Profit/(Loss) after tax (105.75) (197.76) | (139.20)
Junnar Sugars Limited Profit/(Loss) after tax 0.0015 0.0006 (0.02)
Tech Built Infrastructure Private Limited Profit/(Loss) after tax (0.05) (0.05) (0.05)
Tech Art Infrastructure Private Limited Profit/(Loss) after tax (0.05) (0.05) (0.05)
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Origin Associates Private Limited Profit/(Loss) after tax (0.05) (0.07) (0.10)

Virar Township Private Limited Profit/(Loss) after tax (0.05) (0.05) (0.05)
Thorave Patil realtors Private Limited Profit/(Loss) after tax (0.08) (0.20) -
Dr. Nitin Thorave Patil Infras and .

Properties Private Limited Profit/(Loss) after tax (0.42) (0.33) (0.31)
'II_'ihr?]:z;/de Patil Abrol Construction Private Profit/(Loss) after tax (0.28) (0.32) (1.53)
Arnala Beach Resort Profit/(Loss) after tax (35.57) (12.01) (16.17)
Dr. Nitin Thorave Proprietary Concern Profit/(Loss) after tax 140.90 140.08 123.73

There can be no assurance that our Group Companies will not incur losses in the future, which may have an
adverse effect on our reputation and business.

We depend on third-parties to provide us our testing equipment and reagents, and any failure to continue to
do so or recall of existing testing equipment and reagents could adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

We depend on third-party vendors and suppliers to procure our testing equipment and reagents and we enter
into lease agreements and rental agreements with fixed term with them. Certain of these agreements require us
to purchase minimum quantity or value of purchases. We cannot assure you that we will be able to continue to
obtain adequate supplies of equipment, reagents and test kits, in a timely manner and without any defects, in the
future. Any disruption in our business may also result in us not meeting our minimum purchase obligations
under these agreements resulting in an event of default and leading to potential disruption to our supply of
equipment or reagents. Any such reductions or interruptions in the supply of equipment or reagents, defects in
reagent and test Kkits and any inability on our part to find alternate sources for the procurement of such items,
may have an adverse effect on our ability to provide our services in a timely or cost effective manner. Further,
the procurement cost of testing equipment and reagents produced outside India may increase due to depreciation
of Indian Rupee, and the suppliers may therefore demand to re-negotiate the supply contracts with us. In the
event of an increase in the price of such items, we cannot assure you that we will be able to correspondingly
increase the price of our services.

In addition, under our lease and reagent supply agreements, the supplier typically has the discretion to terminate
the agreement with written notice in the event of a breach of any material term or condition of such agreement,
including on account of a default in the purchase of a committed amount of reagents, movement of the leased
equipment without prior consent of the manufacturer. Further, the equipment is at all times the exclusive
property of the manufacturer and our Company has rights only as a lessee. In addition, manufacturers may
discontinue the supply of, or recall reagents, test Kits, instruments or equipment which could adversely affect
our operations. Any such recall or termination and consequent removal of the installed equipment can adversely
affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Failure or malfunction of our equipment could adversely affect our ability to conduct our operations.

Our operations are subject to risks inherent in the use of complex medical equipment. We have experienced
routine breakdowns and may experience breakdowns and failures or there could be injury to our employees or
others either because of defects, faulty maintenance or repair, or improper use or lack of timely servicing of our
equipment. Our Company has entered into comprehensive maintenance contracts for which we pay fixed fees
for maintenance of major medical equipment and have not incurred any material costs associated with repair
and maintenance of medical equipment in the past three fiscal years. However, any significant malfunction or
breakdown of our equipment may entail significant repair and maintenance costs and cause disruptions and
delays in our operations. Any injury caused by our medical equipment in our diagnostic centres due to
equipment defects, improper maintenance or improper operation could subject us to liability claims. We cannot
assure you that we would be able to effectively respond to any such events, in a timely manner and at an
acceptable cost, which could lead to an inability to effectively provide our services and, therefore, affect our
business and reputation.

Non-compliance with and changes in any of the applicable laws, rules or regulations, including pricing,
safety, health and environmental laws, may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition and cash flows.
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Our diagnostic centres through which we provide our services are subject to stringent health and safety laws.
We are required to maintain licenses under various health and safety legislations and regulations which, among
others, include registration under the Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulations) Act, 2010 or under
respective State clinical establishment legislation, specifically PCPNDT, as applicable, issued by the
appropriate State authority, authorizations under the Bio-Medical Waste (Management and Handling) Rules,
2016, issued by the respective State Pollution Control Boards, registration for operation of medical diagnostic
x-ray equipment issued by the Atomic Energy Regulatory Board and no objection certificates for the radioactive
substances which are in our possession and covered under the applicable Shops and Establishments Acts, in
Mumbai and Pune. Additionally, our diagnostic centres also possess licenses to operate X-ray equipment, such
as the bone densitometer, mammography machine and computer tomography (CT) scanners, as required under
the Atomic Energy Rules.

In addition to this, our Company and our diagnostic centres are also required to obtain trade licenses as issued
by appropriate local municipalities under applicable local laws, relevant registrations under the Employees’
State Insurance Act, 1948, the Contract Labour (Registration and Abolition) Act, 1970, Maharashtra Tax on
Profession Trade, Calling and Employment Act, 1987 and a shops and establishments registration, in the states
that we operate. Our Company and all diagnostic centre’s are also required to obtain Shops and Establishments
under the Maharashtra Shops and Establishments Act, 1948. As on the date of the Draft Prospectus, our
Company was not required to obtain the Shop and Establishments for our registered office and for certain
diagnostic centres.

For not making an application with the respective authorities, we may be penalized for non-compliance with the
aforementioned laws for which we have not obtained the requisite Licenses.

For some of our diagnostic centres we are also required, depending on the height and the proportion of the
premises we occupy, to obtain a fire no objection certificate (“Fire NOC”) from the relevant local authorities.
For certain diagnostic centres located in multistoried buildings, we occupy part of the building with other
tenants occupying the balance building. As on the date of the Draft Prospectus, our Company was not required
to obtain a Fire NOC for certain diagnostic centres (a) since the height of the building in which such diagnostic
centres are located is less than the height statutorily prescribed for obtaining Fire NOCs; or (b) because we
occupy only a part of the building even though the height of the building is more than the height statutorily
prescribed for obtaining Fire NOCs since the owner of such building is required to obtain the Fire NOCs. While
we have ensured that and our staff is well versed with the fire safety protocols and all our diagnostic centres are
equipped with the requisite fire-fighting equipment. However, the relevant local authorities may also institute
any civil or criminal actions (including the temporary sealing of the premises) for any non-compliance of this
requirement at this aforesaid location which may in turn interrupt our operations or collections at this diagnostic
centre, and consequently our results of operations, financial conditions and cash flows.

Our business operations are primarily conducted on premises leased from third parties (including certain related
parties). The owners of these premises are required to obtain, depending on the date of completion of
construction of the premises, an occupancy certificate. As on the date of the Draft Prospectus, the owners for
certain locations in which our diagnostic centres are located have not applied for an occupancy certificate. We
cannot assure you that such owners will apply for or obtain the occupancy certificate for such premises in a
timely manner or at all. Any non-possession of occupancy certificates may result in the functional agencies not
providing a regular connections for electricity, water, drainage and sewerage or imposition of higher property
tax and water and electricity charges.

If a determination is made that we are in violation of any of the applicable laws, rules or regulations, including
conditions in the permits required for our operations, we may be subjected to regulatory sanctions, have to pay
fines, modify or discontinue our operations, incur additional operating costs or make capital expenditures which
would adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial position and cash flows. Uncertainty in the
applicability, interpretation or implementation of any amendment to, or change in, applicable laws, rules or
regulations or policies, may also adversely affect the viability of our current business or restrict our ability to
grow our business in the future. Further, the adoption of stricter applicable laws and regulations, stricter
interpretations of existing laws, increased governmental enforcement of laws or other developments in the
future may require that we make additional capital expenditures, incur additional expenses or take other actions
in order to remain compliant and maintain our current operations. Complying with, and changes in, these laws
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and regulations or terms of approval may increase our compliance costs and adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

We are also subject to the laws and regulations governing relationships with employees in such areas as
minimum wage, gratuity, provident fund and maximum working hours, overtime, working conditions, hiring
and termination of employees, contract labour and work permits. There is a risk that we may inadvertently fail
to comply with such regulations, which could lead to enforced shutdowns and other sanctions imposed by the
relevant authorities, as well as the withholding or delay in receipt of regulatory approvals. We cannot assure
you that we will not be involved in future litigation or other proceedings or be held liable in any litigation or
proceedings including in relation to safety, health and environmental matters, the costs of which may be
significant.

Further, some of our permits, licenses and approvals are subject to several conditions and we cannot provide
any assurance that we will be able to continuously meet such conditions or be able to prove compliance with
such conditions to the statutory authorities, which may lead to the cancellation, revocation or suspension of the
relevant permits, licenses or approvals. Any failure by us to apply in time, to renew, maintain or obtain the
required permits, licenses or approvals, or the cancellation, suspension or revocation of any of the permits,
licenses or approvals may result in the interruption of our operations and may have a material adverse effect on
the business. If we fail to comply with all applicable regulations or if the regulations governing our business or
their implementation change, we may be subject to further compliances, increased costs, be subject to penalties
or suffer a disruption in our business activities, any of which could adversely affect our results of operations.
For further details, please see chapters titled “Key Industry Regulations and Policies” and “Government and
Other Key Approvals” at page nos. 115 and 224 respectively of this Draft Prospectus.

We require certain approvals, licenses, registrations and permits for conducting our business and our
inability to obtain, retain or renew them in a timely manner, or at all, may adversely affect our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

We require certain statutory and regulatory approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions, and applications
need to be made at the appropriate stages for our business to operate. We have obtained required license for
carrying our business activity however there can be no assurance that the relevant authorities will issue these
approvals or licenses, or renewals thereof in a timely manner, or at all. As a result, we may not be able to
execute our business plan as planned. An inability to obtain or maintain approvals or licenses required for our
operations may adversely affect our operations. Government approvals, licenses, clearances and consents are
often also subject to numerous conditions, some of which are onerous and may require significant expenditure.
Furthermore, approvals, licenses, clearances, and consents covering the same subject matter are often required
at State Government levels. If we fail to comply, or a regulator claims that we have not complied, with these
conditions, we may not be able to commence or continue with work. For further information on various
approvals or licenses required in connection with our operations, please see the section entitled “Government
and other Statutory Approvals” and “Key Industry Regulations And Policies” on page no. 224 and 115
respectively of this Draft Prospectus.

We may not be successful in implementing our business strategies.

The success of our business depends substantially on our ability to implement our business strategies effectively
or at all. Even though we have successfully executed our business strategies in the past, there is no guarantee
that we can implement the same on time and within the estimated budget going forward, or that we will be able
to meet the expectations of our targeted customers. Changes in regulations applicable to us may also make it
difficult to implement our business strategies. Failure to implement our business strategies would have a
material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

We depend on skilled personnel and if we are unable to recruit and retain skilled personnel, our ability to
operate or grow our business could be affected.

Our services are skilled and creative manpower intensive and we engage a considerable number of skilled
personnel every year to sustain our growth. Further, we spend significant time and resources in training the
manpower we hire. Our success is substantially dependent on our ability to recruit, train and retain skilled
manpower. High attrition and competition for manpower may limit our ability to attract and retain the skilled
manpower necessary for our future growth requirements. We cannot assure you that skilled manpower will
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continue to be available in sufficient numbers suitable to our requirements or that we will be able to grow our
workforce in a manner consistent with our growth objectives, which may affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.

The diagnostics industry in India is highly competitive with several companies present in the market, and
therefore it is challenging to improve market share and profitability. Our competitors include diagnostic
healthcare service providers in India, hospital-based laboratories, independent clinical laboratories, other
smaller-scale providers of diagnostic services (with more established local and regional presence in certain
geographies) such as pathology, radiology laboratories and preventive care providers as well as international
service providers, which may establish and expand their operations in future. We compete on the breadth of our
test offerings, the geographical reach of our network, our ability to accurately process specimens and report data
in a timely manner and our customer relationships. Some of our competitors may have greater financial,
research and development, marketing and other resources, broader service offerings, more experience in
obtaining regulatory approvals or greater geographic reach or economies of scale. Further, the diagnostics
industry is highly fragmented, the lack of regulations and low entry barriers allow a multitude of organised and
unorganised players to compete in the market.

Also, the pricing-related competition may intensify in the near future which may have an adverse effect on the
results of our operations, including our profit margins. Increase in the number of comparable diagnostic
healthcare facilities may exert additional pricing pressure on some or all of our services. The manufacturers of
laboratory equipment and test kits may also enter the diagnostic industry by marketing point-of-care laboratory
equipment to physicians and by selling self-test kits, which may be more convenient to the patients and cheaper
than our services. If we are unable to compete effectively, our business could decline or contract and our
business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Any inadequacy in collection of, or failure or delay in the delivery of, specimens to our processing
laboratories could compromise or destroy the integrity of such specimens, which could adversely affect our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

The process of collecting specimens is highly dependent on the skill and performance of our front-end
employees. Any losses, errors or delays in the specimen collection, preparation, labelling and storage process
could result in us not being able to effectively provide our services and adversely affect our business and
reputation.

The timely pickup, transportation and delivery of specimens depend on several factors beyond our control,
including weather and road conditions. Any disruptions in transportation services on account of natural
disasters, strikes, lock-outs, terrorism, inadequacies in the road or air infrastructure, weather related problems,
or other events could affect our ability to receive specimens and generate test results in a timely manner. For
example, the lockdown due to the outbreak of COVID-19 has marginally affected the process and timeliness of
collection and delivery of specimens. While most of our diagnostic centres are serviced through our in-house
logistics team, we also rely on the services of third-party phlebotomists and logistics providers including for
collection of COVID-19 samples. As a result, we may experience loss of specimens, delays and inefficiencies,
including mislabeling of specimen, which are not within our control. If we are unable to deliver or receive
specimens at our processing laboratories in a timely manner, their integrity as well as the outcome of results
may be compromised, or the reporting of results of tests to patients may be delayed, which could adversely
affect our reputation. Further, specimens may be lost, damaged or contaminated due to mishandling while in
transit. In the event specimens are lost, destroyed, damaged or contaminated, we may incur additional costs,
such as the cost of re-administering tests or from delays in the generation of critical test results. The occurrence
of any such events could adversely affect our reputation, business, results of operations and financial condition.

Further, certain agreements we entered into with the third-party phlebotomists and logistics providers include
clauses for termination without cause with advance notice. In the event the services provided by these third-
party phlebotomists and logistics providers are terminated, we may not be able to find replace in a timely
manner, or at all, which may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We operate in a highly competitive business environment, and our inability to compete effectively could have
an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
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The diagnostics industry in India is highly competitive with several companies present in the market, and
therefore it is challenging to improve market share and profitability. Our competitors include diagnostic
healthcare service providers in India, hospital-based laboratories, independent clinical laboratories, other
smaller-scale providers of diagnostic services (with more established local and regional presence in certain
geographies) such as pathology, radiology laboratories and preventive care providers as well as international
service providers, which may establish and expand their operations in future. We compete on the breadth of our
test offerings, the geographical reach of our network, our ability to accurately process specimens and report data
in a timely manner and our customer relationships. Some of our competitors may have greater financial,
research and development, marketing and other resources, broader service offerings, more experience in
obtaining regulatory approvals or greater geographic reach or economies of scale. Further, the diagnostics
industry is highly fragmented, the lack of regulations and low entry barriers allow a multitude of organised and
unorganised players to compete in the market.

Also, the pricing-related competition may intensify in the near future which may have an adverse effect on the
results of our operations, including our profit margins. Increase in the number of comparable diagnostic
healthcare facilities may exert additional pricing pressure on some or all of our services. The manufacturers of
laboratory equipment and test kits may also enter the diagnostic industry by marketing point-of-care laboratory
equipment to physicians and by selling self-test kits, which may be more convenient to the patients and cheaper
than our services. If we are unable to compete effectively, our business could decline or contract and our
business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Implementation of pricing policies by the Government or other authorities could adversely affect our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

The prices that we charge for our services could become subject to recommended or maximum fees set by the
Government or other authorities. For example, the government could introduce “price lists” for services that
could be mandatory or, even if not mandatory, result in guidance for the prices we charge for our diagnostic
healthcare services. Further, we are not empanelled diagnostic centre under the Central Government Health
Scheme (“CGHS”) and hence we are not entitled to enjoy our services at CGHS rates and/or CGHS
recommended rates. However, in future, if we get our diagnostic centre’s empanelled, then we may enjoy the
benefits at a future date. The implementation of such policies and the restriction under CGHS affecting the
prices we charge could, in effect, limit our ability to charge customers higher prices for our services, which may
have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Failure to introduce new tests, services and technologies or acquire new or improved equipment could
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

The diagnostic healthcare services industry is subject to constant innovations in, and improvements to tests and
services, processes and technologies. In order to maintain our position in our industry, we must continue to
anticipate and keep abreast of the demands and needs of our patients through investing in technologies and
equipment to develop new tests and services and improve existing tests and services. If we fail to anticipate
trends in the industry, or we are not able to introduce or develop new tests, services and technologies before or
at least concurrently with our competitors and at competitive prices, we may consequently be unable to deliver
our diagnostic healthcare services involving new tests, services or technologies in an efficient and effective
manner. As a result, our business, results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected.

In addition, technological advancement could lead to the development of more cost-effective technologies or
non-invasive diagnostic healthcare tests which are more convenient or less expensive than the tests that we
offer. The introduction of such technology and its subsequent use by our existing and potential patients could
lead to a decline in the demand for our services. Advances in technology may lead to the development of more
cost-effective tests that can be performed outside a commercial clinical laboratory, such as tests that can be
performed by hospitals in their own laboratories, point-of-care tests that can be performed by doctors in their
surgeries, or home-testing that can be performed by patients or other non-medical professionals themselves,
such as pregnancy and diabetes tests. In addition, manufacturers of laboratory equipment and test kits could
seek to increase their sales by marketing point-of-care laboratory equipment to physicians and by selling test
kits approved for home use to both physicians and patients. Increased testing by physicians in their offices and
home use by patients could affect the market for our services and, therefore, adversely affect our business,
results of operations and financial condition.
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We rely on our information technology systems and third-party platform for the operation of our business
and any disruption to our systems and/or third-party platform could adversely affect our business and
reputation and result in litigation.

We rely on information technology systems and third-party website to support our business processes, including
for placing order for tests by our customers, conducting tests, transmission of testing results, billing services,
quality control, tracking logistics, human resources, finance and other patient service functions. As a result, our
business depends on the capacity and reliability of third-party vendors whom we engage and will continue to do
so. Interruptions in these technology systems and/or the third-party website, whether due to fire, power loss,
telecommunications failures, system failures or errors, human errors, malicious software, physical or electronic
break-ins, denial-of-service attacks, or otherwise could affect the availability of our services and prevent or
hinder the ability of consumers to access our services. For example, from time to time, we have suffered
interruptions in our technology systems, for short durations at one or more of our centres due
telecommunications failures. Effective response to such interruptions will require effort and diligence on the
part of our third-party vendors and employees to avoid any adverse effect to our business operations. Sustained
system failures or interruption of our information technology systems (including systems of third-party vendors)
in one or more of our diagnostic centre operations could disrupt our ability to process laboratory requisitions,
perform testing, provide test results in a timely manner and bill the appropriate party. The occurrence of any
such events could adversely affect our business, interrupt our operations, subject us to increased operating costs
and expose us to litigation.

Cyber threats and non-compliance with and changes in privacy laws and regulations may adversely affect
our business, results of operations and financial condition and cash flows.

We may face cyber threats such as (i) phishing and trojans - targeting constituents, wherein fraudsters send
unsolicited mails to the constituents seeking account sensitive information or to infect their systems to search
and attempt ex-filtration of account sensitive information; (ii) hacking — wherein attackers seek to hack into our
website and portal with the primary intention of causing reputational damage to us by disrupting services; (iii)
data theft — wherein cyber criminals may attempt to intrude into our network with the intention of stealing our
data or information; and (iv) advanced persistent threat — a network attack in which an unauthorised person
gains access to our network and remains undetected for a long period of time with an intention to steal our data
or information rather than to cause damage to our network or organization.

Our systems are also potentially vulnerable to data security breaches, whether by our employees, or others that
may expose sensitive data to unauthorised persons. We process and transfer data, including personal
information, financial information and other confidential data provided to us by constituents. Although we
maintain systems and procedures to prevent unauthorised access and other security breaches, it is possible that
unauthorised individuals could improperly access our systems, or improperly obtain or disclose sensitive data
that we process or handle. Data security breaches could lead to the loss of intellectual property or could lead to
the public exposure of personal information (including sensitive financial and personal information) of
constituents. Any such security breaches or compromises of technology systems could result in damage to our
reputation, institution of legal proceedings against us and potential imposition of penalties, which may have an
adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Further, we must comply with privacy laws and regulations with respect to the use, storage and disclosure of
protected patients’ health information, as well as laws pertaining to the electronic transmission of such
information, such as the Information Technology (Reasonable security practices and procedures and sensitive
personal data on information) Rules, 2011 (“IT Rules”). In the ordinary course of our business, we receive
certain personal information about our customers and their patients, including by electronic means. Under the
provisions of the IT Rules, we are required to and we have ensured security of all personal data collected by us,
formulated a privacy policy and subsequently published such policy on our website. Accordingly, we depend
upon our internal information technology system for the storage and transmission of such confidential
information. A compromise in our security systems (including systems of third-party information technology
vendors) that results in customer or patient personal information being obtained by unauthorised persons or our
failure to comply with security requirements for use, storage and transmission of sensitive information could
adversely affect our reputation with our customers and result in litigation against s or the imposition of penalties
and fines, all of which may adversely impact our business, results of operations, financial condition and
liquidity. Further, new requirements for additional security and protection of the privacy of patient information
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could prove technically difficult, time-consuming or expensive to implement. Failure to comply with privacy
laws and regulations may adversely impact our business and reputation and result in litigation.

If we are unable to establish and maintain an effective internal controls and compliance system, over
financial reporting, our reputation could be adversely affected.

We take reasonable steps to maintain appropriate procedures for compliance and disclosure and to maintain
effective internal controls over our financial reporting so that we produce reliable financial reports and prevent
financial fraud. As risks evolve and develop, internal controls must be reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Maintaining such internal controls requires human diligence and compliance and is therefore subject to lapses in
judgment and failures that result from human error. Any lapses in judgment or failures that result from human
error can affect the accuracy of our financial reporting, resulting in a loss of investor confidence and a decline in
the price of our equity shares.

Our Promoters have given personal guarantees in relation to certain debt facilities provided to our Company
by our lenders. In event of default on the debt obligations, the personal guarantees may be invoked thereby
adversely affecting our Promoters/ Directors ability to manage the affairs of our Company and consequently
this may impact our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

Some of the debt facilities provided to our Company by our lenders stipulate that the facility shall be secured by
a personal guarantee of our Promoters. In event of default on the debt obligations, the personal guarantees may
be invoked thereby adversely affecting our Promoters/ Directors / Key Managerial Personnel(s) ability to
manage the affairs of our Company and consequently this may impact our business, prospects, financial
condition and results of operations. Further, in an event our Promoters withdraws or terminates his/their
guarantee/s or security, the lenders for such facilities may ask for alternate guarantee/s or securities or for
repayment of amounts outstanding under such facilities or even terminate such facilities. We may not be
successful in procuring guarantee/s or collateral securities satisfactory to the lender and as a result may need to
repay outstanding amounts under such facilities or seek additional sources of capital, which could adversely
affect our financial condition. For more information, please see the chapter titled “Statement of Financial
Indebtedness” beginning on page no. 207 of this Draft Prospectus.

We have entered into certain related party transactions and may continue to do so.

We have entered into related party transactions with our Promoters, Promoter Group, Its Group Companies/
Entities, Directors and Other Associates. While we believe that all such transactions have been conducted on the
arms length basis, however it is difficult to ascertain whether more favorable terms would have been achieved
had such transactions been entered with unrelated parties. Furthermore, it is likely that we will continue to enter
into related party transactions in the near future. For further details regarding the related party transactions, see
the disclosure on related party transactions contained in the financial statements included in this Draft
Prospectus and, also see the section “Annexure 32: Statement of Related Party Transactions” on page no. 199
of this Draft Prospectus.

Our Company may require additional capital resources to achieve our expansion plans.

The rate of our expansion will depend to an extent on the availability of adequate debt and equity capital.
Further, the actual expenditure incurred may be higher than current estimates owing to but not limited to,
implementation delays or cost overruns. We may, therefore, primarily try to meet such cost overruns through
our internal generations and in case if the same is not adequate, we may have to raise additional funds by way of
additional term debt from banks/ financial institutions and unsecured loans, which may have an adverse effect
on our business and results of operations.

We have not received No Objection Certificate from all the lenders of loans to our company.

Our Company has 6 banks that act as “Bankers to the Company”. For details on the same, please refer to the
section titled “General Information” on page no. 48 of this Draft Prospectus. Our company has made an
application with our existing bankers / financial institutions to obtain a “No Objection Certificate” (NOC) from
them. However, we have received NOC from 5 of our Bankers and are yet to obtain the same from them 1
banker, i.e Union Bank Of India Limited.
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Our business is working capital requirements. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flows to allow us
to make required payments on our debt or fund working capital requirements, there may be an adverse effect
on our results of operations.

Our business requires significant amount of working capital including fund requirement for payment for bulk
purchases of various products across different brands and service verticals. Hence, major portion of our working
capital is utilized towards debtors and inventory. The results of operations of our business are dependent on our
ability to effectively manage our inventory and trade receivables. However, if our management fails to manage
our inventory or misjudges expected clients demand or shortage of materials/ products or an accumulation of
excess inventory or accurately evaluate the credit worthiness of our clients, it may lead to bad debts, delays in
recoveries and / or write-offs which could lead to a liquidity crunch, thereby adversely affecting our business
and results of operations. A liquidity crunch may also result in increased working capital borrowings and,
consequently, higher finance cost which will adversely impact our profitability.

We have a sanctioned limit for working capital of Rs. 3709.11 Lakhs from the existing bankers / financial
institutions including unsecured loan from the Promoters, Group Companies, Directors and Relatives. Our
growing scale and expansion, if any, may result in increase in the quantum of working capital. Our inability to
maintain sufficient cash flow, credit facility and other sourcing of funding, in a timely manner, or at all, to meet
the requirement of working capital or pay out debts, could adversely affect our financial condition and result of
our operations.

Our insurance coverage may not be sufficient or adequate in protecting us against all or certain operating
hazards and from all or certain losses and this may have an adverse impact on the financial conditions of the
business.

As on the date of this Draft Prospectus, Our Company has availed of various insurance coverage. We believe
that the insurance coverage taken by us will protect our products/ business and from any damages or losses that
we may suffer in the future. Further, our insurance coverage would be reasonably adequate to cover the normal
risks associated with the operation of our businesses. However, we cannot assure you that any claim under the
insurance policies maintained by us will be honoured fully, in part or on time, or that we have taken out
sufficient insurance to cover all our losses. In addition, our insurance coverage expires from time to time. We
may or may not apply for the renewal of our insurance coverage in the normal course of our business, but we
cannot assure you that such renewals will be granted in a timely manner, at acceptable cost or at all. To the
extent that we suffer loss or damage, or successful assertion of one or more large claims against us for events
for which we are not insured, or for which we did not obtain or maintain insurance, or which is not covered by
insurance, exceeds our insurance coverage or where our insurance claims are rejected, the loss would have to be
borne by us and our results of operations, financial performance and cash flows could be adversely affected.

We are dependent upon key suppliers for supplying the products and any disruption in their supply could
disrupt our business and adversely affect our financial results.

For financial year ending June 30, 2021, our top 10 suppliers have accounted approximately 35% of our total
purchases/ cost of goods, respectively. We purchase our products from various suppliers on either pre-agreed
rates or flexible rates linked to the prevailing market benchmark. However, we do not enter into any long term
agreements with our suppliers and our arrangements with them are on short-term and spot basis. Hence, there is
no assurance that in future also we will be able to source our products on timely basis and execute our orders on
time or find alternative resources to source our products. Further, if we are unable to source our products at
commercially acceptable prices, or at all, it may affect our ability to fulfill our supply commitments, or to fulfill
them in an economical manner, which will have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Our ability to attract individual patients is largely dependent on the disposable income and increasing
general health awareness of India’s general population, which could decline due to a variety of factors.

Our key source of income is from individual patients. Our individual consumer business contributed to 90% of
our revenue from operations for June 30, 2021. The growth of these types of customers is dependent on brand
recognition, wider acceptance of our business in the communities in which we operate and our ability to
compete effectively within our industry, all of which we may be negatively affected by a wide variety of
reasons. For example, individual decisions regarding when to access healthcare services may be impaired by the
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absence of a developed health insurance sector or the lack of appropriate government programs to cover the
costs of healthcare. Moreover, given the small proportion of people in India presently with health insurance,
customers in India generally are responsible for all or part of the cost of diagnostic healthcare services, which
means that a decrease in disposable income that can be allocated for healthcare services, or even the perception
thereof, such as during times of economic downturn, can lead to a reduction in individuals’ expenditures for
healthcare services. In addition, we cannot assure you that the current increasing trend in health awareness and
demand for preventive healthcare services will continue, and it may even reverse. Any of the above reasons
may affect our ability to maintain or increase growth in walk-in customers, which may adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Delays in the service to clients may result in an adverse impact on our reputation, business, financial
condition and prospects.

Factors beyond our control or any unforeseen events may cause our services to be delayed. Any delay in such
case may result in an adverse impact on our reputation, business, financial condition and prospects. Moreover,
any significant delay could result in a delayed payment from clients, additional funding requirements, cost
overruns. This may have an adverse impact on our reputation and could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and prospects.

Employee misconduct, errors or fraud could expose us to business risks or losses that could adversely affect
our business prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

Employee misconduct, errors or frauds could expose us to business risks or losses, including regulatory
sanctions, penalties and serious harm to our reputation. Such employee misconduct includes breach in security
requirements, misappropriation of funds, hiding unauthorized activities, failure to observe our stringent
operational standards and processes, and improper use of confidential information. It is not always possible to
detect or deter such misconduct, and the precautions we take to prevent and detect such misconduct may not be
effective. In addition, losses caused on account of employee misconduct or misappropriation of petty cash
expenses and advances may not be recoverable, which we may result in write-off of such amounts and thereby
adversely affecting our results of operations. Our employees may also commit errors that could subject us to
claims and proceedings for alleged negligence, as well as regulatory actions in which case, our reputation,
business prospects, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

We are subject to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations which could have a material and adverse
effect on our results of operations and financial conditions.

We have recently started exporting our products in some countries and receive sale proceeds against such export
sales in foreign currency. Changes in value of currencies with respect to the Rupee may cause fluctuations in
our operating results expressed in Rupees. The exchange rate between the Rupee and other currencies is
variable and may continue to fluctuate in future. Fluctuations in the exchange rates may affect our Company to
the extent of cost of sales in foreign currency terms. Any adverse or unforeseen fluctuations with respect to the
unhedged exchange rate of any foreign currency for Indian Rupees may affect our Company’s results of
operations.

Delay in raising funds from the IPO could adversely impact the implementation schedule.

The proposed expansion, as detailed in the section titled "Objects of the Issue" is to be mainly funded from the
proceeds of this IPO. We have not identified any alternate source of funding and hence any failure or delay on
our part to mobilize the required resources or any shortfall in the Issue proceeds may delaythe implementation
schedule. We therefore, cannot assure that we would be able to execute the expansion process within the given
timeframe, or within the costs as originally estimated by us. Any time overrun, or cost overrun may adversely
affect our growth plans and profitability.

The requirements of being a public listed company may strain our resources and impose additional
requirements.

With the increased scrutiny of the affairs of a public listed company by shareholders, regulators and the public
at large, we will incur significant legal, accounting, corporate governance and other expenses that we did not
incur in the past. We will also be subject to the provisions of the listing agreements signed with the Stock
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Exchange(s) which require us to file unaudited financial results on a half yearly basis. In order to meet our
financial control and disclosure obligations, significant resources and management supervision will be required.
As a result, management’s attention may be diverted from other business concerns, which could have an
adverse effect on our business and operations. There can be no assurance that we will be able to satisfy our
reporting obligations and/or readily determine and report any changes to our results of operations in a timely
manner as other listed companies. In addition, we will need to increase the strength of our management team
and hire additional legal and accounting staff with appropriate public company experience and accounting
knowledge and we cannot assure that we will be able to do so in a timely manner.

The Company has not appointed any independent agency for the appraisal of the proposed Project.

The Project, for which we intend to use our Issue proceeds as mentioned in the objects of the Issue, has not been
appraised by any bank or financial institution. The total cost of Project is our own estimates based on current
conditions and are subject to changes in external circumstances or costs. Our estimates for total cost of Project
has been based on various quotations received by us from different suppliers and our internal estimates and
which may exceed which may require us to reschedule our Project.

Our Board of Directors and management may change our operating policies and strategies without prior
notice or shareholder approval.

Our Board of Directors and management has the authority to modify certain of our operating policies and
strategies without prior notice (except as required by law) and without shareholder approval. We cannot predict
the effect that any changes to our current operating policies or strategies would have on our business, operating
results and the price of our Equity Shares.

In addition to normal remuneration or benefits and reimbursement of expenses, some of our Directors and
key managerial personnel are interested in our Company to the extent of their shareholding in our Company.

Our Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are interested in our Company to the extent of remuneration paid
to them for services rendered and reimbursement of expenses payable to them. In addition, some of our
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel may also be interested to the extent of their shareholding in our
Company. For further information, see “Capital Structure” and “Our Management” on page nos. 58 and 132,
respectively, of this Draft Prospectus.

There is no monitoring agency appointed by our Company and the deployment of funds are at the discretion
of our Management and our Board of Directors, though it shall be monitored by the Audit Committee.

As per SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to time, appointment of monitoring agency is
required only for Issue size above Rs. 10,000 Lakhs. Since this Issue Size is less than Rs. 10,000 Lakhs, our
Company has not appointed any monitoring agency for this Issue. Hence, we have not appointed a monitoring
agency to monitor the utilization of Issue proceeds. However, the audit committee of our Board will monitor the
utilization of Issue proceeds.

Further, our Company shall inform about material deviations in the utilization of Issue proceeds to the NSE and
shall also simultaneously make the material deviations / adverse comments of the audit committee public.

We propose to utilize the Net Proceeds for purposes identified in the section titled “Objects of the Issue” in
this Draft Prospectus. Any variation in the utilization of the Net Proceeds as disclosed in this Draft
Prospectus shall be subject to certain compliance requirements, including prior Shareholders’ approval.

We propose to utilize the Net Proceeds for purposes identified in the section titled “Objects of the Issue”
beginning on page no. 69 of this Draft Prospectus. The manner deployment and allocation of such funds is
entirely at the discretion of our management and our Board, subject to compliance with the necessary provisions
of the Companies Act.

In accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, we cannot undertake any variation in the utilization
of the Net Proceeds as disclosed in this Draft Prospectus without obtaining the shareholder’s approval through a
special resolution. In the event of any such circumstances that requires us to undertake variation in the disclosed
utilization of the Net Proceeds, we may not be able to obtain the Shareholder’s approval in a timely manner, or

36



at all. Any delay or inability in obtaining such Shareholder’s approval may adversely affect our business or
operations. Further, our Promoter or controlling shareholders would be required to provide an exit opportunity
to the shareholders who do not agree with our proposal to modify the objects of the Issue as prescribed in the
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to time. If our Shareholder’s exercise such exit option,
our business and financial condition could be adversely affected. Therefore, we may not be able to undertake
variation of objects of the Issue to use any unutilized proceeds of the Issue, if any, even if such variation is in
the interest of our Company, which may restrict our ability to respond to any change in our business or financial
condition, and may adversely affect our business and results of operations.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR EQUITY SHARES AND EQUITY SHARE HOLDERS

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

Our Promoters, together with our Promoter Group, will continue to retain majority shareholding in our
Company after the proposed Initial Public Issue, which will allow them to exercise significant control over
us. We cannot assure you that our Promoters and Promoter Group members will always act in the best
interests of the Company.

After the completion of our Initial Public Issue, our Promoters, along with our Promoter Group members, will
hold, approximately 71.22% of our post issue paid up equity capital of our Company. As a result, our Promoters
will continue to exercise significant control over us, including being able to control the composition of our
Board and determine matters requiring shareholder approval or approval of our Board. Our Promoters may take
or block actions with respect to our business, which may conflict with our interests or the interests of our
minority shareholder By exercising their control, our Promoters could delay, defer or cause a change of our
control or a change in our capital structure, delay, defer or cause a merger, consolidation, takeover or other
business combination involving us, discourage or encourage a potential acquirer from making a tender offer or
otherwise attempting to obtain control of our Company. We cannot assure you that our Promoters and Promoter
Group members will always act in our Company’s or your best interests. For further details, please refer to the
chapters titled “Capital Structure" and “Our Promoter, Promoter Group and Group Companies”, beginning
on page no. 69, 146 and 154 respectively, of this Draft Prospectus.

Sale of Equity Shares by our Promoter or other significant shareholder(s) may adversely affect the trading
price of the Equity Shares.

Any instance of disinvestments of equity shares by our Promoters or by other significant shareholder(s) may
significantly affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. Further, our market price may also be adversely
affected even if there is a perception or belief that such sales of Equity Shares might occur.

Any future issuance of Equity Shares may dilute your shareholdings, and sales of the Equity Shares by our
major shareholders may adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

Any future equity issuances by our Company may lead to the dilution of investors’ shareholdings in our
Company. In addition, any sale of substantial Equity Shares in the public market after the completion of this
Issue, including by our major shareholders, or the perception that such sales could occur, could adversely affect
the market price of the Equity Shares and could significantly impair our future ability to raise capital through
offerings of the Equity Shares. We cannot predict what effect, if any, market sales of the Equity Shares held by
the major shareholders of our Company or the availability of these Equity Shares for future sale will have on the
market price of our Equity Shares.

We cannot assure you that we will pay dividend in future.

We have not paid any dividends on our Equity Shares since inception and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be paid in future. The declaration of dividends in the future will be recommended by our Board,
at its sole discretion, and will depend upon our future earnings, financial condition, cash flows, working capital
requirements and capital expenditures. There can be no assurance that we will be able to pay dividend in the
future. Further, we may be restricted by the terms of our debt financing from making dividend payments, in the
event we default in any of the debt repayment installments.

Investors may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on sale of Equity Shares.

Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares
in an Indian company are generally taxable in India. Any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares on a
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54.

55.

56.

stock exchange held for more than 12 months will not be subject to capital gains tax in India if STT has been
paid on the transaction. STT will be levied on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on which the equity
shares are sold. It is pertinent to note that pursuant to the Finance Bill, 2017, it has been proposed, that with
effect from April 1, 2017, this exemption would only be available if the original acquisition of equity shares
was chargeable to STT. The Central Government is expected to, however notify the transactions which would
be exempt from the application of this new amendment. Any gain realized on the sale of equity shares held for
more than 12 months, which are sold other than on a recognized stock exchange and on which no STT has been
paid, will be subject to long term capital gains tax in India. Further, any gain realized on the sale of listed equity
shares held for a period of 12 months or less will be subject to applicable short-term capital gains tax in India.
Capital gains arising from the sale of the equity shares will be exempt from taxation in India in cases where the
exemption is provided under a treaty between India and the country of which the seller is resident, subject to the
availability of certain documents. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India‘s ability to impose tax on
capital gains. As a result, residents of other countries may be liable for tax in India as well as in their own
jurisdiction on a gain upon the sale of the Equity Shares. For more details, please refer to “Statement of Tax
Benefits” on page no. 77 of this Draft Prospectus.

We cannot assure you that our Equity Shares will be listed on the EMERGE Platform of NSE in a timely
manner or at all, which may restrict your ability to dispose of the Equity Shares.

In terms of Chapter 1X of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to time, we are not
required to obtain any in-principle approval from SEBI for listing of our Equity Shares. We have only applied
to NSE to use its name as the Stock Exchange in this Offer Document for listing our Equity Shares on the NSE
EMERGE. Permission for listing of the Equity Shares will be granted only after the Equity Shares offered in
this Issue have been allotted. Approval from NSE will require all relevant documents authorizing the issuing of
the Equity Shares to be submitted to it. There could be a failure or delay in listing the Equity Shares on the NSE
EMERGE. Further, certain procedural and regulatory requirements of SEBI and the Stock Exchanges are
required to be completed before the Equity Shares are listed and trading commences. Trading in the Equity
Shares is expected to commence within 6 Working Days from the Issue Closing Date. However, we cannot
assure you that the trading in the Equity Shares will commence in a timely manner or at all. Any failure or delay
in obtaining the approvals would restrict your ability to dispose off your Equity Shares.

The price of our Equity Shares may be volatile, or an active trading market for our Equity Shares may not
develop.

Prior to this Issue, there has been no public market for our Equity Shares. NNM Securities Private Limited is
acting as Market Maker for the Equity Shares of our Company. However, the trading price of our Equity Shares
may fluctuate after this Issue due to a variety of factors, including our results of operations and the performance
of our business, competitive conditions, general economic, political and social factors, the performance of the
Indian and global economy and significant developments in India’s fiscal regime, volatility in the Indian and
global securities market, performance of our competitors, the Indian Capital Markets, changes in the estimates
of our performance or recommendations by financial analysts and announcements by us or others regarding
contracts, acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures, or capital commitments. In addition, if the stock
markets experience a loss of investor confidence, the trading price of our Equity Shares could decline for
reasons unrelated to our business, financial condition or operating results. The trading price of our Equity
Shares might also decline in reaction to events that affect other companies in our industry even if these events
do not directly affect us. Each of these factors, among others, could materially affect the price of our Equity
Shares. There can be no assurance that an active trading market for our Equity Shares will develop or be
sustained after this Issue, or that the price at which our Equity Shares are initially offered will correspond to the
prices at which they will trade in the market subsequent to this Issue. For further details of the obligations and
limitations of Market Makers, please refer to the section titled “General Information — Details of the Market
Making Arrangement for this Issue” on page no. 48 of this Draft Prospectus.

There may be restrictions on daily/monthly movements in the price of our Equity Shares, which can
adversely affect shareholder’s ability to sell, or the price at which it can sell, Equity Shares at a particular
point of time.

Subsequent to listing, our Company may be subject to a daily circuit breaker imposed on listed companies by all
stock exchanges in India, which does not allow transactions having crossed certain volatility limit in the price of
its Equity Shares. This circuit breaker operates independently of the index-based market-wide circuit breakers
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generally imposed by SEBI on Indian stock exchanges. The percentage limit on our Company’s circuit breaker
is set by the stock exchanges based on certain factors such as the historical volatility in the price and trading
volume of the Equity Shares. The stock exchange is not required to inform us of the percentage limit of the
circuit breaker from time to time and may change it without our knowledge. This circuit breaker, if imposed,
would effectively limit the upward and downward movements in the price of the Equity Shares. As a result of
this circuit breaker, we cannot assure that the shareholders will be able to sell the Equity Shares at desired prices
at any particular time.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS

57.

58.

59.

60.

Any changes in the regulatory framework could adversely affect our operations and growth prospects.

The company is subject to various regulations and policies. For details see section titled “Key Industry
Regulations” beginning on page no. 115 of this Draft Prospectus. The company’s current businesses and
prospects could be materially adversely affected by changes in any of these regulations and policies, including
the introduction of new laws, policies or regulations or changes in the interpretation or application of existing
laws, policies and regulations. There can be no assurance that it will succeed in obtaining all requisite
regulatory approvals in the future for its operations or that compliance issues will not be raised in respect of its
operations, either of which could have a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition and results
of operations.

Our business is subject to a significant number of tax regimes and changes in legislation governing the rules
implementing them or the regulator enforcing them in any one of those jurisdictions could negatively and
adversely affect our results of operations.

The revenues recorded, and income earned is taxed on differing bases, including net income actually earned, net
income deemed earned and revenue-based tax withholding. The final determination of the tax liabilities
involves the interpretation of local tax laws as well as the significant use of estimates and assumptions
regarding the scope of future operations and results achieved and the timing and nature of income earned, and
expenditures incurred. Changes in the operating environment, including changes in tax laws, could impact the
determination of the tax liabilities of our Company for any year.

The nationalized Goods and Services Tax (GST) regimes proposed by the Government of India may have
material impact on our operations.

The Government of India has proposed a comprehensive national goods and service tax (GST) regime that will
combine taxes and levies by the Central and State Governments into a unified rate structure. Given the limited
liability of information in the public domain covering the GST we are unable to provide/ measure the impact
this tax regime may have on our operations.

Significant differences exist between Indian GAAP and other accounting principles, such as US GAAP and
IFRS, which may be material to investors’ assessments of our Company's financial condition. Our failure to
successfully adopt IFRS may have an adverse effect on the price of our Equity Shares. The proposed
adoption of IFRS could result in our financial condition and results of operations appearing materially
different than under Indian GAAP.

Our financial statements, including the financial statements provided in this Draft Prospectus, are prepared in
accordance with Indian GAAP. We have not attempted to quantify the impact of IFRS or U.S. GAAP on the
financial data included in this Draft Prospectus, nor do we provide a reconciliation of our financial statements to
those of U.S. GAAP or IFRS. U.S. GAAP and IFRS differ in significant respects from Indian GAAP. For
details, see “Presentation of Financial, Industry and Market Data” on page no. 14 of this Draft Prospectus.
Accordingly, the degree to which the Indian GAAP financial statements included in this Draft Prospectus will
provide meaningful information is entirely dependent on the reader's level off amiliarity with Indian accounting
practices. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian accounting practices on the financial disclosures
presented in this Draft Prospectus should accordingly be limited.

India has decided to adopt the “Convergence of its existing standards with IFRS” and not the “International
Financial Reporting Standards” (“IFRS”), which was announced by the MCA, through the press note dated
January 22, 2010. These “IFRS based / synchronized Accounting Standards” are referred to in India as IND
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61.

62.

63.

(AS). Public companies in India, including our Company, may be required to prepare annual and interim
financial statements under IND (AS). The MCA, through a press release dated February 25, 2011, announced
that it will implement the converged accounting standards in a phased manner after various issues, including tax
related issues, are resolved. Further, MCA Notification dated February 16, 2015, has provided an exemption to
the Companies proposing to list their shares on the SME Exchange as per Chapter IX of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations and hence the adoption of IND (AS) by a SME exchange listed company is voluntary. Accordingly,
we have made no attempt to quantify or identify the impact of the differences between Indian GAAP and IFRS
or to quantify the impact of the difference between Indian GAAP and IFRS as applied to its financial
statements. There can be no assurance that the adoption of IND-AS will not affect our reported results of
operations or financial condition. Any failure to successfully adopt IND-AS may have an adverse effect on the
trading price of our Equity Shares. Currently, it is not possible to quantify whether our financial results will
vary significantly due to the convergence to IND (AS), given that the accounting principles laid down in the
IND (AS) are to be applied to transactions and balances carried in books of accounts as on the date of the
applicability of the converged standards (i.e., IND (AS) and for future periods.

Moreover, if we volunteer for transition to IND (AS) reporting, the same may be hampered by increasing
competition and increased costs for the relatively small number of IND (AS)-experienced accounting personnel
available as more Indian companies begin to prepare IND (AS) financial statements. Any of these factors
relating to the use of converged Indian Accounting Standards may adversely affect our financial condition.

Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law that limits our ability to
attract foreign investors, which may adversely impact the market price of the Equity Shares.

Under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between non-residents
and residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the pricing guidelines and
reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are sought to be transferred, is not
in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or fall under any of the exceptions
referred to above, then the prior approval of the RBI will be required. Additionally, shareholders who seek to
convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into foreign currency and repatriate that foreign
currency from India will require a no objection / tax clearance certificate from the income tax authority. There
can be no assurance that any approval required from the RBI or any other government agency can be obtained
on any particular terms or at all.

Instability in financial markets could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.

The Indian economy and financial markets are significantly influenced by worldwide economic, financial and
market conditions. Any financial turmoil, especially in the United States of America or Europe, may have a
negative impact on the Indian economy. Although economic conditions differ in each country, investors’
reactions to any significant developments in one country can have adverse effects on the financial and market
conditions in other countries. A loss in investor confidence in the financial systems, particularly in other
emerging markets, may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets.

The global financial turmoil, an outcome of the sub-prime mortgage crisis which originated in the United States
of America, led to a loss of investor confidence in worldwide financial markets. Indian financial markets have
also experienced the contagion effect of the global financial turmoil, evident from the sharp decline in NIFTY,
NSE’s benchmark index. Any prolonged financial crisis may have an adverse impact on the Indian economy
and us, thereby resulting in a material and adverse effect on our business, operations, financial condition,
profitability and price of our Equity Shares.

Conditions in the Indian securities market and stock exchanges may affect the price and liquidity of our
Equity Shares.

Indian stock exchanges, which are smaller and more volatile than stock markets in developed economies, have
in the past, experienced problems which have affected the prices and liquidity of listed securities of Indian
companies. These problems include temporary exchange closures to manage extreme market volatility, broker
defaults, settlement delays and strikes by brokers. In addition, the governing bodies of the Indian stock
exchanges have from time to time restricted securities from trading, limited price movements and restricted
margin requirements. Further, disputes have occurred on occasion between listed companies and the Indian
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64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

stock exchanges and other regulatory bodies that, in some cases, have had a negative effect on market
sentiment. If similar problems occur in the future, the market price and liquidity of the Equity Shares could be
adversely affected. Further, a closure of, or trading stoppage on, either of the Stock Exchanges could adversely
affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by a domestic or international rating agency could adversely affect
our Company's business.

Any adverse revisions to India's credit ratings for domestic and international debt by domestic or international
rating agencies may adversely affect our Company's ability to raise additional financing, and the interest rates
and other commercial terms at which such additional financing is available. This could harm our Company's
business and financial performance and ability to obtain financing for capital expenditures.

Natural calamities (Act of God) and force majeure events may have a negative impact on the Indian
economy and cause our business to suffer.

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, a tsunami, floods and drought in the past few
years. These natural disasters may cause significant interruption to our operations, and damage to the
environment that could have a material adverse impact on us. The extent and severity of these natural disasters
determines their impact on the Indian economy. Further prolonged spells of deficient or abnormal rainfall or
other natural calamities in the future could have a negative impact on the Indian economy, adversely affecting
our business and the price of the Equity Shares.

Terrorist attacks, civil unrests and other acts of violence in India and around the region could adversely
affect the markets, resulting in loss of consumer confidence and adversely affect the business, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Terrorist attacks, civil unrests and other acts of violence or war in India and around the region may adversely
affect worldwide financial markets and result in a loss of consumer confidence and ultimately adversely affect
the business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. Political tensions could create a
perception that an investment in Indian companies involves higher degrees of risk and on the business and price
of the Equity Shares.

Civil disturbances, extremities of weather, regional conflicts and other political instability may have adverse
effects on our operations and financial performance.

Certain events that are beyond the company’s control such as earthquake, fire, floods and similar natural
calamities may cause interruptions in the business operations. The operations and financial results and the
market price and liquidity of the equity shares may be affected by changes in Indian Government policy or
taxation or social, ethnic, political, economic or other adverse developments in or affecting India. In addition,
any political instability in India may adversely affect the Indian economy and the Indian securities markets in
general, which could also affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

In future the company may depend on banks and financial institutions and other sources for meeting its
short and medium term financial requirements.

Any delay in the disbursal of funds from these bodies can act as a bottleneck to the project execution
capabilities and thereby its results of operations. The company cannot assure that it will be able to do so on
commercially reasonable terms. Any increase in interest expense may have a material adverse effect on its
business prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

Increases in interest rates may affect the results of operations.

Currently, the company does not have any debt, but it cannot be assured that it will not incur indebtedness with
a floating rate of interest in the future. As such, increases in interest rates may adversely affect the cost of future
borrowings.

The company has not entered into any interest rate hedging or swaps transactions. It cannot be assured to the
prospective investor that the company, if it does not enter into any interest rate hedging or swap transactions,
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70.

will be able to do so on commercially reasonable terms, or that any of such agreements will protect the
company fully against interest rate risk. Any increase in interest expense may have an adverse impact on its
business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

We cannot guarantee the accuracy or completeness of facts and other statistics with respect to India, the
Indian economy and trading industry contained in the Draft Prospectus.

While facts and other statistics in this Draft Prospectus relating to India, the Indian economy and the Trading
and Distribution industry has been based on various publications and reports from agencies that we believe are
reliable, we cannot guarantee the quality or reliability of such materials. While we have taken reasonable care in
the reproduction of such information, industry facts and other statistics have not been prepared or independently
verified by us or any of our respective affiliates or advisors and, therefore we make no representation as to their
accuracy or completeness. These facts and other statistics include the facts and statistics included in the chapter
titled ‘Industry Overview’ beginning on page no. 80 of this Draft Prospectus. Due to possibly flawed or
ineffective data or discrepancies between published information and market practice and other problems, the
statistics herein may be inaccurate or may not be comparable to statistics produced elsewhere and we have
placed our reliance on the report as published by the respective agencies/ authorities. Further, there is no
assurance that they are stated or compiled on the same basis or with the same degree of accuracy, as the case
may be, elsewhere.
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SECTION IV- INTRODUCTION

THE ISSUE

Present Issue in terms of this Draft Prospectus:

Particulars

No. of Equity Shares

Equity Shares offered

40,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each fully paid of the
Company for cash at price of Rs. 125/- per Equity Share aggregating Rs.
50,00,00,000

Of Which:

Reserved for Market Makers

2,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each fully paid of the Company
for cash at price of Rs. 125/- per Equity Share aggregating Rs. 2,50,00,000/-.

Net Issue to the Public*

38,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each fully paid of the
Company for cash at price of Rs. 125/- per Equity Share aggregating Rs.
47,50,00,000/-.

Of which:

Retail Investors Portion

19,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each fully paid of the
Company for cash at price of Rs. 125/- per Equity Share aggregating Rs.
23,75,00,000/-.

Non Retail Investors Portion

19,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each fully paid of the
Company for cash at price of Rs. 125/- per Equity Share aggregating Rs.
23,75,00,000/-.

Pre and Post Issue Share Capital of our Company:

Equity  Shares
prior to the Issue

outstanding

9900,000 Equity Shares

Equity  Shares
after the Issue

outstanding

1,39,00,000 Equity Shares

Use of Issue Proceeds

For details please refer chapter titled ‘Objects of the Issue’ beginning on page

no. 69 of this Draft Prospectus.

* As per Regulation 253(2) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, as amended, as present issue is a fixed price issue ‘the
Allocation’ is the net issue to the public category shall be made as follows:

a.
b.

Minimum fifty percent(50%) To Retail Individual Investors; and
Remaining to:
(i) Individual applicants other than retail individual investors; and
(ii) Other investors including corporate bodies or institutions, irrespective of the number of specified securities
applied for

The unsubscribed portion in either of the categories specified in (a) or (b) above may be allocated to the
applicants in the other category.

Explanation: If the retail individual investor category is entitled to more than fifty per cent on proportionate basis,
accordingly the retail individual investors shall be allocated that higher percentage.

Notes:

This Issue is being made in terms of Chapter 1X of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to
time for at least 25% of post issue paid-up equity share capital of our Company, pursuant to Rule 19(2)(b)(i) of the
Securities Contracts (Regulations) Rules, 1957 as amended.

1.

This Issue of Equity Shares has been authorized by the Board of Directors of our Company at their meeting held
on September 07, 2021 and was approved by the Shareholders of the Company by passing a Special Resolution
at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held with a shorter notice on September 29, 2021 in accordance with the
provisions of Section 62 (1) (C) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Issue is being made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time
to time. For further details please refer to chapters titled ‘Other Regulatory and Statutory Disclosures’ and
“Issue Structure” beginning on page no. 227 and 247 of this Draft Prospectus.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following tables set forth summary financial information is derived from Restated Audited Financial Statements
for the period ending June 30, 2020 and the financial year ended on March 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019. These financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian GAAP, the Companies Act and the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018.

The summary financial information presented below should be read in conjunction with the chapters and notes
mentioned therein titled ‘Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of
Operations’ and ‘Restated Financial Statement’ beginning on page no. 201 and 176, respectively of this Draft
Prospectus.

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, AS RESTATED

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Annexure 301 June, | 31t March, | 31%tMarch, 315t March,
nos. 2021 2021 2020 2019
Equity & Liabilities
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 5 990.00 990.00 990.00 990.00
Share Application Money 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Reserve & Surplus 5 451.85 343.10 112.86 41.39
Total (A) 1441.85 1333.10 1102.86 1031.39
Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings 6 3709.11 3649.76 3435.04 3216.89
E)'\elzggrred Tax Liabilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Long Term Provisions 7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (B) 3709.11 3649.76 3435.04 3216.89
Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings 8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Trade Payables 9 142.09 152.37 -18.25 54.77
Other Current Liabilities 10 140.01 108.43 1.12 2.67
Short Term Provisions 11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (C) 282.10 260.80 -17.13 57.44
Total (D=A+B+C) - 5243.66
TOTA(L LIABI LI)TIES 5433.06 4520.77 4305.72
Fixed Assets
Tangible Asset 12 2055.97 2014.16 2010.16 2328.13
Intangible Asset 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Non-Current Investments 13 55.28 52.78 52.78 52.78
;‘ér\‘/grgsm Loans & 14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Non-Current Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deferred Tax Assets 15 25.07 25.07 25.07 25.07
Total (E) 2136.32 2092.01 2088.01 2405.98
Current Assets
Current Investments 16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
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Particulars Annexure 30" June, | 31t March, | 31tMarch, 315t March,

nos. 2021 2021 2020 2019

Inventories 17 11.08 10.58 8.58 7.58

Trade Receivables 18 530.21 543.19 543.20 561.19

Cash & Bank Balances 19 863.12 729.66 739.31 434.46

Short Term Loans & 20 1892.33 1868.22 1141.67 896.51

Advances

Other Current Assets 21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total (F) 3296.74 3151.66 2432.76 1899.74

Total (G=E+F) - TOTAL

ASSE'(I'S ) 5433.06 5243.66 4520.77 4305.72

Note: The above statement should be read with the, Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts
appearing in Annexure 04.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS, AS RESTATED

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Annexure | 30" June, | 31t March, 31%March, | 31t March,
nos. 2021 2021 2020 2019

Revenue
I. Revenue From Operation
Sale of Products 22 783.34 2079.19 2218.27 2060.64
1. Other Income 23 1.24 106.13 0.91 36.58
Total Revenue (1+11) 784.58 2185.32 2219.18 2097.22
Expenses
Purchase of materials 24 39.40 222.94 255.52 172.05
Other Direct Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Changes in Inventories 24 -0.50 -2.00 -1.00 -0.03
Employee Benefit Expenses 25 76.82 268.39 285.69 243.95
Finance Cost 26 90.69 346.15 374.23 475.17
Depreciation and Amortization 27 86.60 318.44 318.85 323.52
Expenses
Other Expenses 27 351.26 701.17 914.43 860.21
Total Expenses 644.27 1855.09 2147.72 2074.87
Profit before extraordinary 140.31 330.23 71.46 22.35
items and tax
Prior period items (Net) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net profit before Tax — 140.31 330.23 71.46 22.35
Operating Income
Provision for Taxes
1. Current taxes 31.57 99.99 0.00 0.00
2. Tax adjustment of earlier 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
years
3. MAT Credit Entitlements 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4. Deferred tax (Assets)\ 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Liabilities
Profit after tax and before 108.74 230.24 71.46 22.35
extraordinary items
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. Annexure | 30" June, | 31t March, 31tMarch, | 315t March,
PRI nos. 2021 2021 2020 2019

Extraordinary items 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net Profit after extraordinary 108.74 230.24 71.46 22.35
items available for
appropriation
Proposed Dividend 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Dividend distribution tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net profit carried to Balance 108.74 230.24 71.46 22.35
sheet

Note: The above statement should be read with the, Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts
appearing in Annexure 04,

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS, AS RESTATED

(Rs. In Lakhs)

. 30t June, 31t March, | 31%tMarch, 1t March,

Particulars 2021 2021 2020 S e
A. Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net Profit before Tax 140.31 330.23 71.47 22.35
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 86.60 318.44 318.86 323.53
Share Issue Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Interest & Finance charges 90.69 346.15 374.23 475.17
Interest Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Provision For Gratuity 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sundry Balances Written Off (Net) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unrealized Loss on Investment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Loss on sale of Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Operating Cash Generated Before Working 317.60 994.82 764.56 821.05
Capital Changes
Decrease (Increase) in Current Investments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventory -0.50 -2.00 -1.00 -0.03
(Increase)/ Decrease in Receivables 12.99 0 18.00 0
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans and Advances -24.10 -724.54 -245.17 106.28
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Increase/(Decrease) in Short term borrowing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable -10.28 170.62 -73.02 -32.68
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Increase / (Decrease) in Short Term Provisions 0.00 7.33 -1.55 0.00
Increase / (Decrease) in Long Term Provisions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Cash generated from operations 295.71 446.23 461.82 894.62
Less : Direct taxes (paid) / refund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Less : Appropriation of Profit 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net cash from before Extra-ordinary items 295.71 446.23 461.82 894.62
Extra-ordinary items 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 295.71 446.23 461.82 894.62
B. Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Sale / (Purchase) of Fixed Assets (Net) -128.40 -324.44 -0.88 99.74
Sale / (Purchase) of Investments (Net) -2.50 0.00 0.00 0.00
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. 30" June, | 31 March, | 31%March, | 31 March,

G 2021 2021 2020 2019
Interest Received 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Long term Loans & Advances 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sale of Investment
Net Cash Generated From Investing -130.90 -324.44 -0.88 99.74
Activities (B)
C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Borrowings
Share Application Money Received 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term 59.33 214.73 218.14 -105.57
Borrowings
Increase/(Decrease) in Unsecured Loans 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Proceeds From issue of Share Capital 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Increase/(Decrease) in Share Premium 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Decrease (Increase) in Long Term Loans & 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Advances
Interest Expenses -90.69 -346.15 -374.23 -475.17
Dividend Paid (including Dividend Tax) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net Cash from Financing Activities [C] -31.37 -131.42 -156.09 -580.74
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash 133.44 -9.63 304.85 413.62
Equivalents (A +B + C)
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash 729.68 739.31 434.46 20.84
Equivalents
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash 863.12 729.68 739.31 434.46

Equivalents

Note: The above statement should be read with the, Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts

appearing in Annexure 04.
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SECTION V- GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was originally incorporated as Abhi Diagnostic Imagings Private Limited on December 05, 2000
under the Companies Act, 1956 vide certificate of incorporation issued by the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra.
Subsequently, the name of the company was changed from “Abhi Diagnostic Imagings Private Limited” to “Nidan
Laboratories And Healthcare Private Limited” under the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to a special resolution
passed by our shareholders at the EGM held on February 26, 2021 and had obtained fresh certificate of
incorporation dated March 24, 2021 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra. Subsequently, our
Company was converted into a public limited company and the name of our Company was changed to ‘Nidan
Laboratories And Healthcare Limited” and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon conversion to public
limited company was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra, on May 24, 2021. For details of
the changes in our name and registered office, please refer to the chapter titled ‘History and Certain Corporate
Matters’ beginning on page no. 128 of this Draft Prospectus.

Registered Office of our Company

CIN 1 U33111MH2000PLC129883

Registration No. 1129883

Address : Swapnshilpa, Behind Aarti Apartment, Vartak Road, Virar (West) — 401303, Palagar,
Maharashtra, India

Tel No. : +91 8975610000

Email Id : comm.ipo@nidanhealthcare.co.in

Website - www.nidanhealthcare.co.in

Contact Person : Mr. Akshay Joshi

Corporate Office of our Company

The Company does not have any separate Corporate Office. The Registered Office address of the Company is itself
the Corporate Office of the Company.

Address of the Registrar of Companies

Address : 100, Everest, Marine Drive, Mumbai 400002, Maharashtra, India
Tel No. 1 +91 22 22812627/22020295/22846954

Fax No. 1 +91 22 22811977

Email Id : roc.mumbai@meca.gov.in

DESIGNATED STOCK EXCHANGE

Our Company proposed to list its Equity Shares on the EMERGE PLATFORM OF NATIONAL STOCK
EXCHANGE OF INDIA LIMITED located at Exchange Plaza, Plot no. C/1, G Block, Bandra — Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E) Mumbai - 400051, Maharashtra, India

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The following table sets out details regarding our Board as on the date of this Draft Prospectus:

Sr. No. Name and Designation Age DIN PAN Card No. Address
Room No. 104, Gangubhai
; ; . Apartment, Umrala Nanbhat
Mr. E F D iy .
1. Er dW'”D_ranC's abre; 3?3 07705632 | ALHPD2999R | Road, Virar (West), Bolinj,
xecutive Director Thane — 401303, Maharashtra,
India
A — 603, Siddhivinayak Tower,
Ms. Tejal Anil Jayakar; 40 Y. K. Nagar N.X, Virar (West),
2 Executive Director and CFO | Yrs 07984686 | AMEPJ797IM Virar Vasai Palghar - 401303,
Maharashtra, India.
Mr. Krupesh Deepak | 30 House No. 131/1, Umrale
3 Thakur,; Yrs 07978746 | AJUPT4896N (Bhandarali), Bolinj Sopara
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Sr. No. Name and Designation Age DIN PAN Card No. Address
Non-Executive Director Road, Near Umadevi Mandir,
Nalasopara (West), Umrale,
Thane — 401203, Maharashtra,
India.
Mr.  Nilesh  Ghanshyam Flat No. 63, Building — C3,
Bide; 37 Elite Empire Society, Balewadi,
4 Non-Executive Independent | Yrs 06366702 | ALVPBS166E Pune — 411 045, Maharashtra,
Director India.
Mr. Abhinay Shashikant 101, 1%t Floor, Shakti Park, Ram
Nerurkar; 48 Nagar Road, Vartak Ward,
5 Non-Executive Independent 09250964 | ACMPN4967D | Virar (West), Thane — 401303,
- Yrs ;
Director Maharashtra, India.
Mr. Karim Hakam Khimani; 29 gg;mamuy;ﬂaséuﬂ;&ic' 2?1?)?;
6 Non-Executive Independent v 07698480 | CGEPK1839H ' . '
Director rs Pada, Virar (East), Thgne —
401305, Maharashtra, India.

For detailed profile of our Board of Directors, refer to chapter titled ‘Our Management’ on page no. 132 of this

Draft Prospectus.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Name
Address

: MRS. ROSHAN NITHIN THROVE
: Swapnshilpa, Behind Aarti Apartment, Vartak Road, Virar (West) — 401303, Palagar,

Maharashtra, India

Tel No.
Email Id

: +91 8975610000
: ceo@nidanhealthcare.co.in

Website

: www.nidanhealthcare.co.in

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Name
Address

: MR. AKSHAY JOSHI
: Swapnshilpa, Behind Aarti Apartment, Vartak Road, Virar (West) — 401303,

Palagar, Maharashtra, India

Tel No.
Email Id

1 +91 8975610000
: cs@nidanhealthcare.co.in

Website

: www.nidanhealthcare.co.in

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Name
Address

: MS. TEJAL ANIL JAYAKAR
: Swapnshilpa, Behind Aarti Apartment, Vartak Road, Virar (West) — 401303, Palagar,

Maharashtra, India

Tel No.
Email Id

: +91 8975610000
: cfo@nidanhealthcare.co.in

Website

: www.nidanhealthcare.co.in

LEAD MANAGER FOR THE COMPANY

Name

Registered Office

Tel No.

Email Id

Investor Grievance Email Id
Contact Person

Website

:FIRST OVERSEAS CAPITAL LIMITED

:1-2 Bhupen Chambers, Ground Floor, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400 001
1 +91 22 40509999

: satish@focl.in / mala@focl.in

: investorcomplaints@focl.in

: Mr. Satish Sheth/ Ms. Mala Soneji

: https://www.focl.in/index.html
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SEBI Registration No.
CIN

REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE

Name
Address

Tel No.

Fax No.

Email Id

Investor Grievance Email Id
Contact Person

Website

SEBI Registration No.

CIN

Note:

: INM000003671
:U67120MH1998PLC114103

: BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
: Bharat Tin Works Building, 1 Floor, Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road,
Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai — 400059, Maharashtra, India
:+91 22 62638200
1 +91 22 62638299
: ipo@bigshareonline.com
: investor@bigshareonline.com
- Mr. Babu Raphel
: www.bigshareonline.com
: INR000001385
: U99999MH1994PTC076534

Investors may contact the Company and/or the Registrar to the Issue, i.e. Bigshare Services Private Limited
and/ or the Lead Manager, i.e. First Overseas Capital Limited, in case of any pre-issue or post-issue related
problems, such as non-receipt of letters of Allotment, non-credit of allotted Equity Shares in the respective
beneficiary account, or/and non-receipt of funds by electronic mode etc.

All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, with a copy to the
relevant Designated Intermediaries to whom the Application was submitted (at ASBA Bidding Locations), giving
full details such as name of the sole or first Applicant, address of the applicant, number of Equity Shares applied for,
Application Amount blocked, ASBA Account number and the Designated Branch of the relevant SCSBs to whom
the ASBA Application Form was submitted.

Further, the investor shall also enclose the Acknowledgment Slip from the Designated Intermediaries in addition to
the documents/information mentioned hereinabove.

LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE ISSUE

Name
Address
Tel No.
Email Id

: ADV. BHAKTI VINOD THAKUR

: 204, Cineheights Building , Near Canara bank , Bhaynder East
:+91 9820828280

: advbhaktithakur@gmail.com

STATUTORY & PEER REVIEW AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY

Name
Address

Tel No.

Email Id

Contact Person
Membership No.
Firm Registration No.

:R. K. CHAPAWAT & CO, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

: 122, Shripal Shopping Centre, Near Petrol Pump, Agashi Road Vihar (W),
Palghar-401303

: +91 9323791318/ 9769132203

: ravindrachapawat@rediffmail.com

: CA Ravindra Chapawat

137720

:101708W

M/s R. K. Chapawat & Co, Chartered Accountants, is subject to an ongoing peer review process by the peer
review board of the ICAI and the peer review certificate has been renewed by ICAI confirming CA firm to act

as the Peer Reviewer.

BANKER(S) TO THE COMPANY

Name
Address
Tel No.
Email Id

: AXIS BANK LIMITED

: Bably Apartment, Near Patankar Park, Station Road, Nalasopara West 401203
: +91 250 -2404450

: brhd454@axishank.com
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Contact Person
Website

SEBI Registration No.
CIN

Name
Address

Tel No.

Email Id

Contact Person
Website

SEBI Registration No.
CIN

Name
Address

Tel No.

Email Id

Contact Person
Website

SEBI Registration No.
CIN

Name

Address

Tel No.

Email Id
Contact Person
Website

Name
Address

Tel No.

Email Id
Contact Person
Website

Name
Address

Tel No.

Email Id
Contact Person
Website

: Mr. Shrikanth Acharya, Asst. Manager
: www.axisbank.com

: INB100000017

: L65110GJ1993PLC020769

: BANK OF MAHARASHTRA

: Kshirsagar House,1st Floor Near Saibaba Mandir Gaothan, Virar West - 401
303

1 +91 22 2505922,2502291, 9038253756

: brmgr94@mahabank.co.in

: Mr. D. Mahapatra - Chief Manager

: www.bankofmaharashtra.in

- INB100000009

: U99999MH1935PTC002399

: UNION BANK OF INDIA LIMITED

: Padam Colony,Vishnu Prasad Building,Virar (West) Mumbai, Maharashtra -
401303

1 +91 8446095142

: cb490@corpbank.co.in

: Mr. Ravindra Kumar

> www.unionbankofindia.co.in

- INB100000055

: U99999MH1919PTC000615

:NEW INDIA CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD

: Bayabai Shopping Centre, Agashi Road, Virar (W),Dist., Palghar 401 303
1 +91 22 61427606/07/08

: himali.vartak@newindiabank.in

: Mrs. Himali vartak

: www.newindiabank.in

: VIKAS VIKAS SAHAKARI BANK LIMITED

: Thakur Arcade, opp. Railway Station, Virar West, Tal. Vasai, Dist. Palghar -
401 303

1 +91 8446095142

: ceo@vasaivikasbank.co.in/ creditcell@vasaivikasbank.co.in

: Mr. Dilip Shantaram Sant — CEO

: www.vasaivikasbank.com

: THANE BHARAT SAHAKARI BANK LTD XIS BANK LIMITED

. Jeevashri Apartment,Jamanabaug Compound,Shivaji Chowk,Agra, Kalyan-
421301

1 +91 2305594/ 9773758467

: nitin.karnale@tbsbl.com

: Mr. Nitin Krishna Karnale - Branch Manager

. https://www.tbsbl.com/

BANKER(S) TO THE ISSUE/ ESCROW COLLECTION BANK/REFUND BANK

Name

Address

Tel No.

Fax No.

Email Id

Contact Person
Website

SEBI Registration No.
CIN

“[o]
“[o]
“[o]
:[e]
:[e]
:[e]
:[e]
:[e]
o]
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Changes in Auditors during the last Three Financial Years

M/s R. K. Chapawat & Co, Chartered Accountants was appointed as Statutory Auditors of our Company for a period
of 5 years from FY 2021-22 to FY 2025-26 at AGM dated September 29, 2021 in place of M/s. Ashutosh D.
Vidwans & Co., Chartered Accountants, to comply with the requirement of peer review auditor in SME IPO.

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks (SCSB’s)

The list of SCSBs is available at http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/home/list/5/33/0/0/Recognised-Intermediaries on
the SEBI website, or at such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time. A list of the Designated
Branches of the SCSBs with which an Applicant, not applying through Syndicate/ Sub Syndicate or through a
Registered Broker, CRTA or CDP may submit the Application Forms available at
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/home/list/5/33/0/0/Recognised-Intermediaries on the SEBI website, or at such other
website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Registered Brokers

The list of the Registered Brokers, including details such as postal address, telephone number and e-mail address, is
provided on the websites of the NSE i.e. www.nseindia.com, as updated from time to time.

Registrar to Issue and Share Transfer Agents

The list of the RTAs eligible to accept application forms at the Designated RTA Locations, including details such as
address, telephone number and e-mail address, are provided on the websites of Stock Exchange www.nseindia.com,
as updated from time to time.

Collecting Depository Participants

The list of the CDPs eligible to accept application forms at the Designated CDP Locations, including details such as
name and contact details, are provided on the websites of Stock Exchange www.nseindia.com as updated from time
to time. The list of branches of the SCSBs named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits of the application
forms from the Designated Intermediaries will be available on the website of the SEBI www.sebi.gov.in and updated
from time to time.

Credit Rating

This being an Issue of Equity Shares, there is no requirement of credit rating.

Debenture Trustees

This is being an Issue of Equity Shares; the appointment of Debenture trustee is not mandatory.

IPO Grading

Since the Issue is being made in terms of Chapter 1X of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, there is no requirement
of appointing an IPO Grading agency.

Statement of Responsibility of the Lead Manager/ Statement of inter se allocation of responsibilities for the
Issue

Since, First Overseas Capital Limited is the sole Lead Manager to the Issue, a statement of inter se allocation of
responsibilities amongst Lead Managers is not required.

Appraisal and Monitoring Agency

As per Regulation 262(1) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the requirement of Monitoring Agency is not mandatory if
the issue size is below Rs. 10,000 Lakhs. Since this Issue Size is less than Rs. 10,000 Lakhs, our Company has not
appointed any monitoring agency for this Issue. However, as per the Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Audit Committee of our Company would be monitoring the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue.
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Expert Opinion
Except as stated below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions:

Our Company has received written consent from the Independent Peer Reviewed Auditor namely, M/s. R. K.
Chapawat & Co, Chartered Accountants to include its name as required under Section 26(1)(a)(v) of the Companies
Act, 2013 in this Draft Prospectus and as “expert” as defined under section 2(38) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of the reports of the Independent Peer Reviewed Auditor on the Restated Financial Statements, dated
October 06, 2021 and such consent has not been withdrawn as on the date of this Draft Prospectus.

Our Company has received written consent from our Statutory Auditor namely, M/s. R. K. Chapawat & Co,
Chartered Accountants to include its name as required under Section 26(1)(a)(v) of the Companies Act, 2013 in this
Prospectus and the statement of tax benefits dated October 06, 2021 included in this Prospectus and such consent
has not been withdrawn as on the date of this Draft Prospectus.

Filing of Draft Prospectus and Prospectus

The Draft Prospectus shall not be filed with SEBI, nor shall SEBI issue any observation on the Offer Document in
terms of Regulation 246(2) of SEBI (ICDR), 2018. However, pursuant to Regulation 246(5), the soft copy of Draft
Prospectus shall be submitted to SEBI. Pursuant to SEBI Circular Number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011
dated January 19, 2018, a copy of the Draft Prospectus and Prospectus will be filed online through SEBI
Intermediary Portal at https://siportal.sebi.gov.in.

Further, pursuant to SEBI Circular Number CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2019/0000000154 dated December 11, 2019, a copy
of the Prospectus along with the with due diligence certificate including additional confirmations required to be filed
under Section 26 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be filed with SEBI at Plot No.C4-A, 'G' Block Bandra-Kurla
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400051.

A copy of the Prospectus, along with the material contracts and documents referred elsewhere in the Prospectus, will
be delivered to the RoC Office situated at 100, Everest Building, Marine Drive, Mumbai — 400020, Maharashtra,
India.

Underwriting Agreement

This Issue is 100% Underwritten. The Underwriting agreement is dated October 01, 2021. Pursuant to the terms of
the Underwriting Agreement, the obligations of the Underwriters are several and are subject to certain conditions
specified therein. The Underwriters have indicated their intention to underwrite the following number of specified
securities being offered through this Issue:

No. of Equity . % of the total
Details of the Underwriters Shares Ao Lingl i e Issue Size

underwritten * (In Rupees) Underwritten

First Overseas Capital Limited

1-2 Bhupen Chambers, Ground Floor,
Dalal Street, Mumbai-400 001

Tel No.; +91 22 40509999

Email Id: satish@focl.in/ mala@focl.in
Contact Person: Mr. Satish Sheth/ Ms. 40,00,000 50,00,00,000 100.00
Mala Soneji

Website:
https://www.focl.in/index.html

SEBI Registration No.: INM000003671
CIN No: U67120MH1998PL.C114103
Total 40,00,000 50,00,00,000 100.00
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*Includes 2,00,000 Equity shares of the Market Maker Reservation Portion which are to be subscribed by the
Market Maker in order to claim compliance with the requirements of Regulation 261 of the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018, as amended.

As per Regulation 260(2) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the Lead Manager has agreed to underwrite to a
minimum extent of 15% of the Issue out of its own account.

In the opinion of our Board of Directors (based on a certificate given by the Underwriter, the resources of the above-
mentioned Underwriters are sufficient to enable them to discharge the underwriting obligations in full. The above-
mentioned Underwriters are registered with SEBI under Section 12(1) of the SEBI Act or registered as brokers with
the Stock Exchanges.

Details of the Market Making Arrangement for the Issue

Our Company and the Lead Manager have entered into an agreement dated October 01, 2021, with the following
Market Maker, duly registered with NSE Limited to fulfill the obligations of Market Making:

Name : NNM SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Address : B 6/7, Shri Siddhivinayak Plaza, 2" floor, Plot No.B-3, Oshiwara, Opp.Citi
Mall,Oshiwara Andheri(W), Mumbai-400053.

Tel No. :022-40790011,40790036

Email Id : support@nnmsecurities.com

Contact Person : Mr.Nikunj Mittal

Website . WWw.nnmsecurities.com

SEBI Registration No. : INZ000234235

CIN : U67120MH1997PTC111496

NNM Securities Private Limited, registered with SME segment of NSE will act as the Market Maker and has
agreed to receive or deliver the specified securities in the market making process for a period of three years from the
date of listing of our Equity Shares or for a period as may be notified by amendment to SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

The Market Maker shall fulfill the applicable obligations and conditions as specified in the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018, and its amendments thereto and the circulars issued by the NSE and SEBI regarding this matter
from time to time.

Following is a summary of the key details pertaining to the Market Making arrangement:

1. The Market Maker(s) (individually or jointly) shall be required to provide a 2-way quote for 75% of the time in
a day. The same shall be monitored by Stock Exchange. Further, the Market Maker shall inform Stock
Exchange in advance for each and every black out period when the quotes are not being offered by the Market
Maker.

2. The minimum depth of the quote shall be Rs.1,00,000/-. However, the investors with holdings of value less than
Rs. 1,00,000/- shall be allowed to offer their holding to the Market Maker(s) (individually or jointly) in that
scrip provided that he/she sells his/her entire holding in that scrip in one lot along with a declaration to the
effect to the selling broker.

3. After a period of three (3) months from the market making period, the market maker would be exempted to
provide quote if the Equity Shares of Market Maker in our Company reaches to 15% (Including the 5% of
Equity Shares of the Issue). Any Equity Shares allotted to Market Maker under this Issue over and above 5% of
Issue Size would not be taken in to consideration of computing the threshold of 15%. As soon as the Shares of
Market Maker in our Company reduce to 14%, the market maker will resume providing 2-way quotes.

4. There shall be no exemption/threshold on downside. However, in the event the Market Maker exhausts its
inventory through market making process, the concerned Stock Exchange may intimate the same to SEBI after
due verification.

5. The Inventory Management and Buying/Selling Quotations and its mechanism shall be as per the relevant
circulars issued by SEBI and EMERGE Platform of NSE from time to time.
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10.

11.

12.

13.
14.

15.

16.
17.

18.

19.

20.

Execution of the order at the quoted price and quantity must be guaranteed by the Market Maker(s), for the
quotes given by them.

The Market Maker shall not sell in lots less than the minimum contract size allowed for trading on the
EMERGE Platform of NSE (in this case currently the minimum trading lot size is 1,000 Equity Shares;
however, the same may be changed by the EMERGE Platform of NSE from time to time).

The prices quoted by the Market Maker shall be in compliance with the Market Maker Spread requirements and
other particulars as specified or as per the requirements of the EMERGE Platform of NSE and SEBI from time
to time.

The Market Maker shall not be responsible to maintain the price of the Equity Shares of the Issuer Company at
any particular level and is purely supposed to facilitate liquidity on the counter of Nidan Laboratories and
Healthcare Limited via its 2-way quotes. The price of the Equity Shares shall be determined and be subject to
market forces.

There would not be more than (5) five Market Makers for the Company’s Equity Shares at any point of time
and the Market Makers may compete with other Market Makers for better quotes to the investors. At this stage,
NNM Securities Private Limited is acting as the sole Market Maker.

The Market Maker shall start providing quotes from the day of the listing / the day when designated as the
Market Maker for the respective scrip and shall be subject to the guidelines laid down for market making by the
EMERGE Platform of NSE.

On the first day of the listing, there will be pre-opening session (call auction) and there after the trading will
happen as per the equity market hours. The circuits will apply from the first day of the listing on the discovered
price during the pre-open call auction.

The Marker Maker may also be present in the opening call auction, but there is no obligation on him to do so.

The securities of the company will be placed in SPOS and would remain in Trade for Trade settlement for 10
days from the date of listing of Equity share on the Stock Exchange.

The shares of the company will be traded in continuous trading session from the time and day the company gets
listed on EMERGE Platform of NSE Limited and market maker will remain present as per the guidelines
mentioned under NSE Limited and SEBI circulars.

The Market Maker has to act in that capacity for a period of three years.

There will be special circumstances under which the Market Maker may be allowed to withdraw temporarily /
fully from the market — for instance due to system problems, any other problems. All controllable reasons
require prior approval from the Exchange, while force-majeure will be applicable for non-controllable reasons.
The decision of the Exchange for deciding controllable and non-controllable reasons would be final.

The Market Maker(s) shall have the right to terminate said arrangement by giving three or one month notice or
on mutually acceptable terms to the Lead Manager/Merchant Banker, who shall then be responsible to appoint a
replacement Market Maker(s).

In case of termination of the above mentioned Market Making agreement prior to the completion of the
compulsory Market Making period, it shall be the responsibility of the Lead Manager/Merchant Banker to
arrange for another Market Maker(s) in replacement during the term of the notice period being served by the
Market Maker but prior to the date of releasing the existing Market Maker from its duties in order to ensure
compliance with the requirements of regulation 261 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. Further the Company and
the Lead Manager/Merchant Banker reserve the right to appoint other Market Maker(s) either as a replacement
of the current Market Maker or as an additional Market Maker subject to the total number of Designated Market
Makers does not exceed 5 (five) or as specified by the relevant laws and regulations applicable at that
particulars point of time. The Market Making Agreement is available for inspection at our Registered Office
from 11.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. on working days.

Risk containment measures and monitoring for Market Makers: NSE SME will have all margins which are
applicable on the NSE Main Board viz., Mark-to-Market, Value-At-Risk (VAR) Margin, Extreme Loss Margin,
Special Margins and Base Minimum Capital etc. NSE can impose any other margins as deemed necessary from
time-to-time.
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21.

22.

23.

24,

Punitive Action in case of default by Market Makers: EMERGE Platform of NSE will monitor the
obligations on a real time basis and punitive action will be initiated for any exceptions and / or non-
compliances. Penalties / fines may be imposed by the Exchange on the Market Maker, in case he is not able to
provide the desired liquidity in a particular security as per the specified guidelines. These penalties / fines will
be set by the Exchange from time to time. The Exchange will impose a penalty on the Market Maker in case he
is not present in the market (offering two way quotes) for at least 75% of the time. The nature of the penalty
will be monetary as well as suspension in market making activities / trading membership.

The Department of Surveillance and Supervision of the Exchange would decide and publish the penalties/ fines
/ suspension for any type of misconduct / manipulation / other irregularities by the Market Maker from time to
time.

Price Band and Spreads: SEBI Circular bearing reference no: CIR/MRD/DP/ 02/2012 dated January 20, 2012,

has laid down that for Issue size up to Rs. 250 Crores, the applicable price bands for the first day shall be:

e In case equilibrium price is discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session shall
be 5% of the equilibrium price.

o In case equilibrium price is not discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session
shall be 5% of the Issue price.

Additionally, the trading shall take place in TFT segment for first 10 days from commencement of trading. The
price band shall be 20% and the Market Maker Spread (difference between the sell and the buy quote) shall be
within 10% or as intimated by Exchange from time to time.

The following spread will be applicable on the SME Exchange Platform.

Sr. No. Market Price Slab (in Rs.) Proposed spread (in % to sale price)
1. Up to 50 9
2. 50 to 75 8
3. 75 t0 100 6
4. Above 100 5

Pursuant to SEBI Circular number CIR/MRD/DSA/31/2012 dated November 27, 2012, limits on the upper side
for Market Makers during market making process has been made applicable, based on the Offer size and as
follows:

Buy quote exemption threshold Re-Entry threshold for buy quote
Issue Size (including mandatory initial (including mandatory initial
inventory of 5% of the Issue Size) inventory of 5% of the Issue Size)
Up to Rs.20 Crores 25% 24%
Rs.20 to Rs.50 Crores 20% 19%
Rs.50 to Rs.80 Crores 15% 14%
Above Rs.80 Crores 12% 11%

The Market Making arrangement, trading and other related aspects including all those specified above shall be
subject to the applicable provisions of law and / or norms issued by SEBI / NSE from time to time.

All the above mentioned conditions and systems regarding the Market Making Arrangement are subject to
change based on changes or additional regulations and guidelines from SEBI and Stock Exchange from time to
time.

WITHDRAWAL OF THE ISSUE

The Company, in consultation with the Lead Manager, reserves the right not to proceed with the Issue at any time
before the Issue Opening Date, without assigning any reason thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issue is
also subject to obtaining the following:

1.

2.

The final listing and trading approvals of NSE for listing of Equity Shares offered through this issue on its SME
Platform, which the Company shall apply for after Allotment and,

The final ROC approval of the Prospectus after it is filed with the ROC.
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In case, the Company wishes to withdraw the Issue after Issue opening but before allotment, the Company will give
public notice giving reasons for withdrawal of Issue. The public notice will appear in two widely circulated national
newspapers (One each in English and Hindi) and one in regional newspaper.

The Lead Manager, through the Registrar to the Issue, will instruct the SCSBs to unblock the ASBA Accounts
within one Working Day from the day of receipt of such instruction. The notice of withdrawal will be issued in the
same newspapers where the pre-Issue advertisements have appeared and the Stock Exchange will also be informed
promptly.

If our Company withdraws the Issue after the Issue Closing Date and subsequently decides to undertake a public

offering of Equity Shares, our Company will file a fresh offer document with the stock exchange where the Equity
Shares may be proposed to be listed.
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SECTION VI- CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Equity Share capital of our Company, as on the date of this Draft Prospectus is set forth below:

(Amtin Rs.)
Sr Aggregate Value | Aggregate
| Particulars at Nominal | Value at Issue
No. .
Value price
A. | Authorized Share Capital

2,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 20,00,00,000 -

B. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital before the Issue

99,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 9,90,00,000 -

C. Present Issue in terms of this Draft Prospectus

Issue of 40,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each at a

Issue price of Rs.125/- per Equity Share 4,00,00,000 50,00,00,000

Which comprises:

(a) Reservation for Market Maker(s) 2,00,000 Equity Shares of
face value of Rs. 10/- each reserved as Market Maker portion at 20,00,000 2,50,00,000
a price of Rs. 125/- per Equity Share

(b) Net Issue to the Public of 38,00,000 Equity Shares of face

value of Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. 125/- per Equity Share 3,80,00,000 4,75,000,000

# Of the Net Issue to the Public*

19,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each at a price of
Rs.125/- per Equity Share shall be available for allocation for
Investors applying for a value of upto Rs. 2.00 Lakhs (Retail
Investors)

1,90,00,000 23,75,00,000

19,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each at a price of
Rs.125/- per Equity Share shall be available for allocation for
Investors applying for a value of upto Rs. 2.00 Lakhs (Non-Retail
Investors)

1,90,00,000 23,75,00,000

D. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital after the Issue

13,90,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 13,90,00,000 1,73,75,00,000

E. Securities Premium Account

Before the Issue

After the Issue 46,00,00,000

# Allocation to all categories shall be made on a proportionate basis subject to valid Applications received at or
above the Issue Price. Under subscription, if any, in any of the categories, would be allowed to be met with spill-
over from any of the other categories or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in
consultation with the Lead Manager and Designated Stock Exchange. Such inter-se spill-over, if any, would be
affected in accordance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. For detailed information on the Net
Issue and its allocation various categories, please refer chapter titled “The Issue” on page no. 43 of this Draft
Prospectus.

The Present Issue has been authorized pursuant to a resolution of our Board dated September 07, 2021 and by
Special Resolution passed under Section 62(1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 at the Annual General Meeting
of our shareholders held on September 29, 2021.

Class of Shares

The company has only one class of shares i.e. Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- each only and all Equity Shares are
ranked pari-passu in all respect. All Equity Shares issued are fully paid-up as on date of the Draft Prospectus.

Our Company does not have any outstanding convertible instruments as on the date of the Draft Prospectus.

NOTES TO THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

58



1.

2.

Details of change in Authorized Share Capital of our Company:

Since the incorporation of our Company, the authorized Share Capital of our Company has been altered in the

manner set forth below:

Sr. Date of the Particulars (No. of Equity Shares) .
No. Meeting From To IpREiinEE
10,000 Equity Shares of .
1. 05/12/2000 Rs. 10/- each On Incorporation
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. | 50,000 Equity Shares of
2. 09/03/2001 10/- each Rs. 10/- each EGM
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. | 1,50,000 Equity Shares
3 06/09/2004 10/- each of Rs. 10/- each EGM
1,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. | 2,50,000 Equity Shares
4 01/08/2007 10/- each of Rs. 10/- each EGM
2,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. | 30,00,000 Equity
5. 21/03/2014 10/- each Shares of Rs. 10/- each EGM
6 08/07/2014 30,00,000 Equity Shares of | 50,00,000 Equity EGM
) Rs. 10/- each Shares of Rs. 10/- each
50,00,000 Equity Shares of | 1,00,00,000 Equity
7. 06/06/2016 Rs. 10/- each Shares of Rs. 10/- each EGM
1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of | 2,00,00,000 Equity
8. 20/08/2021 Rs. 10/- each Shares of Rs. 10/- each EGM
Paid-up Share Capital History of our Company
Consider
ation
. (Cash,
Date of No. of Cumulati Face Issue Bonus, Cumulative Nature of /
Sr. | Allotment h ve No. of val Pri i h R £
no. | of Equity shares Equity alue rice Con§| er S are easons for
Allotted (Rs.) (Rs.) ation Capital (Rs.) | Allotment
Shares Shares
other
than
cash)
1. | 05/12/2000 | 200 200 10.00 | 10.00 | Cash 2,000 Subscription
to MOA
Further
2. | 09/03/2001 9,800 10,000 10.00 10.00 Cash 100,000 Allotment
3. | 26/02/2002 | 40,000 50,000 | 10.00 | 10.00 | Cash 500,000 | -urther
Allotment
4. | 08/09/2004 | 100,000 | 150,000 | 10.00 | 10.00 | Cash Further
Allotment
5. | 26/12/2007 | 150,000 | 250,000 | 10.00 | 10.00 | Cash 2,500,000 | Further
Allotment
6. 01/08/2014 2,750,000| 3,000,000 10.00 10.00 Cash 30,000,000 Further
Allotment
7. | 08/08/2016 | 1,534,000| 4,534,000 | 10.00 | 10.00 | Cash 45340,000 | Further
Allotment
Allotment
8. | 08/01/2018 | 5,366,000| 9,900,000 | 10.00 | 10.00 | Cash 99,000,000 | 29ainst
outstanding
loan
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2.1 Initial Allotment/ Subscribers to Memorandum of Association are:

Sr. No. Name of the Allottee’s No. of shares Allotted
1. Dr. Nithin Vitthalrao Thorave 100
2. Mrs. Rohsan Nitin Thorave 100
Total 200

2.2 Further Allotment to following Allottee’s:

Sr. No. Name of the Allottee’s No. of shares Allotted
1. Dr. Nithin Vitthalrao Thorave 5,000
2. Mrs. Rohsan Nitin Thorave 4,800
Total 9,800

2.3 Further Allotment to Dr. Nithin Vitthalrao Thorave

2.4 Further Allotment to following Allottee’s:

Sr. No. Name of the Allottee’s No. of shares Allotted
1 Dr. Nithin Vitthalrao Thorave 14,500
2 Mrs. Rohsan Nitin Thorave 35,500
3 Mr. Vithalrao Laxman Thorave 20,000
4 Mrs. Shanta Vithalrao Thorave 20,000
5 Mrs. Lata Vitthal Hande 10,000
Total 100,000

2.5 Further Allotment to following Allottee’s:

Sr. No. Name of the Allottee’s No. of shares Allotted
1 Dr. Nithin Vitthalrao Thorave 67,900
2 Mrs. Rohsan Nitin Thorave 27,700
3 Mr. Vithalrao Laxman Thorave 2,200
4 Mrs. Shanta Vithalrao Thorave 2,200
Total 1,00,000

2.6 Further Allotment to following Allottee’s:

Sr. No. Name of the Allottee’s No. of shares Allotted
1. Dr. Nithin Vitthalrao Thorave 1,402,500
2. Mrs. Rohsan Nitin Thorave 742,500
3. Mr. Vithalrao Laxman Thorave 247,500
4, Mrs. Shanta Vithalrao Thorave 247,500
5. Mrs. Lata Vitthal Hande 110,000
Total 2,750,000

2.7 Further Allo

tment to following Allottee’s:

Sr. No. Name of the Allottee’s No. of shares Allotted
1 Dr. Nithin Vitthalrao Thorave 416,000
2 Mrs. Rohsan Nitin Thorave 148,000
3 Mr. Vithalrao Laxman Thorave 219,000
4 Mrs. Shanta Vithalrao Thorave 49,000
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Sr. No. Name of the Allottee’s No. of shares Allotted
5 Mrs. Lata Vitthal Hande 93,000
6 Mr. Atul Vithal Hande 50,000
7 Ms. Rekha Thorave 49,000
8 Mr. Prabhakar Ambadas Hande 40,000
9 Mr. Bhagaji Vishnu Sinare 40,000
10 Mr. Bhimrao Baurao Thorave 45,000
11 Mr. Balu Vishnu Shinare 45,000
12 Mr. Maruti Babu Borhade 40,000
13 | Mr. Gajanan Bhikaji Hande 45,000
14 Mr. Vikas Sayaji Sinare 40,000
15 | Mr. Ramdas Jabaji Auti 40,000
16 Mr. Rahendra Mahadev Gadhave 40,000
17 Mr. Bharat Dashrath Shinde 10,000
18 | Mr. Swapnil Mahendra Tambe 30,000
19 Mrs. Nilam Dilip Tambe 20,000
20 | Mr. Dilip Prabhakar Tambe 30,000
21 Mr. Amrendra Sahadev Awasarikar 45,000

Total 15,34,000

2.8 Further Allotment to Dr. Nithin Vitthalrao Thorave upon conversion of outstanding loan as approved via the
Board of Directors through their resolution dated January 08, 2018.

Equity Shares issued for consideration other than cash by Our Company:

Except for as mentioned above in the notes to capital structure under point number 2 (2.8) of ‘Share Capital
History of the Company’, our Company has not issued any other equity shares for consideration other than cash.

Equity Shares issued in the preceding two(2) years:

Our Company has not issued any equity shares during a period of two (2) years preceding the date of the Draft
Prospectus.

Our Company has not revalued its assets since inception and has not issued any Equity Shares (including bonus
shares) by capitalizing any revaluation of reserves.

Our Company has not made any allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to any scheme approved under Section
Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 or Section 230-240 of the Companies Act, 2013 as on the date
of the Draft Prospectus.

Our Company has not issued Equity Shares at a price lower than the Issue price during a period of one year
preceding the date of the Draft Prospectus.

Our Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme / Employee Stock Purchase Plan for our
employees, and we do not intend to allot any shares to our employees under Employee Stock Option Scheme /
Employee Stock Purchase Plan from the proposed issue. As and when, options are granted to our employees
under the Employee Stock Option Scheme, our Company shall comply with the SEBI (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014.

As on the date of filing of this Draft Prospectus, there are no partly paid-up shares, outstanding convertible
securities, warrants or outstanding warrants, options or rights to convert debentures in our Company or loans or
other financial instruments into our equity shares.

10. There are no equity shares against which depository receipts have been issued.

11. Other than the equity shares, there are no other class of securities issued by our Company.
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12. All the equity shares of our Company are fully paid up as on the date of this Draft Prospectus. Further, since the
entire money in respect of the Issue is being called on application, all the successful applicants will be allotted
fully paid-up equity shares. Other than the Equity Shares, there is no other class of securities issued by our
Company.

13. Our Company undertakes that at any given time, there shall be only one denomination for our Equity Shares,
unless otherwise permitted by law.

14. Capital Buildup of our Promoter shareholding in the Company

As on the date of this Draft Prospectus, our Promoter - Dr. Nitin Vithalrao Thorave hold 8,941,500 Equity
Shares of our Company which is 90.879% of our Pre-Issue Paid-Up Capital.

No. of Issue Price/ NEIET] Yo 9f i
Name of the Liizo o1 Equity FV Transfer Price/ U Pa'd.' up
X Allotment/ L Allotment/ Capital
Allottee’s Transfer Shares (Rs.) Acquisition Acquired/ Pre- | Post-
Allotted Price (Rs.) q
Transfer Issue | Issue
05-Dec-00 100 10.00 10.00 ‘:’/‘I‘fzc”p“o” ©1 000 | 0.00
9-Mar-01 5,000 10.00 10.00 Further Issue 0.05 0.04
26-Feb-02 40000 10.00 10.00 Further Issue 0.40 0.29
8-Sep-04 14,500 10.00 10.00 Further Issue 0.15 0.10
Dr. Nitin | 26-Dec-07 67,900 10.00 10.00 Further Issue 0.60 0.49
Vithalrao 1-Aug-14 1,402,500 10.00 10.00 Further Issue 14.17 | 10.09
Thorave Transfer From
1-Aug-14 50,000 10.00 10.00 Vittal Throve 0.51 0.36
8-Aug-16 416,000 10.00 10.00 Further Issue 4.20 2.99
8-Jan-18 | 5,366,000 | 10.00 10.00 Allotment against | o) o | 34 g9
outstanding loan
31-Mar-21 | 1,579,500 | 10.00 10.00 Transfer * 15.95 | 11.36
Total Promoter Holding 8,941,500 90.32 | 64.33

* Transfer from Mrs. Lata Vitthal Hande(213,000), Raghunath Dattaram Raut, Mr. Ramchandra Bhujbal, Mr.
Atul Vitthal Hande (49,900), Mr. Vithalrao Laxman Thorve (438,700), Mrs Shanta Vittalrao Throve(3,18,700),
Mrs. Rekha Throve (48,900), Mr. Hande Prabhakar Ambadas (40,000), Mr. Sinare Bhagaji Vishnu (40,000),
Mr. Thorave Bhimrao Baurao (45,000), Mr. Shinare Balu Vishnu (45,000), Mr. Borhade Maruti Babu (40,000),
Mr. Gajanan Bhikaji Hande (45,100), Mr. Sinare Vikas Sayaji (40,000), Mr. Auti Ramdas Jabaji (40,000), Mr.
Gadhave Rahendra Mahadev (40,000), Mr. Shinde Bharat Dashrath (10,000), Mr. Tambe Swapnil Mahendra
(20,000), Tambe Nilam Dilip, Mr. Tambe Dilip Prabhakar (30,000), Mr. Awasarikar Amrendra Sahadev
(45,000).

All the Equity Shares held by our Promoter were and is fully paid-up on the respective dates of acquisition and/or
transfers and/or allotment of such Equity Shares. As on the date of this Draft Prospectus, none of the Equity Shares
held by our Promoter is pledged.

Further, Our Promoter confirms that the acquisition and/or transfers and/or allotment of the Equity Shares forming
part of the Promoter‘s Contribution has been financed from personal funds/internal accruals and no loans or
financial assistance from any banks or financial institution has been availed by our Promoter for this purpose.

Details of Promoter’s contribution and Lock-in

As per Regulation 236 and 238 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, and in terms of the aforesaid table, an
aggregate of 20% of the fully diluted post-issue equity share capital of our Company held by our Promoter shall be
provided towards minimum Promoter’s, contribution and locked in for a period of 3 (Three) years from the date of
Allotment (‘Minimum Promoter’s Contribution”). The lock-in of the Promoter’s Contribution would be created as
per applicable law and procedure and details of the same shall also be provided to the Stock Exchange before listing
of the Equity Shares. The Promoter’s contribution has been brought in to the extent of not less than the specified
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minimum lot and has been contributed by the persons defined as Promoter under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations,
2018.

Our Promoter has given written consent to include such number of Equity Shares held by them and subscribed by
them as a part of Promoter’s Contribution constituting 20.11% of the post issue Equity Shares of our Company and
have agreed not to sell or transfer or pledge or otherwise dispose of in any manner, the Promoter’s Contribution, for
a period of three years from the date of allotment in the public Issue. The Equity Shares which are being locked in
for three (3) years from the date of Allotment are as follows:

Date of No. of Equit Issue % of the Paid-up
Name of the Allotment of ’ UL\ Nature of Issue/ | FV . Capital
. Shares s Price
Promoter Fully Paid-up . Acquisition (Rs.) Pre- Post-
Locked-in (Rs.)
Shares Issue Issue
Dr. Nitin 1-Aug-14 800,000 Cash 10.00 | 10.00 8.08 5.76
Vithalrao 8-Aug-16 416,000 Cash 10.00 | 10.00 4.20 2.99
Thorave 31-Mar-21 1,579,500 Cash 10.00 | 10.00 | 15.95 11.36
Total Lock-in 2,795,500 27.73 20.11

The Minimum Promoter ’ contribution has been brought in to the extent of not less than the specified minimum lot
and has been contributed by the persons defined as Promoter under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018.The Equity
Shares that are being locked-in are eligible for computation of Promoter Contribution under Regulation 237 of SEBI
ICDR Regulations. In this connection, our Company hereby confirms that the Equity Shares locked-in do not consist
of:

a) Equity Shares acquired during the preceding three (3) years from the date of filing this Draft Prospectus for
consideration other than cash and revaluation of assets or capitalization of intangible assets nor resulted from a
bonus shares issued out of revaluations reserves or unrealized profits of the Company or bonus issue against
equity shares which are otherwise ineligible for computation of Promoter’s Contribution;

b) Equity Shares acquired during the preceding one (1) year from the date of filing this Draft Prospectus, at a price
lower than the price at which the Equity Shares are being offered to the public in the Issue;

c) Equity Shares issued to the Promoter upon conversion of a partnership firm during the preceding one year at a
price less than the Issue Price;

d) Equity Shares held by the Promoter and offered for minimum Promoter
pledge;

e) Equity Shares for which specific written consent has not been obtained from the respective Promoter for
inclusion of their subscription in the Promoter > Contribution subject to lock-in; and

f)  All the Equity Shares of our Company held by the Promoter are in the process of being dematerialized.

k)

contribution are subject to any

Equity shares locked-in for one year

Other than the Equity Shares mentioned above that would be locked-in for three (3) years, the entire pre-Issue
capital of our Company would be locked-in for a period of one (1) year from the date of Allotment in the Issue
pursuant to Regulation 238(b) and 2390f SEBI ICDR Regulations, 2018.

Other requirements in respect of ‘Lock-In’

Inscription or Recording of non-transferability:

In terms of Regulation 241 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the share certificates for the equity shares held in
physical form, which are subject to lock-in, shall carry the inscription ‘non-transferable’ and the non-transferability
details shall be informed to the Depositories.

Pledge of Locked in Equity Shares:

In terms of Regulation 242 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the locked-in Equity Shares held by our
Promoters, as specified above can be pledged with any scheduled commercial banks or public financial institutions
as collateral security for loans granted by such scheduled commercial banks or financial institutions provided that

the pledge of Equity Shares is one of the terms of the sanction of the loan. Provided that securities locked in as
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minimum promoter contribution for 3 years under Regulation 242(a) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, may be
pledged only if, in addition to fulfilling the above requirements, the loan has been granted by such bank or
institution, for the purpose of financing one or more of the objects of the Issue.

Provided that such lock-in shall continue pursuant to the invocation of the pledge and such transferee shall not be
eligible to transfer the specified securities till the lock-in period stipulated in these regulations has expired.

Transferability of Locked in Equity Shares:

In terms of Regulation 243 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the Equity Shares held by our Promoter which
are locked in as per the provisions of Regulation 238 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, may be transferred to
and amongst Promoter or persons/ members of the Promoter Group or to a new promoter or persons in control of
our Company, subject to continuation of lock-in in the hands of transferees for the remaining period and compliance
of Takeover Code, as applicable.

In terms of Regulation 243 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the Equity Shares held by persons other than the
Promoters and Promoter Group prior to the Issue may be transferred to any other person holding the Equity Shares
which are locked-in as per Regulation 239 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, subject to continuation of the
lock-in in the hands of the transferees for the remaining period and compliance with the Takeover Code, as
applicable.
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15. OUR SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

The table below represents the shareholding pattern of our Company in accordance with Regulation 31 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, as on the date of this:

NO-hof \;oltilng Shareholdin No. of ISQargs
. Rights held in gasa% e Pledged or
Shareh:ldln each class of No. of assuming Is‘ﬁglr(:g,:f otherwise
No. No. of 9 asla % O; securities * Shares full encumbered
of No. Of 0.0 totalno. o Underlying | convertible .
f Sh A Odf AUy Partly S(I;arles Total No. Of slhargs(calcu Outstandin securities ’;:0' o ﬁqludlty
Catego Category o Paid-up : underlyin s ated as per As a As a shares held in
are h Paid-up Equity No. of g (asa s
ry Shareholders hol Equity Equity 9 Shares held SCRR, Votin Total as Convertible | percentage No % of No % of | dematerialize
d Shares held Depositor 1957) a % of Fo : total total d form
er Shares held Receipts g (A+B+C Securities of diluted . Share . Share
s y P ® Right (including share (@) (@)
Asa % of S ) Warrants) | capital) As a Szt Szt
(A+B+C2) o (b) (b)
(A+B+C2)
| 1 1 v \Y Vi VII:I\I/+V+V VIl IX X XI=VI+X X1l X XV
Promoter &
A Promoter 9 9,899,400 - - 9,899,400 99.99 - - 99.99 - - - - [e]"
Group
B Public 6 600 - - 600 0.01 - - 0.01 - - - - [e] "
Non
C Promoter-Non 0 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Public
Shares
1 underlying 0 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
DRs
Shares held by
2 Employee 0 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Trusts
Total 15 99,00,000 - - 99,00,000 100.00 - - 100.00 - - - - -
A The shares under the process of dematerialization. Our Company ensures that the entire equity share of the Company will be dematerialized before the filing Prospectus with
RoC.
Note:

1) As on the date of this Draft Prospectus 1 Equity Shares holds 1 vote.

2) PAN of all shareholders will be provided to the stock exchange by our Company prior to Listing of Equity Share on the Stock Exchange.

3) Our Company will file the shareholding pattern of our Company, in the form prescribed under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, one day prior to
the listing of Equity Shares. The shareholding pattern will be uploaded on the website of Stock Exchanges before commencement of trading of such Equity Shares.

4) The term “Encumbrance” has the same meaning as assigned under regulation 28(3) of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as amended
from time to time.

5) All Pre-IPO Equity Shares of Our Company will be locked in prior to Listing of Shares on EMERGE Platform of NSE.
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16. Following is the details of the aggregate shareholding of Our Promoter

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

and after the Issue is set forth below:

and Promoter Group before

Pre-lIssue Post-1ssue
Sr. . As a % of No. of As a % of
No. Name of the Shareholders No. (;]f equity Pre-lssued equity Post- Issue
SNares Capital shares Capital
A Promoter
1. | Dr. Nitin Vithalrao Thorave 8,941,500 90.32 8,941,500 64.33
Total (A)
B Promoter Group & Relatives 957,400 9.67 957,400 6.89
C | TOTAL (A+B) 9,899,400 99.99 9,899,400 71.22

The average cost of acquisition of per Equity Share by our Promoter is set forth in the table below:

Name of Promoter No. of equity share held Average cost of acquisition (in Rs.)

Dr. Nitin Vithalrao Thorave 8,941,500 10.00

The members of the Promoter Group, our Directors or the relatives of our Directors have not financed the
purchase by any other person of securities of our Company, other than in the normal course of the business
of the financing entity, during the 6 (Six) months preceding the date of this Draft Prospectus.

None of the Promoter , members forming a part of Promoter Group, Promoter Group Companies/Entities,
Directors and their immediate relatives have purchased or sold or transferred any Equity shares of our
Company within the last 6 (Six) months immediately preceding the date of this Draft Prospectus.

For the details of transactions entered between our Company and members forming a part of the Promoter
Group and/ or Group Companies/ Entities for period ended June 30, 2021 and financial years ended on
March 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 refer to ‘Annexure 32: Statement of Related Parties’ Transactions’ on
page no. 199 of this Draft Prospectus under the chapter titled ‘ Restated Financial Statement’ beginning on
page no. 176 of this Draft Prospectus.

Our Company shall ensure that transactions in the Equity Shares by the Promoter and members forming a
part of the Promoter Group and/ or Group Companies/Entities between the date of filing this Draft
Prospectus and the Issue Closing Date shall be reported to the Stock Exchanges within twenty-four hours of
such transaction.

As on date of this Draft Prospectus, there are no outstanding financial instruments or any other rights that
would entitle the existing Promoter or shareholders or any other person any option to receive Equity Shares
after the Issue.

List of shareholders holding 1% or more of the paid up share capital of our company:-

a) Ason the date of this Draft Prospectus:

(0) -
Sr. No. Name of The Shareholders No. of Shares Yoo g‘:pl?{ael e
1. Dr. Nitin Vithalrao Thorave 89,41,500 90.32
2. Mrs. Roshan Nitin Thorave 9,57,200 9.67
Total 98,98,700 99.99

b) 10 days prior to the date of this Draft Prospectus:

0, -
Sr. No. Name Of The Shareholders No. Of Shares %o of tg:pl:;{gl EELE
1. Dr. Nitin Vithalrao Thorave 89,41,500 90.32
2. Mrs. Roshan Nitin Thorave 9,57,200 9.67
Total 98,98,700 99.99

c) 1year prior to the date of filing this Draft Prospectus:

Sr. No. Name Of The Shareholders No. Of Shares % of tg;plii’{ael—lssue
1. Dr. Nitin Vithalrao Thorave 7,362,000 74.36
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24,

25.

26.

217.

28.

29.

Sr. No. Name Of The Shareholders No. Of Shares 0] ?gp‘?{ael' selie
2. Mrs. Roshan Nitin Thorave 958,000 9.68
3. Mr. Vithalrao Laxman Thorave 438,800 4.43
4, Mrs. Shanta Vithalrao Thorave 318,800 3.22
5. Mr. Lata Vithal Hande 213,100 2.15
Total 9,290,700 93.84

d) 2 years prior to the date of filing this Draft Prospectus:

Sr. No. Name Of The Shareholders No. Of Shares 0] tcl‘;;pPi:ael-lssue
1. Dr. Nitin Vithalrao Thorave 7,362,000 74.36
2. Mrs. Roshan Nitin Thorave 958,000 9.68
3. Mr. Vithalrao Laxman Thorave 438,800 4.43
4. Mrs. Shanta Vithalrao Thorave 318,800 3.22
5. Mr. Lata Vithal Hande 213,100 2.15
Total 9,290,400 93.84

None of our Directors or Key Managerial Personnel holds Equity Shares in our Company, except as
mentioned below and as stated in the chapter titled ‘Our Management’ beginning on page no. 132 of this
Draft Prospectus.

. . . No. of Shares held | % of pre-issue paid-up
Sr. No. Name of the KMP's Designation in our Company Equity Share Capital
1. | Mrs. Roshan  Nitin CEO 9,57,200 9.67
Thorave
. Executive
2. Mr. Edwin Dabre Director 100 0.00
. . Executive
3. Ms. Tejal Anil Jayakar Director & CFO 100 0.00
Mr. Krupesh Deepak | Non- Executive
4. Thakur Director 100 0.00
Total 9,57,500 9.67

There will be no further issue of capital, whether by way of issue of bonus shares, preferential allotment,
and rights issue or in any other manner during the period commencing from the date of this Draft
Prospectus until the Equity Shares have been listed. Further, our Company presently does not have any
intention or proposal to alter our capital structure for a period of six months from the date of opening of the
Issue, by way of split/ consolidation of the denomination of Equity Shares or further issue of equity shares
(including issue of securities convertible into exchangeable, directly or indirectly, for our equity shares)
whether preferential or otherwise, except that if we enter into acquisition(s) or joint venture(s), we may
consider additional capital to fund such activities or to use equity shares as a currency for acquisition or
participation in such joint ventures or for regulatory compliance or such other scheme of arrangement or
any other purpose as the Board may deem fit, if an opportunity of such nature is determined by its Board of
Directors to be in the interest of our Company.

There are no other persons belonging to the category “Public” who are holding the securities (including
shares, warrants, convertible securities of our Company more than 5% of the total number of shares as on
the date of this Draft Prospectus.

There are no persons belonging to the category “Public” is holding the securities (including shares,
warrants, convertible securities of our Company more than 1% of the total number of shares as on the date
of this Draft Prospectus.

Our Company, our Promoter, our Directors and the Lead Manager to the Issue have not entered into any
buy-back, standby or similar arrangements with any person for purchase of our Equity Shares from any
person.

There are no safety net arrangements for this Public Issue.
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30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42,

43.

44,

45,

46.

47.

48.

An oversubscription to the extent of 10% of the Issue can be retained for the purposes of rounding off to the
minimum allotment lot, while finalizing the Basis of Allotment. Consequently, the actual Allotment may go
up by a maximum of 10% of the Issue, as a result of which, the post-issue paid up capital after the Issue
would also increase by the excess amount of Allotment so made. In such an event, the Equity Shares held
by our Promoter and subject to lock-in shall be suitably increased; so as to ensure that a minimum of 20%
of the post issue paid-up capital is locked in.

An investor cannot make an application for more than the number of Equity Shares offered in this Issue,
subject to the maximum limit of investment prescribed under relevant laws applicable to each category of
investor.

Investors may note that in case of over-subscription, allotment will be on proportionate basis as detailed
under “Basis of Allotment” in the chapter titled “Issue Procedure” beginning on page no. 250 of this
Draft Prospectus.

In case of over-subscription in all categories the allocation in the Issue shall be in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 253(1) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and its amendments from time to
time.

Under-subscription in the net issue, if any, in any category, would be allowed to be met with spill over from
any other category or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in consultation with the
Lead Manager and the Designated Stock Exchange. Such inter-se spill over, if any, would be effected in
accordance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

The unsubscribed portion in any reserved category (if any) may be added to any other reserved category.

The unsubscribed portion, if any, after such inter se adjustments among the reserved categories shall be
added back to the net offer to the public portion.

As per RBI regulations, OCBs are not allowed to participate in the Issue.
The Issue is being made through Fixed Price method.

None of the other Promoter and members of our Promoter Group will participate in this Issue.

Our Company has not raised any bridge loan against the proceeds of the Issue.

Our Company undertakes that at any given time, there shall be only one denomination for our Equity
Shares, unless otherwise permitted by law.

Our Company shall comply with such accounting and disclosure norms as specified by SEBI from time to
time.

An Applicant cannot make an application for more than the number of Equity Shares being issued through
the Issue, subject to the maximum limit of investment prescribed under relevant laws applicable to each
category of investors.

No payment, direct or indirect in the nature of discount, commission and allowance or otherwise shall be
made either by us or our Promoter to the persons who receive allotments, if any, in the Issue.

We have 15 shareholders as on the date of filing of this Draft Prospectus.

Our Company has not made any public issue (including any rights issue to the public) since its
incorporation.

Neither the Lead Manager, nor their associates hold any Equity Shares of our Company either directly or
indirectly as on the date of this Draft Prospectus.

There is no "Buyback", "Standby", or similar arrangement for the purchase of Equity Shares by our

Company/Promoter /Directors/Lead Manager for purchase of Equity Shares offered through the Draft
Prospectus.
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SECTION VII - PARTICULARS OF THE ISSUE
OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

The Fresh Issue includes a public Issue of 40,00,000 Equity Shares of our Company at an Issue Price of Rs. 125
per Equity Share.

The Net Proceeds from the Issue are proposed to be utilized by our Company for the following objects:

1) Repayment/ pre-payment, in full or in part, of certain borrowings availed by our Company;
2) Additional Working Capital; and
3) General Corporate Expenses.

We believe that listing will give more visibility and enhance corporate image of our Company. We also believe
that our Company and shareholders will receive the benefits from listing of Equity Shares on the EMERGE
Platform of NSE. It will also provide liquidity to the existing shareholders and will also create a public trading
market for the Equity Shares of our Company.

The main object clause of Memorandum of Association of our Company enables us to undertake the activities
for which the funds are being raised by us through the Issue. Further, we confirm that the activities which we
have been carrying out till date are in accordance with the object clause of our Memorandum of Association.
For the main objects clause of our Memorandum of Association, see “History and Certain Corporate Matters”
on page 128.

Issue Proceeds and Net Proceeds

The details of the issue proceeds are summarized below:

Particulars Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)
Gross Proceeds of the Issue 5000.00
Less: Issue related expenses 360.00
Net Proceeds of the Issue (Net Proceeds) 4640.00

Utilization of Funds and Means of Finance:

We intend to utilize the proposed net proceeds in the manner set forth below:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Obijects of the Issue IPO Proceeds
1. Repayment of Loans 1600.00
2. Additional Working Capital 2600.00
3. General Corporate Expenses 440.00
4. To meet the expenses of the Issue 360.00
Total 5000.00

For details on the secured loan, please refer to chapter titled “Statement of Financial Indebtness” on page no.
207 of this Draft Prospectus.

Accordingly, we confirm that we are in compliance with the requirement to make firm arrangements of finance
under Regulation 230 (1) (e) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations through verifiable means towards at least 75% of
the stated means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised through the Net Proceeds and existing
identifiable internal accruals.

Our fund requirements and deployment are based on the estimates of our management. These are based on
current plans and circumstances of our business and are subject to change in light of changes in external
circumstances or costs, or in our financial condition and business or strategy. Further, these estimates have not
been appraised and/or verifies by the Lead Merchant Banker or any bank or financial institution or any other
external agency.

While we intend to utilize the Fresh Issue Proceeds in the manner provided above, in the event of a surplus, we
will use such surplus towards general corporate purposes including meeting future growth requirements. In case
of variations in the actual utilization of funds earmarked for the purposes set forth above, increased fund
requirements for a particular purpose may be financed by surplus funds, if any, available in respect of the other
purposes for which funds are being raised in this Issue.
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In the event of any shortfall in the Net Proceeds or in case of delay in raising funds through the IPO, our
Company may deploy certain amounts towards any of the above-mentioned Object of Issue through a
combination of Internal Accruals and/ or seeking additional debt from existing and future lenders or such
balance will be used for future growth opportunities including funding existing objects, if required. However,
we confirm that except as mentioned in “Statement of Financial Indebtness™ on page no. 207 of this Draft
Prospectus, no other secured/ unsecured / bridge financing/ etc. has been availed as on date of filing this Draft
Prospectus for the above-mentioned objects, which shall be subject to being repaid from the Issue Proceeds.

We further confirm that no part of the Issue Proceed shall be utilized for repayment of any part of outstanding
unsecured loan as on date of filing the Draft Prospectus.

Our management, in response to the competitive and dynamic nature of the industry and specifically that of our
business, will have the discretion to revise its business plan and expenditure from time to time and consequently
our funding requirement and deployment of funds may also change. This may, subject to compliance with
applicable laws and regulations also include rescheduling and/ or revising the proposed utilization of Proceeds
and increasing or decreasing expenditures for a particular object vis-a-vis the utilization of Proceeds.

For further details on the risks involved in our business plans and executing our business strategies, please see
the section titled “Risk Factors” beginning on page no. 21.

Schedule of Implementation

Repayment of Loans will be done during FY 2021-22.
The entire amount of Working capital will be utilized during FY 2021-2022.
Deployment of Funds in the Objects

As on the date of the Draft Prospectus, our Company has not deployed any amount on the Objects of the Issue.
Details of balance fund deployment

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sr Expenses Already Utilization of Net
No. Objects of the Issue Incurred till Proceeds Total

' September 30, 2021 (for FY 2021-22)
1. Repayment of Loans - 1600.00 1600.00
2. Additional Working Capital - 2600.00 2600.00
3. General Corporate Expenses - 440.00 440.00
4. To meet the expenses of the Issue 6.00 344.00 360.00
Total 6.00 4984.00 5000.00

To the extent our Company is unable to utilize any portion of the Net Proceeds towards the Object, as per the
estimated schedule of deployment specified above; our Company shall deploy the Net Proceeds in the
subsequent Financial Years towards the Object.

The funds deployed up to 6.00 Lakhs pursuant to the object of the fresh Issue as certified by the Auditors of our
Company, viz. M/s R. K. Chapawat & Co, Chartered Accountants, Chartered Accountants pursuant to their
certificate dated October 06, 2021.

DETAILS OF THE OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE
I. REPAYMENT OF LOANS

As at June 30, 2021, our Company’s outstanding secured loans amounted to Rs. 3205.43 lakhs. Our Company
proposes to utilize Rs. 1600.00 Lakhs from the Net Proceeds of the Issue towards repayment of certain high cost
borrowings availed by our Company. Our Company has entered into financing arrangements for availing terms
loans. For disclosure of our borrowings as at June 30, 2021, see “Financial Indebtedness” beginning on page
no. 207 of this Draft Prospectus. We operate in business which is capital-intensive, and we rely on borrowings
to meet our cash flow requirements for our operations. Our Company will approach the banks/financial
institutions/lenders after the completion of this Issue, for repayment of the below mentioned loans. Under the
terms and conditions of the relevant loan agreements, prepayment of such debt, in part or whole any time during
their respective tenure may attract certain prepayment penalties or premiums in certain cases. Payment of such
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prepayment penalty or premium, if any, shall be made by our Company out of its internal accruals. The
following table sets forth details of certain loans / facilities availed by our Company, of which certain loans/
facilities will be repaid/ pre-paid from the Net Proceeds of the Issue:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Name of Amt Principal Amount Pre-

Sr. Nature of . Outstanding ROI | Payment Purpose of

the . Sacntioned . -

No. Lender Borrowing ason (p.a.) | Clause (if | raising Loan

30-09-2021 any)

1. New 293.00 198.76 Purchase of
India Co- Plant &
operative | Term Loan 11.50 Nil Machinery and

2. bank 225.66 32.20 Premises
Limited Renovation

3 Purchase of

Term Loan 618.00 425.19 10.95 Nil Plant &
Machinery

4 Bank Of Term aTc?ditiongerVIde
Maharash Loan- L
tra Guaranteed . Liquidity e

88.05 88.27 7.50 Nil Meet
Emergency .
i Operational
Credit Line S
(GECL) I|ab|_I|t|es under
Covid 19

5 Thane 0 Purchase of
Bharat Ze/(’stpilrl:s Plant &
Sahakari Term Loan 180.00 181.56 10.50 Machinery

Prepaymen
Bank h
Limited

6 Vasai Purchase of
Vikas Plant &
sahakari Term Loan 854.00 636.05 11.00 Nil Machinery
Bank
Limited

7 Union Purchase of
Bank Of | Term Loan 501.25 37.95 9.65 Nil Plant &
India Machinery

In accordance with Clause 9(A)(2)(b) of Part A of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, which requires a
certificate from the Statutory Auditor certifying the utilization of loans for the purposes availed, our Company
has obtained requisite certificate dated October 06, 2021, in this regard.

Il. TOMEET INCREMENTAL WORKING CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

Being in the service industry of managing diagnostic centres s, our company requires to the necessary capital to
ensure continuous progress and the smooth conduct of the business , purchase the necessary materials for
conducting the events, making necessary payouts, meeting with the regular business expenditures etc. In order
to meet to with the continuous flow of capital, our company utilizes its internal accruals, short term loans,
obtains unsecured loan from its Promoters, Directors and Relatives, cash credit facilities from banks and through
various modes of Bank Financing. As on June 30, 2021, the Company’s net working capital consisted of Rs.
3014.64 Lakhs.

Based on the internal workings by our Management and considering the existing and future growth of our
Company, Rs. 2600.00 Lakhs as the total working capital requirement of our Company is expected to reach by
FY 2021-22.

Basis of estimation of working capital requirement and estimated working capital requirement:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

) 2019-20 No. of 2020-21 No. of 2021-22 No. of
Particulars : ; :
Audited Days Audited Days Estimated Days
Current Assets
Inventories 5.58 12 10.58 17 10.75 15
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2019-20 No. of 2020-21 No. of 2021-22 No. of

FaniEers Audited Days Audited Days Estimated Days
Trade Receivables 543.20 89 543.19 90 69.00 90
Cash & Bank Balances 736.31 729.66 2960.00
Short Term Loans & Advances 114.67 1868.22 2000.00
ZSTAL CURRENT  ASSETS 2432.76 3151.65 5040.15
Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities 1.12 108.43 0.00 120.00
Short Term Borrowings 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Trade Payables (18.25) - 152.37 30 2291 30
TOTAL CURRENT
LIABILITIES (B) (17.13) 260.80 142.91
WORKING CAPITAL GAP (A- | 549 g9 2890.85 4898.00

B)

Funding Pattern:

Working Capital Facilities from
Banks & Others Financial | 1347.02 1557.74 1939.00
Institutions *

Funding through internal accruals/
own funds /unsecured loan 1102.86 1333.10 359.00

Funding Through IPO - - 2600.00

*For details on the secured loan, please refer to chapter titled “Statement of Financial Indebtness” on page
no.207 of this Draft Prospectus.

We will require working capital to increase based on the following holding periods :

Inventories We expect Inventory Holding days to be at appx. 15 Days for Fiscal 2021-22 which
will be as per previous years trends.

Trade Receivables | We expect Debtors Holding days to be at appx. 12 weeks for Fiscal 2021-22 based
on our policy of delivering mostly against advance payment with very short credit period
to attract new customers

Trade Payables We expect Creditor’s payments days to be appx. 30 Days for Fiscal 2021-22 in line with
our past experience.

111. GENERAL CORPORATE EXPENSES

Our management, in accordance with the policies of our Board, will deploy Rs. 500.00 Lakhs from Net
Proceeds towards the general corporate expenses to drive our business growth.

In accordance with the policies set up by our Board, we have flexibility in utilizing the remaining Net Proceeds
not exceeding 25% of the amount raised by our Company through this Issue, for general corporate purpose
including but not restricted to, meeting operating expenses, branding, promotion, advertisements and meeting
exigencies, which the Company in the ordinary course of business may not foresee or any other purposes as
approved by our Board of Directors, subject to compliance with the necessary provisions of the Companies Act.

Further, our management confirms that

- any issue related expenses shall not be considered as a part of General Corporate Purpose; and

- the amount deployed towards general corporate expense, as mentioned above in this Draft Prospectus, shall
not exceed 25% of the amount raised by our Company through this Issue.

IV. TO MEET THE EXPENSES OF THE ISSUE

The total expenses of the Issue are estimated to be approximately Rs. 360.00 Lakhs which include, among
others, underwriting and management fees, printing and distribution expenses, advertisement expenses, legal
fees and listing fees. The estimated Issue expenses are as follows:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Particulars Amount

1. Issue management fees including fees and reimbursements of Market 260.00
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Sr. No. Particulars Amount

Making fees and payment to other intermediaries such as Legal Advisors
to the IPO, Registrars and other out of pocket expenses.

2. Advertising and marketing expenses 60.00

3. Printing & Stationery, Distribution, Postage 5.00

4. Regulatory and other statutory expenses including Listing Fee 35.00
Total estimated Issue expenses 360.00

@ please note that the cost mentioned is an estimate quotation as obtained from the respective parties and
excludes GST, interest rate and inflation cost.

Note:

1. Up to October 06, 2021, Our Company has deployed/incurred expense of Rs. 10.00 Lakhs towards Issue
Expenses out of internal accruals duly certified by Statutory Auditor M/s R. K. Chapawat & Co, Chartered
Accountants vide its certificate dated June 30, 2021.

2. The amount deployed so far toward issue expenses shall be recouped out of the issue proceeds.

Bridge Financing Facilities

We have not entered into any bridge finance arrangements that will be repaid from the Net Proceeds. However,
we may draw down such amounts, as may be required, from an overdraft arrangement / cash credit facility with
our lenders, to finance additional working capital needs until the completion of the Issue. Any amount that is
drawn down from the overdraft arrangement / cash credit facility during this period to finance additional
working capital needs will be repaid from the Net Proceeds.

Appraisal by Appraising Agency

The fund requirements and deployment is based on internal management estimates and has not been appraised
by any banks or financial institutions.

Interim Use of Funds

Pending utilization of the Net Proceeds for the purposes described above, our Company will deposit the Net
Proceeds with scheduled commercial banks included in schedule Il of the RBI Act, 1934, as amended from time
to time. Such deposits will be approved by our management from time to time.

In accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, our Company confirms that, pending utilization of
the Net Proceeds of the Offer as described above, it shall not use the funds from the Net Proceeds for any
investment in equity and/or real estate products and/or equity linked and/or real estate linked products.

Monitoring of Issue Proceeds

As the size of the Fresh Issue does not exceed Rs. 10,000 Lakhs, in terms of Regulation 262 of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency for the purposes of this Issue. Our
Board and the management will monitor the utilization of the Net Proceeds through its audit committee.

Pursuant to 32 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, our Company shall on half-yearly basis disclose to the
Audit Committee the applications of the proceeds of the Issue. On an annual basis, our Company shall prepare a
statement of funds utilized for purposes other than stated in this Prospectus and place it before the Audit
Committee. Such disclosures shall be made only until such time that all the proceeds of the Issue have been
utilized in full. Until such time as any part of the Net Proceeds remains unutilized, our Company will disclose
the utilization of the Net Proceeds under separate heads in our Company’s balance sheet(s) clearly specifying
the amount of and purpose for which Net Proceeds have been utilized so far, and details of amounts out of the
Net Proceeds that have not been utilized so far, also indicating interim investments, if any, of such unutilized
Net Proceeds. In the event that our Company is unable to utilize the entire amount that we have currently
estimated for use out of the Net Proceeds in a fiscal, we will utilize such unutilized amount in the next fiscal.

Further, in accordance with Regulation 32(1)(a) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, our Company shall
furnish to the Stock Exchanges on a half yearly basis, a statement indicating material deviations, if any, in the
utilization of the Net Proceeds for the objects stated in this Draft Prospectus.

Variation in Objects

In accordance with Section 13(8) and Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules, our
Company shall not vary the objects of the Issue without our Company being authorized to do so by the
Shareholders by way of a special resolution. In addition, the notice issued to the Shareholders in relation to the
passing of such special resolution shall specify the prescribed details as required under the Companies Act and
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applicable rules. The notice in respect of such resolution to Shareholders shall simultaneously be published in
the newspapers, one in English and one in vernacular language of the jurisdiction where our Registered Office is
situated. The Shareholders who do not agree to the proposal to vary the objects, our Promoter or controlling
Shareholders will be required to provide an exit opportunity to such Shareholders, at such a price as may be
prescribed by SEBI, in this regard.

Other Confirmations

No part of the Issue Proceeds will be paid by our Company as consideration to our Promoter, Promoter Group,
our Directors, Associates, Key Management Personnel or Group Companies, except as may be required in the
normal course of business and in compliance with the applicable law.
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BASIS FOR ISSUE PRICE

Investors should read the following summary with the section titled “Risk Factors”, the details about our Company
under the chapter titled “Our Business” and its financial statements under the section titled “Financial
Information” beginning on pages 21, 100 and 176 respectively including important profitability and return ratios, as
set out in “Annexure 33” under the section titled Financial Information of the Company on page 200 to have a more
informed view. The issue price of the Equity Shares of our Company could decline due to these risks and the
investor may lose all or part of his/their investment.

QUALITATIVE FACTORS

For details of Qualitative factors please refer to the paragraph ‘Our Competitive Strengths’ in the chapter titled
‘Business Overview’ beginning on page no. 100 of this Draft Prospectus.

QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

Our Company was incorporated on December 05, 2000. Therefore theinformation presented below relating to the
Company is based on the restated financial statements of the Company for the period ended June 30, 2021 and the
Financial Years ending March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 prepared in accordance with Indian
GAAP. Some of the quantitative factors, which form the basis for computing the price, are as follows:

1. Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS):

Period Basic and Diluted EPS (In Rs.) Weights
Fiscal 2019 0.23 1
Fiscal 2020 0.72 2
Fiscal 2021 2.32 3
Weighted Average 1.44
As on 30-06-2020 (Non-Annualized) 1.09

Notes:
(i) The figures disclosed above are based on the restated financial statements of the Company.
(ii) The face value of each Equity Share is Rs. 10.00.
(iii) Earnings per Share has been calculated in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 — “Earnings per Share” issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
(iv) The above statement should be read with Significant Accounting Policies and the Notes to the Restated Financial Statements as
appearing in Annexure 04 on page no.182.
(v) Basic Earnings per share = Net profit/ (loss) after tax, as restated attributable to equity shareholders /Weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year/ period.
(vi) Diluted Earnings per share = Net profit after tax, as restated / Weighted average number of diluted equity shares outstanding
during the year/ period.
(vii) Weighted average = Aggregate of year-wise weighted EPS divided by the aggregate of weights i.e. [(EPS x Weight) for each
fiscal] / [Total of weights].

2. Price to Earnings (P/E) ratio in relation to Issue Price of Rs. 125:

Particulars P/E at the Issue Price of Rs. 125:
Based on the Basic and Diluted FY 2020-21 53.88
Based on the Basic and Diluted as on June 30, 2021 (non- | 114.68
Annualized)
Based on the Weighted Average Basic and Diluted EPS 86.91
Industry P/E
Metropolis Healthcare Limited 55.73
Dr Lal PathLabs Limited 82.18
Industry composite 68.96
Note:

(i) Industry P/E is based as on unaudited financials June 30, 2020; Source for industry P/E: www.moneycontrol.com.
Please note the companies mentioned are the nearest comparable but not exactly comparable.

(i) P/E Ratio = Issue Price/ EPS

(iii) Since there is only a single company in the similar line of business as ours and is listed on the Stock Exchange,
hence, the high, low and average price cannot be ascertained.
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Average Return on Net Worth (RoNW):

Period Return on Net Worth (%) Weights
Fiscal 2019 0.02 1
Fiscal 2020 0.06 2
Fiscal 2021 0.17 3
Weighted Average 0.11
As on 30-06-2020 (Non-Annualized) 0.075
Note:

(i) The RONW has been computed by dividing net profit after tax(excluding exceptional income, if any) as restated,
by Net Worth (excluding revaluation reserve, if any) as at the end of theyear/ period excluding miscellaneous
expenditure to the extent not written off.

(ii) Weighted average = Aggregate of year-wise weighted RoONW divided by the aggregate of weights i.e. [[RONW x Weight) for
each fiscal] / [Total of weights].

Net Asset Value (NAV) per Equity Share:

Particulars NAYV (in Rs.)

As on March 31, 2021 13.46

As on 30-06-2021 (NotAnnualized) 14.56

NAYV after the Issue 46.34

Issue Price 125.00
Note:

- NAV per Equity Share will be calculated as net worth divided by number of equity shares outstanding at the end of
the year.

Comparison of Accounting Ratios with Peer Group Companies:

Sr. Particulars Face Value | Basic EPS P/E RONW NAV
No. (InRs.) (InRs.) Ratio (%) (InRs.)
1. Nidan Laboratories and
Healthcare Limited 10.00 2.32 53.88 0.17 13.46
2. Metropolis Healthcare Limited 2.00 35.97 55.73 25.91 2807.00*
3. Dr Lal PathLabs Limited 10.00 35.33 82.18 23.42 3704.95*
Notes:

@iy Source: www.moneycontrol.com.

(ii) Based on June 30, 2020 restated financial statement (non-annualized)

(iii) Price Earning (P/E) Ratio in relation to the Issue Price of Rs.125/-

(iv) Accounting Ratios for the peer comparsion Companies is based as on audited financials march 2021.

(v) “closing prices as on 06-10-20210n nse

(viy Please note the companies mentioned are the nearest comparable but not exactly comparable.

(vii) Considering the nature and size of business of the Company, the nearest comparable peer is considered and
broad comparison has been mentioned.

The face value of Equity Shares of our Company is Rs. 10 per Equity Share and the Issue Price of Rs. 125/- per
Equity Share is 12.5 times the face value.

The Issue Price of Rs. 125 is determined by our Company in consultation with the Lead Manager and is
justified based on the above accounting ratios. For further details, please refer to the section titled 'Risk
Factors', and chapters titled '‘Business Overview' and 'RestatedFinancial Statement’ beginning on page no. 21,
100 and 176, respectively of this Draft Prospectus.
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STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO NIDAN LABORATORIES AND
HEALTHCARE LIMITED AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE APPLICABLE LAWS IN INDIA

To,

The Board of Directors,

Nidan Laboratories and Healthcare Limited
Swapnshilpa, Behind Aarti Apartment,

Vartak Road, Virar (West) — 401303,

Palagar, Maharashtra, India

Sub: Statement of possible special tax benefits (“the Statement”) available to Nidan Laboratories and
Healthcare Limited (‘the Company”) and its shareholders prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital Disclosure Requirements)
Requlations, 2018, as amended (“the Regulations”)

Dear Sir/ Madam,

We hereby report that this certificate along with the annexure (hereinafter referred to as “The Statement”) and as
prepared by the management of the Company states the possible special tax benefits available to the Company and
the shareholders of the Company under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (‘IT Act’) (read with Income Tax Rules, Circulars
and Notifications) as amended by the Finance Act, 2019 (i.e. applicable to Financial Year 2021-22 relevant to
Assessment Year 2022-23) (hereinafter referred to as the “IT Regulations™) and under the Goods And Service Tax
Act, 2017 (read with Goods And Service Tax [GST] Rules, Circulars and Notifications), presently in force in India.

Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company or its shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under
the said relevant provisions of the tax laws and regulations applicable to the Company. Hence, the ability of the
Company or its shareholders to derive the special tax benefits, if any, is dependent upon fulfilling such conditions
which based on business imperatives which the Company may or may not choose to fulfill.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed annexure cover only special tax benefits available to the Company and its
shareholders and do not cover any general tax benefits available to the Company or its shareholders. Further, the
preparation of enclosed statement and the contents stated therein is not exhaustive and is the responsibility of the
Company’s management. This statement is only intended to provide general information to the investors and is
neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. A shareholder is advised to consult his/
her/ its own tax consultant with respect to the tax implications arising out of his/her/its participation in the proposed
public issue, particularly in view of ever-changing tax laws in India. Further, we give no assurance that the income
tax authorities/ other indirect tax authorities/courts will concur with our views expressed herein.

We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether:
e the Company or its shareholders will continue to obtain these benefits in future; or
e the conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been/would be met with.

The contents of this annexure are based on information, explanations and representations obtained from the
Company and on the basis of our understanding of the business activities and operations of the Company and the
provisions of the tax laws.

Our views are based on facts indicated to us, the existing provisions of tax law and its interpretations, which are
subject to change or modification from time to time. Any such changes, which could also be retrospective, could
have an effect on the validity of our views stated herein. We assume no obligation to update this statement on any
such events subsequent, which may have a material effect on the discussions herein. Our views are exclusively for
the limited use of the captioned Company in connection with its proposed public issue referred to herein above and
shall not, without our prior written consent, be disclosed to any other person.

We shall not be liable to the Company for any claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this assignment extent of
fees relating to this assignment, as finally judicially determined to have resulted primarily from bad faith or
intentional misconduct. We are not liable to any other person in respect of this statement.
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This certificate along with the annexure is provided solely for the purpose of assisting the addressee Company in
discharging its responsibility under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and for inclusion in the Draft Prospectus/ Prospectus in connection with the
proposed issue of equity shares and is not to be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose without our
written consent.

Yours faithfully,

For M/s R.K.Chapawat & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 101708w
Ravindra Chapawat
Membership No. 37720

Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: 06-10-2021
UDIN: 21037720AAAAIT7650
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ANNEXURE TO THE STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE
COMPANY AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS

Outlined below are the possible special tax benefits available to the Company and its shareholders under the current
direct tax laws in India for the financial year 2021-22. It is not exhaustive or comprehensive and is not intended to
be a substitute for professional advice. Investors are advised to consult their own tax consultant with respect to the
tax implications of an investment in the Equity Shares particularly in view of the fact that certain recently enacted
legislation may not have a direct legal precedent or may have a different interpretation on the benefits, which an
investor can avail.

YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISORS CONCERNING THE INDIAN TAX
IMPLICATIONS AND CONSEQUENCES OF PURCHASING, OWNING AND DISPOSING OF EQUITY
SHARES IN YOUR PARTICULAR SITUATION.

A. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS TO THE COMPANY UNDER THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961 (THE
“ACT”)

The Company is not entitled to any special tax benefits under the Act.

B. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961
(THE “ACT”)

The Shareholders of the Company are not entitled to any special tax benefits under the Act.
Notes:

1) All the above benefits are as per the current tax laws and will be available only to the sole / first name holder
where the shares are held by joint holders.

2) The above statement covers only certain relevant direct tax law benefits and does not cover any indirect tax law
benefits or benefit under any other law.

3) The above statement of possible special tax benefits are as per the current direct tax laws relevant for the F.Y.
2021-22 relevant to A.Y. 2022-23.

We hereby give our consent to include our above referred opinion regarding the tax benefits available to the
Company and to its shareholders in the offer document.
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SECTION VIII - ABOUT US
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The information in this section has not been independently verified by us or any other person connected with the
Issue or by any of our or their respective affiliates or advisors. This section also includes extracts from publicly
available information, data and statistics and has been derived from various government publications and industry
sources. The data may have been re- classified by us for the purposes of presentation.The information may not be
consistent with other information compiled by third parties within or outside India. Industry sources and
publications generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources it believes to be
reliable, but their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed, and their reliability
cannot be assured. Industry and government publications are also prepared based on information as of specific
dates and may no longer be current or reflect current trends. Industry and government sources and publications
may also base their information on estimates, forecasts and assumptions which may prove to be incorrect.
Accordingly, investment decisions should not be based on such information. Further, the Investors should read the
entire Draft Prospectus, including the information contained in the sections titled “Risk Factors” and “Financial
Statements” and related notes beginning on page no. 21 and 176 respectively of this Draft Prospectus before
deciding to invest in our Equity Shares.

Healthcare Introduction

Healthcare has become one of India’s largest sector, both in terms of revenue and employment. Healthcare
comprises hospitals, medical devices, clinical trials, outsourcing, telemedicine, medical tourism, health insurance
and medical equipment. The Indian healthcare sector is growing at a brisk pace due to its strengthening coverage,
services and increasing expenditure by public as well private players.

Indian healthcare delivery system is categorised into two major components public and private. The Government,
i.e. public healthcare system, comprises limited secondary and tertiary care institutions in key cities and focuses on
providing basic healthcare facilities in the form of primary healthcare centres (PHCs) in rural areas. The private
sector provides majority of secondary, tertiary, and quaternary care institutions with major concentration in metros
and tier I and tier Il cities.

India's competitive advantage lies in its large pool of well-trained medical professionals. India is also cost
competitive compared to its peers in Asia and Western countries. The cost of surgery in India is about one-tenth of
that in the US or Western Europe.

As of February 3, 2021, India became the fastest country in the world to reach the 4 million COVID-19 vaccination
Government hospitals — It includes healthcare centres, district hospitals and
general hospitals

Private hospitals — It includes nursing homes and mid-tier and top-tier
private hospitals.

It includes manufacturing, extraction, processing, purification and packaging
of chemical materials for use as medications for humans or animals.

Pharmaceutical

It compnises businesses and laboratories that offer analytical or diagnostic
Healthcare Diagnostics - ok 9

services, including body fluid analysis.

It includes establishments primarily manufacturing medical equipment and

Medical equipment
and supplies

supplies, e.g. surgical, dental, orthopaedic, ophthalmologic, laboratory
instruments, efc.

L It includes health insurance and medical reimbursement facility, covering an
Medical insurance

individual's hospitalisation expenses incurred due to sickness.

Telemedicine has enormous potential in meeting the challenges of
Telemedicine healthcare delivery to rural and remote areas besides several other
applications in education, training and management in health sector.

Source: Hospital Market — India by Research on india



mark in 18 days.
Market Size

Healthcare has become one of India's largest sector, both in terms of revenue and employment. The industry is
growing at a tremendous pace owing to its strengthening coverage, service and increasing expenditure by public as
well private players. In 2016-22, the market is expected to record a CAGR of 17.69%. The total industry size is
estimated to reach US$ 193.83 billion by 2020 and US$ 372 billion by 2022. In Budget 2021, India’s public
expenditure on healthcare stood at 1.2% as a percentage of the GDP. Health insurance is gaining momentum in
India. Gross direct premium income underwritten by health insurance grew 17.16% y-o0-y to Rs. 51,637.84 crore
(US$ 7.39 billion) in FY20. This is due to rising income, easier access to high-quality healthcare facilities and
greater awareness of personal health and hygiene. Greater penetration of health insurance aided the rise in healthcare
spending, a trend likely to intensify in the coming decade. Economic prosperity is driving the improvement in
affordability for generic drugs in the market. In Budget 2021, India’s public expenditure on healthcare stood at 1.2%
as a percentage of the GDP. The Government is planning to increase public health spending to 2.5% of the country's
GDP by 2025. The share of healthcare in GDP is expected to rise 19.7% by 2027.

Healthcare Sector Growth Trend (US$ Billion)
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» Healthcare market in
India is expected to
reach US$ 193.83
billion by 2020 and US$
372 billion by 2022,
driven by rising income,
better health
awareness, lifestyle
diseases and increasing
access to insurance.

ADVANTAGE INDIA

« The Government of

India aims to increase
healthcare spending to
three percent of the
Gross Domestic
Product (GDP) by 2022.

« Mergers and acquisition

(M&A) deals in the
healthcare sector
jumped by a record
155% to Rs 7,615 crore
(US$ 1.09 billion) in
FY19.

= Availability of a large

Rising

Manpower

pool of well-trained
medical professionals in
the country.

« The number of doctors

with recognised medical
qualifications (under
|.M.C Act) registered
with state medical
councils/medical
council of India
increased to 1,255,786
in September 2020 from

Policy and

government
support

« The Government aims

to develop India as a
global healthcare hub.

« The government has

placed a purchase
order with  Serum
Institute of India (SlI)
for 11 million doses of
Oxford COVID-19
vaccine, Covishield, to
prepare for the world's
largest ‘COVID-19
vaccination campaign'.

827,006 in 2010.

o S

4 BOh)

Recent developments

Between April 2000 and June 2021, FDI inflows for drugs and pharmaceuticals sector stood at US$ 16.87 billion,
according to the data released by Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade (DPIIT). Some of the
recent initiatives in the Indian healthcare industry are as follows:

e In February 2021, India approved the commercial supply of 24 million doses of COVID-19 vaccines to 25
countries, more than 2x the 10.5 million vaccines exported in January 2021. Through this, seven countries,
including Brazil, Morocco and South Africa, were sent >~10 million doses on a commercial basis.

e On February 2021, the National Backward Classes Finance and Development Corporation (NBCFDC) signed a
MOU with Apollo Medskills Pvt Ltd. to co-fund a COVID Vaccine Administration training programmes for
nurses, medical & nursing students and pharmacists belonging to the NBCFDC target community.

o As of February 10, 2021, >66 lakh (66,11,561) beneficiaries were vaccinated under the countrywide COVID-19
vaccination exercise.

e In February 2021, the Competition Commission of India (CCI) approved acquisition of Varian Medical Systems,
Inc. by Siemens Healthineers Holding | Gmb (SHS GmbH).

e In February 2021, the Minister for Commerce and Industry of India, Mr. Piyush Goyal, and the UK Secretary of
State for International Trade, Ms. Elizabeth Truss MP, completed a meeting to discuss the bilateral trade and
economic relations of India—UK trade and investment relationship. The Ministers also welcomed enhancement of
bilateral health cooperation between the two countries, such as on vaccines, which is allowing India to serve as a
global source of strength in overcoming COVID-19-imposed challenges.

¢ In February 2021, Prime Minister, Mr. Narendra Modi laid the foundation stones for two hospitals and launched
‘Asom Mala’, a programme for state highways and major district roads, in Assam. He also added that ~1.25
crore people in the state are being benefitted from Ayushman Bharat Scheme.

Healthcare infrastructure has risen at a fast pace
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= India's medical educational infrastructure has grown rapidly in the last few decades.
= As of February 2021, the number medical colleges in India stood at 562.

= The number of doctors having recognised medical qualifications (under |. M.C Act) registered with state medical councils/medical council of India
increased to 1,255,786 in September 2020 from 827,006 in 2010.

= As per information provided by the Board of Governors (March 2020), the Council of India (MCI) registered 3,71,870 allopathic doctors with the
Medical Council of India/State Medical Council for their specialist/postgraduate qualifications. This gives a 1:3629 doctor—population ratio, as per
the latest population estimate of 135 crore.

Notable trends in the Indian healthcare sector

Shift from communicable to lifestyle diseases

+ With increasing urbanisation and problems related to modern-day living in urban settings, currently, about 50% of spending on in-patient beds
is for lifestyle diseases — this has increased the demand for specialised care. In India, lifestyle diseases have replaced traditional health
problems.

+ Most lifestyle diseases are caused by high cholesterol, high blood pressure, obesity, poor diet and alcohol.

Expansion to tier ii and tier iii cities

= Vaatsalya Healthcare is one of the first hospital chains to start focus on tier |l and tier 11l for expansion.
= To encourage the private sector to establish hospitals in these cities, the Government has relaxed taxes on these hospitals for the
first five years.

Emergence of telemedicine

Telemedicine is a fast-emerging sector in India. Major hospitals (Apollo, AIIMS, Narayana Hrudayalaya) have adopted telemedicine
services and entered into a number of PPPs.

» Telemedicine can bridge the rural-urban divide in terms of medical facilities, extending low-cost consultation and diagnosis facilities to
the remotest of areas via high-speed internet and telecommunication.

= On December 14, 2020, eSanjeevani telemedicine service of the Health Ministry crossed 1 million (10 lakh) teleconsultations since its
launch, enabling patient-to-doctor consultations from the confines of their home, as well as doctor-to-doctor consultations.
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Rising adoption of artificial intelligence (Al)

* Rising adoption of Al-based applications has enabled people to talk directly to doctors, physician, and expertise for the best treatment.
= ltis also capable of solving problems of patients, doctors, and hospitals as well as the overall healthcare industry.

Introduction of vaccine delivery digital platform

= In December 2020, a new COVID-19 vaccine delivery digital platform called 'CO-WIN' is being prepared to deliver vaccines. As a
beneficiary management tool with different modules, this user-friendly mobile app for recording vaccine data, is in the process of
establishing the ‘Healthcare Workers' database, which is in an advanced stage across all states/UTs.

= In January 2021, Union Health Secretary, Mr. Bhushan stated that the Government of India will proactively help other countries who
may want to use CO-WIN, India’s indigenous vaccination management system.

Increasing penetration of health insurance

* In FY20, gross healthcare insurance stood at 27_3% of overall gross direct premium income by non- life insurers segment.
= Health insurance is gaining momentum in India. Gross direct premium income underwritten by health insurance grew 17.16% y-o-y to
Rs. 51,637.84 crore (US$ 7.39 billion) in FY20.

Focus on universal immunization programmes (UIP)

= As of December 2020, under universal immunization programmes, ~1.54 lakh ANMs (auxiliary nurse midwives) are operating as COVID-19
vaccinators. For further expansion of vaccinators, the government plans fo take collaborative effort with states and UTs.

Technological initiatives

= Digital Health Knowledge Resources, Electronic Medical Record, Mobile Healthcare, Electronic Health Record, Hospital Informafion System,
PRACTO, Technology-enabled care, telemedicine and Hospital Management Information Systems are some of the technologies gaining wide
acceptance in the sector.

= In December 2020, Hahnemann Scientific Laboratory (India) Pvt. Ltd. (Haslab), in collaboration with 3EA (a management consulting group),
launched India's first homeopathy healthcare mobile application to better serve patients.

Government Initiatives
Some of the major initiatives taken by the Government of India to promote Indian healthcare industry are as follows:

¢ In the Union Budget 2021, investment in health infrastructure expanded 2.37x, or 137% YoY'; the total health
sector allocation for FY22 stood at Rs. 223,846 crore (US$ 30.70 billion).

e The government announced Rs. 64,180 crore (US$ 8.80 hillion) outlay for the healthcare sector over six years in
the Union Budget 2021-22 to strengthen the existing ‘National Health Mission’ by developing capacities of
primary, secondary and tertiary care, healthcare systems and institutions for detection and cure of new &
emerging diseases.

e In Union Budget 2021-22, the government announced its plans to launch ‘Mission Poshan 2.0’ to merge
‘Supplementary Nutrition Programme’ with ‘Poshan Abhiyan’ (Nutrition Mission) in order to improve
nutritional outcomes across 112 aspirational districts.

e The Government of India approved continuation of ‘National Health Mission’ with a budget of Rs. 37,130 crore
(US$ 5.10 billion) under the Union Budget 2021-22.
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¢ In the Union Budget 2021, the Ministry of AYUSH was allocated Rs. 2,970 crore (US$ 407.84 million), up from
Rs. 2,122 crore (US$ 291.39 million).

Pradhan Mantri Jan Arogya Yojana (PMJAY)

= The government announced Rs. 64,180 crore (US$ 8.80 billion) outlay for the healthcare sector over six years in the Union Budget 2021-22
to strengthen the existing ‘National Health Mission’ by developing capacities of primary, secondary and tertiary care, healthcare systems
and institutions for detection and cure of new & emerging diseases.

Tax incentives

= All healthcare education and training services are exempted from service tax.

= Increase in tax holiday under section 80- IB for private healthcare providers in non metros for minimum of 50 bedded hospitals.

= 250% deduction for approved expenditure incurred on operating technology enables healthcare services such as tele medicine , remote
radiology. Artificial heart is exempted from basic custom duty of 5%

= Income tax exemption for 15 years for domestically manufactured medical technology products.

= The benefit of section 80-IB has been extended to new hospitals with 100 beds or more that are set up in rural areas. Such hospitals are
entitled to 100% deduction on profits for 5 years.

Recent initiatives

* In January 2021, the government has placed a purchase order with Serum Institute of India (Sll) for 11 million doses of Oxford COVID-19
vaccine, Covishield. On January 16, 2020, India plans to launch its COVID-19 vaccination campaign, the world's largest inoculation
programme, with an emphasis on nearly three crore healthcare staff and frontline workers.

National Nutrition Mission

= The Union Cabinet approved setting up of National Nutrition Mission (NNM) to monitor, supervise, fix targets and guide the nutrition related
interventions across ministries.

= The programme is planning to reduce the level of stunting by 2%, under-nutrition 2%, anaemia by 3% and low birth babies by 2% ever year.

= Over 100 million people are expected to be benefited by this programme — all states and districts will be covered within the programme.

= In Union Budget 2021-22, the government announced its plans to launch ‘Mission Poshan 2.0' o merge ‘Supplementary Nutrition
Programme’ with ‘Poshan Abhiyan’ (Nutrition Mission) in order to improve nutritional outcomes across 112 aspirational districts.

National Health Mission (NHS)

+ The Government of India approved continuation of ‘National Health Mission’ with a budget of Rs. 37,130 crore (US$ 5.10 billion) under the
Union Budget 2021-22

Incentives in the medical travel industry

= Incentives and tax holidays are being offered to hospitals and dispensanes providing health travel facilities. Senior citizens above 80 years
of age will be allowed deduction of US$ 491 towards medical expenditure if they are not covered under health insurance.
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Universal health

= The Union Budget 2021 announced the launch of ‘Jal Jeevan Mission' (Urban) to achieve universal health. The mission is aimed at
universal supply of water to all 4,378 urban local bodies, with 2.86 crore household tap connections, and management of liquid waste in
500 AMRUT cities. It will be executed with an outlay of Rs. 2 87,000 crore (US$ 39.41 billion) over five years

Tele-medicine initiatives

= State Telemedicine Network (STN): The states and union territories have been provided support under the National Health Mission (NHM)
under Program Implementation Plan (PIP) to create reliable, ubiquitous and high-speed network backbone.

= In March 2020, the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare launched National Teleconsultation Centre (CoNTeC)

Bilateral ties

= In February 2021, the Minister for Commerce and Industry of India, Mr. Piyush Goyal, and the UK Secretary of State for International Trade,
Ms. Elizabeth Truss MP, completed a meeting to discuss the bilateral trade and economic relations of India—UK trade and investment
relationship. The Ministers also welcomed enhancement of bilateral health cooperation between the two countries, such as on vaccines,
which is allowing India to serve as a global source of strength in overcoming COVID-19-imposed challenges.

Single window system
- Drug Controller General of India (DCGI) has proposed to set up a single window system for start-ups and innovators seeking
approvals , consents, and information regarding regulatory requirement.

Medical institutions
= Under Union Budget 2019-20, the Government allocated Rs. 800 crore (US$ 110.88 million) for the upgradation of state Government

medical colleges (PG seats) at district hospitals and Rs. 1,361 crore (US$ 188.63 million) for Government medical colleges (UG seats)
and Government health institutions.

= During FY17-FY19, the Government of India permitted to start of 86 new colleges, which included 51 in FY17, 14 in FY18 and 21 in
FY19.

= In November 2020, the Health Ministry approved a new category for selection and nomination of candidates from Wards of COVID-19
Warriors’ under central pool MBBS/BDS seats for the 2020-21 academic year.

Establishment of health system capacities at airports under the Aatmanirbhar
Swasth Bharat Yojana

= In Budget 2021, the government proposed enhancement of the country's potential for health systems, which included entry points for
aviation. It plans to strengthen the public health units at 32 airports under the Aatmanirbhar Swasth Bharat Yojana scheme. This
programme would promote smooth movement of pharmaceuticals through India and other parts of the world by air

Note; - includes ayurveda, homeopathy and unani practitioners, along with allopathy dociors
Source: Union Budget 2019-20, News Articles
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Union Budget 2020-21

In the Union Budget 2021, investment in health infrastructure expanded 2.37x, or 137% YoY; the total health sector allocation for FY22
stood at Rs. 223,846 crore (US$ 30.70 billion).

Under the Union Budget 2021-22, the Ministry of Health and Family Welfare has been allocated Rs. 73,932 crore (US$ 10.35 billion) and
the Department of Health Research has been allocated Rs. 2,663 crore (US$ 365.68 billion).

The government allocated Rs. 37,130 crore (US$ 5.10 billion) to the "National Health Mission"

PM Aatmanirbhar Swasth Bharat Yojana was allocated Rs. 64,180 crore (US$ 8.80 billion) over six years.

Pradhan Mantri Swasthya Suraksha Yojana (PMSSY)

In Union Budget 2020-21, Rs. 3,000 crore (US$ 429 25 million) was allocated to the scheme.

The Government of India approved phase Il of the scheme in August 2019. Under this, 75 more new medical colleges will be established
all over the country.

‘Vision 2035: Public Health Surveillance in India’

= To make the public health surveillance system in India more flexible and predictive fo strengthen action preparedness at all levels.

= A citizen-friendly public health surveillance system, supported by a consumer feedback process, would ensure individual privacy and
confidentiality.

= To improve data-sharing system for effective disease control between the Centre and states.

= India ams to provide regional and international leadership in managing events of global concern, which constitute a public health
emergency

7

Rashtriya Swasthya Bima Yojna
= In Union Budget 2019-20, Rs. 156 crore (US$ 22.32 million) was allocated to Rashtriya Swasthya Bima Yojna.

I

Digital India initiative

= As of February 2021, 420 e-Hospitals were established across India as part of the central government's ‘Digital India’ initiative.
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Ayushman Bharat
= Ayushman Bharat scheme was launched to ensure universal health coverage and provide financial risk protection, assuring quality and

affordable essential health services to all individuals.

= In February 2021, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi laid the foundation stones for two hospitals and launched ‘Asom Mala’, a programme
for state highways and major district roads, in Assam. He also added that ~1.25 crore people in the state are being benefitted from
Ayushman Bharat Scheme.

= As of November 2020, ~28.10 crore citizens received free treatment under the Ayushman Bharat-Pradhan Mantri Jan Arogya Yojana. The
government i1s also planning to establish 1.5 lakh Ayushman Bharat Health and Wellness Centres by December 2022.

= In December 2020, Prime Minister, Mr. Narendra Modi launched Ayushman Bharat Pradhan Mantri Jan Arogya Yojana SEHAT scheme for
residents of Jammu and Kashmir.

= In December 2020, the Ministry of AYUSH has approved 200 AYUSH Health & Wellness Centres (HWC) in Uttarakhand, under centrally-
sponsored scheme of National AYUSH Mission (NAM).

Free Covid Vaccine For Healthcare Workers

= In the Phase 1 of COVID-19 vaccination drive, free vaccine shall be provided across the country fo the prioritised beneficiaries that include
10 million healthcare and 20 million frontline workers.

FDI Inflows Cumulative FDI inflows from April 2000 to September 2020 into
the healthcare sector (US$ billion)

e 100% FDI is allowed under the automatic route for
greenfield projects.

e For brownfield project investments, up to 100%
FDI is permitted under the Government route.

e Demand growth, cost advantages and policy
support have been instrumental in attracting FDI. N

e Between April 2000 and June 2021, FDI inflows L s e
for drugs and pharmaceuticals sector stood at US$
16.87 billion.

o Inflows in sectors such as hospitals and diagnostic
centres and medical appliances stood at US$ 6.89
billion and US$ 2.17 billion, respectively, between
Aprll 2000 and \]Une 2021 = Drug and Pharmaceuticals

m Hospital and Diagnostic Centers

Medical and Surgical Appliances

Road Ahead

India is a land full of opportunities for players in the medical devices industry. The country has also become one of
the leading destinations for high-end diagnostic services with tremendous capital investment for advanced diagnostic
facilities, thus catering to a greater proportion of population. Besides, Indian medical service consumers have
become more conscious towards their healthcare upkeep.

Indian healthcare sector is much diversified and is full of opportunities in every segment, which includes providers,
payers, and medical technology. With the increase in the competition, businesses are looking to explore for the latest
dynamics and trends which will have positive impact on their business. The hospital industry in India is forecast to
increase to Rs. 8.6 trillion (US$ 132.84 billion) by FY22 from Rs. 4 trillion (US$ 61.79 billion) in FY17 at a CAGR
of 16-17%. The Government of India is planning to increase public health spending to 2.5% of the country's GDP
by 2025.
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India's competitive advantage also lies in the increased success rate of Indian companies in getting Abbreviated New
Drug Application (ANDA) approvals. India also offers vast opportunities in R&D as well as medical tourism. To
sum up, there are vast opportunities for investment in healthcare infrastructure in both urban and rural India.

Opportunities in healthcare

2. RESEARCH

= On January 6, 2021, Dr. Harsh Vardhan,
the Union Minister for Health & Family
Welfare, released INDIA REPORT on
Longitudinal Ageing Study of India
(LASI) Wave-1; and stated that this

3. HEALTH-TECH

= In December 2020, India Accelerator

1. HEALTHCARE

INFRASTRUCTURE

= Additional three million beds will
be needed for India to achieve the
target of 3 beds per 1,000 people
by 2025. Also, India will have one
doctor to every 800 patients by
2030

« Additional 1.54 million doctors and

report will be used to further improve
and expand the reach of ‘National
Elderly Health Care’ network and
contribute  to  implementation of a
spectrum of preventive and healthcare
services for the elderly and vulnerable
population.

(1A) announced its plan to launch a
'Pulse' programme for emerging
companies working in the health-tech
sector. 1A will deliver a sixteen-week
long accelerator programme to a pool of
5-f emerging start-ups operating in this
sector. The aim for the initiative is to
accelerate innovation and fransform

2.4 million nurses will be required
to meet the growing demand for
healthcare. 58,000 job
opportunities are expected to be
generated in the healthcare sector
by 2025

» Over US$ 500 billion is expected
to be spent on medical
infrastructure by 2030.

= Over the years, India has made
strategic interventions in National
Health Mission and the national
disease control programmes to
ensure quality and affordable
healthcare for all.

Indian healthcare through start-ups.

4. MEDICAL DEVICES

= The medical devices market is
expected to reach US$ 11 billion
by 2022, backed by rising
geriatric population, growth in
medical tourism and declining
cost of medical services.

Opportunities in health insurance Health Insurance Premium Collection (US$ Billion)

. . 8.00 CACAGR T3 17%
e In FY20, total gross direct premiums grew at

13.40% y-0-y to Rs. 51,637.84 crore (US$
7.39 billion). The health segment has a 27.3%
share in gross direct premiums earned in the
country.

e According to Economic Survey 2020-21, the
health insurance industry experienced
increasing insurance coverage in FY20. The
number of households in Bihar, Assam and
Sikkim that had health insurance increased by
89% in FY20, as compared with FY16.

e By leveraging strategic  partnerships,
WhatsApp plans to debut opportunities for
health insurance and micro-pension products
in India. WhatsApp plans to collaborate for
the Sachet-Health Insurance Programme with
the State Bank of India (SBI) General and
plans to work with HDFC Pension to
introduce the National Pension Scheme.

& z & & £
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Diagnostic Sector

The diagnostic industry has emerged as an attractive play in India's growing healthcare sector and is one of the
fastest growing services in the country. The domestic diagnostic industry is estimated at USD9bn (around INR
675bn) and is expected to grow at a compounded annual growth rate (CAGR) of ~10% over the next 5 years.
Growth will be primarily driven by change in demographics, increase in lifestyle diseases, and higher income levels
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across all strata of society, rise in preventive testing, deeper penetration with asset-light expansion, and spread of
healthcare services and insurance.

The diagnostic segment is a critical component of the healthcare sector. Globally, ~80% of physician diagnoses are a
result of laboratory tests. There are mainly 3 types of tests: Routine, clinical lab and specialty tests.

¢ Routine tests: Common tests like sugar, cholesterol, HIV, pap, pregnancy, etc.
e Clinical lab tests to monitor diseases and drug treatments
e Specialty tests: Genetics, immunology, oncology, endocrinology and other critical segments

The Indian diagnostic industry is highly fragmented and under-penetrated despite the presence of over 1 lakh labs.
Diagnostic chains command ~16% market share. The 4 major players — Dr Lal PathLabs (DLPL), Metropolis
Healthcare (METROHL), SRL Diagnostics (SRL) and Thyrocare Technologies — have a share of ~6%. So, there is a
huge opportunity for national players to consolidate and for organic expansion. We believe organized players with
national presence would grow at 15-17% CAGR over the next five years and continue to garner market share, led by
asset light models and strong cash flows. The growth of these diagnostics would be majorly volume-driven, given
the high level of competition and government-imposed regulations. Attracted by historically high growth rates (20-
25%) lucrative returns, and low entry barriers, most players compete on pricing to garner volumes quickly and move
up the cost curve, supported by PE investors. To capture the increasingly important shift towards the consumer,
industry leaders have started to implement initiatives such as retailer partnering, offering home testing, and
enhancing engagement with patients through digital presence, in addition to maintaining their basic testing services
as a safety net. A faster shift of unorganized business to organized players, potential consolidation, likely increase in
preventive check-ups and sizeable scale would benefit large organized players with strong balance sheets.

The industry is broadly segregated into pathology testing and imaging diagnostic services. Pathology testing (in-
vitro diagnosis) includes sample collection in the form of blood, urine and stool. This is followed by the sample's
analysation using laboratory equipment and technology to derive useful clinical information for assisting in patient
treatment. The imaging diagnostic segment consist of more complex tests like computed tomography (CT) scans and
magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) and other highly specialised tests like positron emission tomography (PET)-CT
scans. As per estimates, the pathology segment contributes ~58% of total market revenue.

With private diagnostic chains taking the lead with superior and quality services, highly accurate and wider test
menu -- resulting in market share gains — we expect consolidation in the sector going forward. Currently, only 1% of
labs are National Accreditation Board of Laboratories (NABL) and/or College of American Pathologists (CAP)
accredited. Only a few large national players like SRL, DLPL, METROHL, Thyrocare, Max Healthcare and Apollo
Clinic have accredited labs.

Indian diagnostic industry — Market structure

The market share is categorized as: unorganized (47%), hospital-based lab (37%) while the remaining (~16%) is
with the organized players. Doctor referrals constitute a large part of this business. This includes commission
payments to doctors in lieu of referring a diagnostic lab. Further, currently, the illness diagnosis segment is more
prevalent than wellness segment in India.

Services:

Pathology testing or invitro diagnosis involves the collection of samples in the form of blood, urine, stool, etc., and
analyzing them using laboratory equipment and technology to arrive at useful clinical information that assists in
treatment of diseases. It includes biochemistry, immunology, hematology, urine analysis, molecular diagnosis, and
microbiology.

Imaging diagnosis or radiology involves imaging procedures such as X-rays and ultrasounds that help determine
anatomical or physiological changes inside a patient’s body, thus assisting doctors in diagnosing. It includes more
complex tests such as CT scans, MRIs, and highly specialized PET-CT scans.

Wellness and preventive diagnostic services aim at identifying pre-existing diseases or the likely risk of particular
diseases before the onset of symptoms. It is expected that wellness and preventive diagnostic services will assist
people more accurately identify risks so that they can take corrective or precautionary measures before any chronic
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condition develops. Wellness and preventive tests are generally aligned to either specifically screen for a chronic

Diagnostic industry

INR 675 Bn

l I ;

Hospitals Standalone centres Diagnostic chains
37% 47% 16%
Hospitals with own labs Small labs with basic tests Hub and spoke models
l L4
Regional chains Pan India chains
11% 6%

disease or contain a series of tests to ascertain the overall health condition of an individual.

Indian diagnostic industry — Positioning

Exhibit 2: Indian diagnostic industry — Exhibit 3: Referrals constitute lion’s Exhibit 4: Market mix between
Break-up share of Indian diagnostic industry urban and rural
Corporate Walk-ins,
clients, 10% 35% Rural,

. 35%
Radiology,

Patholoy
A2% &Y

,58%

Urban,
65%

Referrals, 55%

Source: Edelweiss Professional Investor Research

The diagnostic sector in India is highly fragmented with large chains, standalone centres and hospital-based
laboratories. The lack of regulatory framework and minimum standard requirements led to low-entry barriers.
However, limited test menu/offerings by regional standalone laboratories and partial coverage of hospital-based
laboratories have resulted in higher opportunities for diagnostic chain players.

Diagnostic chains have the advantage of years of experience, brand trust and recall, global quality standards and
accreditations, brand experience, expansive test menu, patient touch-points to service patients locally, value-added
offerings for patients and the ability to sustainably grow into newer markets. Pan India diagnostic players have been
gaining market share continuously over the past few years on account of expanding collection centres and laboratory
networks, which has helped them improve their asset utilisation. National diagnostic players would gain market
share in coming years, especially post the COVID-19 pandemic, which would further lead to industry growth.

Asset Light Model for Growth:
Hub and spoke model: Most organized diagnostic chains operate on hub and spoke business model, which brings
economies of scale benefits. To gain a competitive advantage, reap scale economy benefits and control operating

costs, these diagnostic chains constantly endeavor to increase their network rapidly. They do so by adding satellite
laboratories and collection centers (majorly on a franchisee model).
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Reagent rental model: Suppliers sell their equipment to lab testing companies at almost zero capital costs. Lab
testing companies agree to buy reagent batches (batch of testing chemicals) exclusively from the company whose
equipment is installed in their lab and pay a periodic rental (given a lease rental type agreement), which is booked as
an operating expense.

Shop in Shop model: Diagnostic players are entering into outsourcing contracts with hospitals, whereby they would
handle the entire diagnostic operations for them. Such models of outsourcing clinical tests to private laboratories are
expected to rise to streamline and increase efficiency.

Home collection: Home sample collection and testing has been on the rise, provided by almost all organized players
and some unorganized ones as well. Phlebotomist collects the sample and transports it in a specially designed
transportation box (cold box) to the designated processing center. Home sample collection is one of the key reasons
for the success of diagnostic chains and their rapid penetration in the urban market.

Formalization of Diagnostic Industry:

The diagnostics industry is highly fragmented with large chains, standalone centers, and hospital-based laboratories.
Owing to low entry barriers, the industry is fragmented and is witnessing a lot of small and medium sized players;
however, very few are able to scale in a profitable manner. Regional Standalone Laboratories have a limited test
menu and, hence, lack the capacity needed to expand in terms of service offerings and perceived quality of testing,
which may not be as good as that of an established chain’s. Hospital-based laboratories are restricted to the
hospital’s inpatients, with a limited test menu and charges that are higher than diagnostic chains. Diagnostic chains,
on the other hand, have an advantage of years of experience, brand trust and recall, global quality standards and
accreditations, brand experience, expansive test menus, patient touch points to service patients locally, value added
offerings for patients and the ability to sustainably grow in new markets.

Diagnostic chains have managed rapid growth through opening more collection centers, which has improved their
asset utilization. Moreover, large chains have greater bargaining power that allows them to keep their input costs
(bulk purchase of reagents) lower than standalone centers. Standalone ones also tend to lose out on some business as
they are unable to carry out complex tests and customers hold the perception that their quality does not match that of
branded chains’. Hence, we can say diagnostic chains would continue to eat into standalone centers’ market share.
Their situation is further strengthened after the COVID-19 breakout, with the shift from unorganized to organized
players expected to happen at a faster rate now, as patients prefer visiting branded and recoginzed labs that give
better quality and enhanced safety. Organized players are also likely to benefit from rise in home collection, given
their strong brand recognition, reliability and quality services. The unorganized and smaller labs offer a chance to
the bigger players to expand their reach and presence through acquisitions and franchisee operation model.

Positive Impact of COVID-19:

The current health scare of COVID-19 is set to change the mindset of Indian customers. An increasing number of
customers will now evaluate and label diagnostics chains as ’"COVID-19 capable’ and ‘non-COVID-19 capable’.
With these tests becoming the new norm, a higher market share is expected to shift towards the labs offering
COVID-related tests. The pandemic is helping the organized players build their brand value and goodwill, which
will help attract patients.

Customers are now anticipated to place quality over pricing when it comes to diagnostics. Higher quality standards,
authentic reports, after sales service, and doctor engagement will be the key deciding factors in the lab selection
process. Unorganized and standalone labs were facing severe cost pressures due to lockdown. The faster adoption of
quality standards, partly enforced by the Government and partly forced upon by customers, indirectly, could result in
the closure of operations for many unorganized standalone labs. A faster consolidation in the industry, along with
changes in the regulatory framework, is also anticipated soon. Diagnostics chains with a lean balance sheet, strong
consumer-connect, high brand recall, and following global quality standards will gain market share. We believe that
the current disruption led by COVID-19 will help the industry leaders in absorbing the small and mid-sized labs,
which are facing operational challenges.

Challenges faced by industry:

Lower/no entry barrier: One of the key reasons for the industry to be fragmented is low entry barrier. The
historically high growth rates (20-25%) had attracted quite a few PE investors into this setup. Private equity (PE)
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players were very active in this space during 2011-15; but the number of deals has gone down on the back of high
competition. Also, limited test menu/offerings by regional standalone laboratories and partial coverage of hospital-
based laboratories have resulted in higher opportunities for diagnostic chain players.

Challenge in entering new geographies: India is a vast country with diverse cultures and disease profiles across its
various regions. The diversity in demographics, disease profiles, and healthcare systems present big challenges.
Large diagnostic players face competition from local players who have an edge due to their familiarity with local
market dynamics. Also, most players have substantial presence in metros and Tier I. However, the Tier Il, Il and IV
cities are something that has not been tapped aggressively and is largely run by local standalone players offering
basic tests. Nevertheless, companies have now started to tap the interiors in order to drive volumes by partnering
with local players, which is driving consolidation. National diagnostics players, after having set up centers in new
locations, take time to engage with doctors (as referrals contribute high share in this sector) who have long
relationships with regional players. Doctors take their own time, which also depends on how much visibility the
national players have created of their services in local areas. These national players garnering higher market share
from unorganized counterparts take time to scale up their operations.

Pricing pressures: India’s diagnostics industry is highly competitive with unorganized players still garnering
approximately 84% market share. This increases competition among organized and unorganized diagnostic chains in
terms of volumes of patients’ samples and pricing of diagnostic tests.

Vulnerability to technological advancements: Medical devices and analyzers are constantly undergoing
technological advancements. To stay ahead of the competition, diagnostics centers have to constantly upgrade their
technology. However, these upgrades not only involve significant capital investments, but also increase maintenance
costs. This is critical, especially for smaller players who face a paucity of funds.

Recent Trends:

Focus on Preventive and Wellness services: Organized players are increasingly targeting healthy individuals with
sedentary lifestyles, who are more prone to lifestyle diseases such as cardiovascular ailments and diabetes. Bulk
business from employer schemes is a key driver of this market. Emerging trend of precision medicine and focus on
preventive care and walk-in/direct-to-customer diagnostic services are expected to drive growth in the diagnostics
arena.

Consolidation, shift from unorganized to organized: India’s diagnostics industry is highly fragmented. With
emergence of pan-India diagnostic chains, the sector has seen more and more consolidation via mergers and
acquisitions and increased market share of organized chains.

Brand building initiatives: All the major diagnostic players are investing in brand building and creating online and
offline marketing campaigns to differentiate their offerings, quality, and test accuracy from their competitors. They
are launching advertising campaigns, healthcare camps, and various wellness and preventive test packages under
their own brands. Their focus on repeat sales and conversion of referral customers into owned ones is the path they
are following in this competitive market.

Emergence of Online Aggregators: Online aggregators provide a robust website platform for customers to the
most suitable diagnostic packages. They also provide a feature for choosing the service provider along with display
of the price it offers. Individual health check-up providers suggest various packages to customers based on their
requirements and handle the booking of packages at designated service providers. These facilities are bringing
diagnostic and testing services to the fingertips of customers, offering them a number of available options almost
instantly.

Indian diagnostic industry — Major growth drivers
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National players have majority of accredited labs in the country, focus on quality

National diagnostic players focus on quality through their accredited lab network has helped them establish a brand
for themselves in their core market of operation. There are around 1,216 NABL accredited labs, which is ~1% of
total labs in India and works out to less than 1 lab per million. The top 4 players have the maximum number of
NABL accredited labs. Though the number of accredited labs in India have been growing at 16% CAGR to 1,216 in
2020 from 576 in 2015, there is still a long way to go to reach the numbers of peer nations such as the UK, US and
Australia, which have more than 10 labs per million. Quality will be the key future growth driver for the diagnostic
industry, where national players are ahead of sector peers.
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Exhibit 22: NABL accredited labs state-wise

States No States No
Maharashtra 116 Gujarat 54
Karnataka 90 Haryana 44
Delhi 156 Jharkhand 12
Tamil Nadu 73 Kerala 36
MP 12 Manipur 7
up 70 Meghalaya 3
Kolkata 90 Mizoram 2
Rajasthan 33 Nagaland 2
Himachal Pradesh 2 Odisha 9
Andhra Pradesh 36 Punjab 24
Telangana 65 Sikkim 1
Assam 23 Tripura 1
Bihar 10 Uttarakhand 12
Chhattisgarh 1 Chandigarh 11
Goa 3 Jammu & Kashmir 2
Puducherry 2
Others 214

Source: Edelweiss Professional Investor Research
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Exhibit 23: North and south India have the maximum number of NABL labs
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Exhibit 24: Major cities have higher number of NABL accredited labs
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National diagnostic players poised to gain market share

Diagnostic players, with revenue above INR 100 crore, are profitable with better operating margins as the benefits of
scale in test coverage and market penetration brings operating leverage.

Benefits of scale:

1. Diagnostic companies procure their main raw material of chemicals/reagents from equipment manufacturers.
Moreover, machines are supplied to them free of cost, lowering their upfront capex requirement for expansion.
This arrangement is available to scaled up players only as they can procure reagents in bulk.

2. Large organised diagnostic chains are in a position to perform high revenue generating complex tests.

3. Their strong brand visibility and widespread network of labs and patient service centres attracts more B2C

revenue.

Doctors’ associations play a crucial role in growth, which is driven by a strong brand

The hub and spoke model ushers cost efficiencies with bulk testing and increased penetration.

6. Their efficient IT infrastructure, centralised operations and streamlined pan India processes help them gain
market share.

o s

Expected increase in health insurance coverage

Most diagnostic testings in India is still an out of pocket expense and is hardly covered by any of the prevailing
insurance schemes in the market.

While the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAI) pegs the health insurance opportunity
size at INR 3 lakh crore, the market size as on FY19-end stands under INR 50,000 crore. This highlights the
industry’s strong growth potential going forward. Life insurers mostly provide benefit policies for health protection,
attached as riders to the base policy, although standalone policies have also been offered.
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As per IRDAI, only 36 crore individuals had health insurance coverage, of which only 20% was via commercial
insurance providers in the life and non-life space, as bulk of it comes from Central and state government-sponsored
schemes. Private health expenditure is expected to rise significantly as life expectancy continues to increase. Till
date, the lion’s share of healthcare expenditure has come from out-of-pocket expenditure, which is the highest in
India compared to its regional peers.

A multitude of factors — under-penetration, low government share of expenditure, rising life expectancy and higher
healthcare cost — will be the key growth drivers in this segment.

Inclusion of diagnostic tests under insurance coverage could act as a booster shot

Besides the under-penetration of health insurance, India trails the world in outpatient department (OPD) and
diagnostic tests coverage. As per various industry estimates, ~20% of total diagnostic services are being reimbursed
via insurance claims, the rest is met by out of pocket expense. This is resulting in a significant section of the
population opting for cheaper alternatives. The inclusion of OPD and diagnostic tests in insurance coverage in many
Western countries had led to an inflection in the growth rate of the diagnostic industry. We expect a similar trends to
emerge in India if such tests are covered by insurance policies.

Competition softens with fall in private equity deals

Private equity (PE) players were very active in this space during 2011-15, but the number of deals is slowly
softening. PE investments usually have a 5-7 year tenure. Payers backed by PEs typically focus of creating scale in
the market or try to gain market share by pushing prices lower. The diagnostic sector is now relatively immune to
price competition as we are observing a slowdown in PE deals.

Deal Value

Year  Target Acquirer (USD million) Stake (%)
2015 MedGenome Labs Put Ltd Sequoia Capital 20
2015 | METROHL Carlyle Group LP 140 37%
2016 | Vijaya Diagnostic Center Kedaara Capital 63
2017  Core Diagnostics Pvt Ltd Eight Roads Ventures; Artiman Yentures; F-Prime Capital 12
2017 | Suraksha Diagnostic Pvt Ltd OrbiMed Advisors 40 30%
2017 iGenetic Diagnostics Pvt Ltd Manipal Group; CDC Group ple 20
2018 MedGenome Labs Pvt Ltd Housing Development Finance Corp Ltd - HDFC 40
2018 MedGenome Labs Pvt Ltd Sequoia Capital India; Zodius Capital; Sofina SA 27

National players gain market share through the inorganic route

National players are driving growth through acquisitions, business mix, by offering high end complex tests and
competitive pricing. This inorganic expansion is the result of competitive pricing, lower scale of business and
slowdown in PE investments. This mode of growth is one of the major vectors of market share gains for national
players in this fragmented market. Global players like LabCorp and Quest Diagnostics in the US have also grown
through acquisitions and this model is being followed by Indian diagnostic players. National players are more
focused on Tier 11, 111 cities for inorganic expansion.
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Highly Dominated by the Unorganised Sector, the India Diagnostic Laboratories Market is in Dire
Need for Regulations to Pave Out the Path for Future Growth: Ken Research

Industry Overview

India Diagnostic Laboratories Market
Highly Fragmented
GCrowth Stage

INRCr

FY'2025

FY'2020

How are Diagnostics Players Competing in the Industry

and Develop Trying to come
— o Up with new and less invasive diagnostic tests
for diseases such as Cancer etc.

Digitalization: Introduced at every stage from sample
— @ collection to the delivery of reports in order to minimize
the probability of errors,

India Developing as a Medical Tourism Center:
Medical visas grew by 15.9% from 2016 to 2017
Companies focus on introducing customised
packages for international patients.

Expansion- Use a hub and spoke model. Have
® collection centers spread throughout PAN

Major Diagnostic Companies in India

®
8 D Lat Patilads MEIROPG)US MeDALL
Diagnostics . Thyrocare
' n d ira p uram SUBURBAN Thisk Thyreid, Think Thyrocare.
7". sted by milliens

Future Strategies/ The Way Forward

3D Automated Models: Growth of 30D printing
will allow radiolegists and clinicians to bring to

g@ life body parts for medical procedures such as
Fracture Fixation, Resection of Renal Tumors and
— Cardiovascular Applications , Tracheal reconstruction
and Lung segmentectomy:.
AN Increase Public Spending: India is set to increase

its public health spending to 25% of its GDP)by
2025 which would help cut down on out of pocket
expenditure. industry.

Rural Penetration: More players are likely to penetrate
the rural healthcare market with increasing number of
diagnostic laboratories in tier -3 cities and rural areas.

(A
S

\\/ India, for helping them increase their customer
base.

Comments:

The diagnostic industry has emerged as an attractive play in India's growing healthcare sector and is one of the
fastest growing service segments in the country. Diagnostic is a business of economies of scale and the most
important metric is the cost of processing a sample. The existing players are still in the nascent stages of their
growth cycles and have a long runway ahead. We are positive on the national diagnostic chains in India, given their
advantages of many years of experience, brand trust and recall, global quality standards and accreditations, wide test
menus, extensive patient touchpoints to service patients locally, value-added offerings, and ability to sustainably
grow in new markets. Potential consolidation in the industry, organic and inorganic expansion, complemented by
their strong balance sheets and return ratios, would provide tailwinds to their growth in the medium term.

The large listed Indian diagnostic chains - Dr. Lal, Metropolis, Thyrocare - remain beneficiaries of what we view as
attractive long-term industry growth story. Given the outbreak of COVID-19 and its impact on people mindset about
healthcare and preventive measures over the next one to two years; we are giving higher valuation to these stocks.
We see the potential for increased inclusion of diagnostic testing in health insurance and ample runway for higher
market penetration as standards of living increase and preventive healthcare awareness rises.

Source:  https://www.edelweiss.in/ewwebimages/\WebFiles/Research/a8b96f38-8192-4fc1-8bf8-de1b28d9002.pdf
and https://www.hdfcsec.com/hsl.research.pdf/Diagnostics%20Sector%20-%20Initiating%20Coverage%20v2%20-

%2030.03.2021.pdf
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

This section should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the detailed information about our
Company and its financial statements, including the notes thereto, in the section titled ‘Risk Factors’, ‘Financial
Statement’ and the chapter titled ‘Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations’ beginning on page no. 21, 176 and 201 respectively, of this Draft Prospectus.

Unless otherwise stated or the context otherwise requires, in relation to business operations, in this section of this
Draft Prospectus, all references to "we", "us", "our" and "our Company" are to Nidan Laboratories And Healthcare

Private Limited.
Overview

Our Company was originally incorporated as Abhi Diagnostic Imagings Private Limited on December 05, 2000
under the Companies Act, 1956 vide certificate of incorporation issued by the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra.
Subsequently, the name of the company was changed from “Abhi Diagnostic Imagings Private Limited” to “Nidan
Laboratories And Healthcare Private Limited” under the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to a special resolution
passed by our shareholders at the EGM held on February 26, 2021 and had obtained fresh certificate of
incorporation dated March 24, 2021 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra. Subsequently, our
Company was converted into a public limited company and the name of our Company was changed to ‘Nidan
Laboratories And Healthcare Limited’ and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon conversion to public
limited company was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra, on May 24, 2021.The CIN of
the Company is U33111MH2000PLC129883.

Nidan was established as a proprietary Firm in 1994 by our Promoter- Dr. Nitin Vithalrao Throve in the Northern
District of Mumbai where diagnostic services was provided under one roof at reliable and affordable price. The
business was carried out under sole proprietorship, which was later taken over by our Company in 2000. From the
year 2000, he expanded the diagnostic’s business by setting up various centre’s within the Northern District of
Mumbai and Pune and Southern District of Pune. As on this date, 30 diagnostic cum collection centres are
operational under the brand name of “Nidan Healthcare” and offer radiology, neurology, cardiology, dental as well
as pathology services. Out of the 35 Centre’s, 16 centre’s are under the Franchisee model where 1 centre acts as a
fully operated diagnostic centre and 15 centre’s act solely as standalone collection centres. We provide integrated
diagnostics services more than 1 million patients per year. Since 2000, private and government hospitals have been
using our services and diagnostics centre’s for various pathology and radiology tests. After more than a decade of
experience, we have successfully set our diagnostics centre in Asian Heart Hospital, Mumbai under the name of
“Asian Nidan Imaging Centre”. To enable our patients to easily distinguish our pathology and radiology services,
we introduced “NIDANPATH” and “NIDAN DIAGNOSTICS” respectively in the year 2017. As on March 31,
2021, we offer a comprehensive range of approximately 740 routine and 3000 specialized pathology tests and
approximately 220 basic and 320 advanced radiology tests that cover a range of specialties and disciplines.

The former medical directors like Dr. Shailesh Barrot, a renowned pediatrician in Mumbai and Dr. Suresh
Sonawane, a senior physician has also remained instrumental in growth of our company. Dr. Ashish Jain, a Senior
Radiologist has served our company as the CEO of Nidan Healthcare since 2000 till 2019. As on March 31, 2021,
our diagnostic services are provided by a medical professional team consisting of 94 laboratory doctors, radiologists,
physicians and 256 well-trained technical staff in our operational network. As of June 30, 2021, all of our centre’s
are Pre-Conception and Pre-Natal Diagnostic Techniques (“PCPNDT”) accreditations.

Our test menu includes pathology tests ranging from basic biochemistry and clinical pathology to cytogenetic and
high-end molecular diagnostic tests, and radiology tests ranging from basic echocardiograms, X-Rays and
ultrasounds to advanced radiology tests including computerized tomography (“CT”) scans, magnetic resonance
imaging (“MRI”) scans. We also offer a broad spectrum of health and wellness packages to our customers as per
their requirements. We focus on a customer centric approach to enhance the overall quality of our services for
optimal customer satisfaction. For convenience of our customers, we provide value-added services such as home
collection of specimens, house calls and various delivery or access modes (i.e., at diagnostic Centre’s, SMS, email,
web and mobile portal) for test reports. Several factors, including the strength of our brand, integrated services
model, quality of our diagnostic services, center infrastructure and customer experience, convenience of our
operational network and home collection in our core geographies are important differentiating factors in customers
choosing us as their preferred diagnostic service provider, which helps us in retaining our customers, and sets us
apart from our competitors.
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Over decades of experience in diagnostics, Nidan has gained best name in radiology as well as in pathology. As part
of it, Nidan has also tied up with best pathology Partners like Metropolis Laboratories Limited. We have also
introduced a) wide range of home visit sources not limited to pathology only which includes Pathology-ECG, EEG,
EMG, BMD, X-Rays, AMBP and Cardiac Holter; b) introduced “No Profit-Affordable Health Model” and Packages
wherein we offer our services at a discounted rate. We have also come out with unique appointment booking mobile
application under the name of “NIDAN HEALTHCARE” which is supported by self-indigenous software called
“Nidan Operation Management (NOM).” This unique app enables our patients to book appointments “For Any test.
From Anywhere. At Any-time. By choosing particular time slot for test. By knowing the exact cost of test. By
paying the exact Amount online. By getting the exact instructions of preparation for particular test.” Our Company
intends to introduce online Health Care Consultancy Services, Health Care Services (Medical), Hospital And
Diagnostic Services under the brand name “HEALTHEXPEDIA”, “TRUFIT CLINIC” and “NIDAN
HEALTHMALL”. The introduction of these strategies which have been widely accepted our patients, especially in
the era of Covid-19, have assisted us in changing the dynamics of our business and traditional way of booking
appointments and conducting tests. With the largest and fastest growing diagnostic chain with dominant position in
Northern District of Mumbai, we are well positioned to leverage the high growth in Indian diagnostics industry.
With this in mind our Company proposes to expand its diagnostic and collection centres PAN Mumbai by entering
into Joint Ventures with various Laboratories such as Metropolis Healthcare Limited, SRL Diagnostics, etc on the
terms and conditions as agreed between the parties. As on date, our company has entered into a APSC agreement
with Metropolis Healthcare Limited. For terms and conditions and other important features on the same, please refer
to chapter titled “History and Certain Corporate Matters” beginning on page no. 128 of the Draft Prospectus. Our
Company over the next 5 years, intends to set up more centres PAN India, either by acquiring brown field projects
especially in Rajasthan, Punjab or by using "Hub and Spoke model" within the Metro cities of India.

Over the years, we have received several awards that recognize the strength of our brand and our focus on offering
superior diagnostic services. For examples, we were recognized as Best Diagnostic Chain of India Award 2019, in
Category of 20 + ( More than Twenty ) diagnostic centres by Express Healthcare Which is prestigious Division of
Indian Express Group.

Under the leadership and experience of our Promoter- Dr. Nitin Vithalrao Throve, our Directors, management,
Nidan Healthcare’s revenue has grown mainly to due to introduction of various business strategies owing to the
Covid-19 pandamic. The Financial Achievements of Our Company is as below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars L5 @0 WEEF Gl
2021 2020 2019
Share Capital 990.00 990.00 990.00
Reserves & Surplus 343.10 112.86 41.39
Net Worth 1333.10 1102.86 1031.39
Total Revenue from Operations 2185.32 2219.18 2097.22
PAT 230.24 71.46 22.35
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Evolution fo Nidan Healthcare

Evolution of Nidan Healthcare

= Collection Centre Addition of 6 Centre
= Alephata CT Scan & Wada CT Scan
= Bhiwandi 1.5 MRI

* Pune 1.5 T MRI

Year 2021

Year 2020

= Additional of Satellite 1 Centre : Worli
> |= Satellite 2 Ambadi Gaon, Bhiwandi

= Tieups at Bharatpur, Rajasthan for
Year 2018 CT Scan & MRI

= Additional of 3 collection Centre :

Vasai Gaon, Agashi & D'Silva Nagar | < jeavz01y

= Babhola Naka, Vasai and Worli, ‘

Lower parel Upcoming = Inaugurated its Nalasopara East &

Nalasopara West
= Inaugurated its New Cardiac MRI at Asian

Year 2015 _|* Inaugurated its
Heart Hospital, Bandra BKC Centre at Bhiwandi
VLR + Inaugrated Centre at Virar
= Started offering health check-ups East “Nidan Omega”
Year 2013

Year 2016

= Launched unique mobile van offering diagnostics services

|+ Inaugrated Centre at Pune
Year 2012 Aundh and MAHIM DHARAVI

= Started offering CT Scan services at the Sanjivani hospital in |-

Virar and Launched Kalyan Centre . Year 2011 [« Tied-up with Agarwal Hospital, Vasai
Year 2010 = Diversified into health education o ering a
range of degree and diploma courses and
= Strengthened its foothold in Mumbai with a centre in Year 2009 Inaugrated centre at Thane
Parel with an advanced CT machine
Year 2008 = Launched second centre in Virar o' ering X-Rayand
sonography services at Sahayog

= Established Nidan diagnostics centre in Year 2007
Narayangaon, Pune

> |= Opened diagnostic centre in Vasai with first of its kind
MRI machine

Year 2005

= Incorporation of Nidan Di; ics with first di
[—>| center at Virar

‘ = Introduced first CT scan machine in small Vasai Taluka, Bangli

(as part of Cardinal Gracious Hospital)

Our Diagnostic Centre’s and Operational Network

Since incorporation, our diagnostic’s centre’s are located within the Northern District of Mumbai and Pune and
Southern District of Pune. As on this date, 30 diagnostic cum collection centres are operational under the brand
name of “Nidan Healthcare” and offer radiology, neurology, cardiology, dental as well as pathology services. Out of
the 35 Centre’s, 16 centre’s are under the Franchisee model where 1 centre acts as a fully operated diagnostic centre
and 15 centre’s act solely as standalone collection centres. For details on our centre’s please refer to “Our
Properties” on page no. 110 of this Draft Prospectus. Our diagnostic centres are designed in accordance with certain
specifications, which include requirements in relation to design of work area, physical infrastructure and placement
of technical equipment, with an aim to provide our customers with uniformity of experience for every visit. Our
diagnostic centres are for the purpose of walk-in customers as well as our institutional customers to provide their
specimens for pathology tests and/or to receive radiology tests, depending on the nature of the test sought.

Since 2000, private and government hospitals have been using our services and diagnostics centre’s for various
pathology and radiology tests. After more than a decade of experience, we have successfully set our diagnostics
centre in Asian Heart Hospital, Mumbai under the name of “Asian Nidan Imaging Centre”. To enable our patients
to easily distinguish our pathology and radiology services, we introduced ‘“NIDANPATH” and “NIDAN
DIAGNOSTICS” respectively in the year 2017. As on March 31, 2021, we offer a comprehensive range of
approximately 740 routine and 3000 specialized pathology tests and approximately 220 basic and 320 advanced
radiology tests that cover a range of specialties and disciplines. As on March 31, 2021, our diagnostic services are
provided by a medical professional team consisting of 94 laboratory doctors, radiologists, physicians and 256 well-
trained technical staff in our operational network. As of June 30, 2021, all of our centre’s are Pre-Conception and
Pre-Natal Diagnostic Techniques (“PCPNDT”) accreditations.

Typically, customers come to our diagnostic centres when they need to undergo certain pathology and/or radiology
tests for preventive and/or curative purposes either on their own or for servicing prescribed tests requests from a
physician, other qualified healthcare professional or a hospital, clinic or nursing home. Based on the particular
request, our staff at diagnostic centres collect the specimens required for pathology tests and/or conduct radiology
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tests. Specimens collected at our diagnostic centres are delivered through our logistics network to a reference
laboratory pre-designated to process the type of test requested from the specific diagnostic centre that collected the
sample. If the test requested is of a certain nature or complexity, the sample is directed to our national reference
laboratory for processing. To the extent that tests required by our customers can be processed in the nearest
laboratory, our specialized laboratory staff will process the tests and submit the results in the NOM, allowing for a
shorter overall turnaround time. In case the customer visiting a diagnostic centre requires an advanced radiology
test, the customer is transferred to /recommended to visit the hub centres or the flagship centre.

Our centralized testing and procurement has yielded economies of scale and has allowed us to reduce procurement
cost and implement information technology systems, thereby improving the overall efficiency of our diagnostic
services. We aim to continue to achieve economies of scale in both procurement and service provision as we expand
our network to serve our customers’ needs.

Process of establishing new diagnostic centres

With the largest and fastest growing diagnostic chain with dominant position in Northern District of Mumbai, we are
well positioned to leverage the high growth in Indian diagnostics industry. With this in mind our Company proposes
to expand its diagnostic and collection centres PAN Mumbai. Our Company over the next 5 years, intends to set up
more centres PAN India, either by acquiring brown(brand) field projects especially in Rajasthan, Punjab or by using
"Hub and Spoke model™ within the Metro cities of India.

Our Diagnostic Services

Our diagnostic cum collection centres are operational under the brand name of “Nidan Healthcare” and offer
radiology, neurology, cardiology, dental as well as pathology services. As on March 31, 2021, we offer a
comprehensive range of approximately 740 routine and 3000 specialized pathology tests and approximately 220
basic and 320 advanced radiology tests that cover a range of specialties and disciplines. To enable our patients to
easily distinguish our pathology and radiology services, we introduced “NIDANPATH” and “NIDAN
DIAGNOSTICS” respectively in the year 2017.

Our test menu includes pathology tests ranging from basic biochemistry and clinical pathology to cytogenetic and
high-end molecular diagnostic tests, and radiology tests ranging from basic echocardiograms, X-Rays and
ultrasounds to advanced radiology tests including computerized tomography (“CT”) scans, magnetic resonance
imaging (“MRI”) scans. For convenience of our customers, we provide value-added services such as home
collection of specimens, house calls and various delivery or access modes (i.e., at diagnostic Centre’s, SMS, email,
web and mobile portal) for test reports. Through introduction of No Profit-Affordable Health Model, NIDAN
HEALTHCARE mobile app, our customers and patients have widely accepted us, especially in the era of Covid-19.

Several factors, including the strength of our brand, integrated services model, quality of our diagnostic services,
center infrastructure and customer experience, convenience of our operational network and home collection in our
core geographies are important differentiating factors in customers choosing us as their preferred diagnostic service
provider, which helps us in retaining our customers, and sets us apart from our competitors.

Our Customers
Our diagnostic centres cater to individual customers and institutional customers.
Individual Consumer Business

Our individual consumer business constitutes 90% of our revenue for operations for the three months ended June 30,
2021 and the financial year 2021. We provide integrated diagnostics services more than 1 million patients per year.
Our individual consumer business consumers typically walk-in to our different diagnostics centres or use our home
collection services.

We actively market to our individual consumers and believe that such consumers choose us based on our strengths,
particularly, our strong brand, integrated services model, quality of our diagnostic services, centre infrastructure and
customer experience, convenience of our operational network and home collection in our core geographies. Our
individual consumer business customers comprise of: (i) customers who visit our diagnostic centres and avail our
services as per our price list; (ii) customers whose samples are collected at their residence and processed by us; (iii)
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customers who avail our services basis discretionary discounts provided by us as part of our various marketing and
other initiatives; and (iv) customers who are employees of Government companies or are covered under Government
initiatives or are beneficiaries of life / health insurance policies and choose to undergo tests at our diagnostic centres.

Institutional Business

We provide diagnostics services to our institutional customers, including their employees. These institutional
customers include other smaller laboratories and hospitals, whose customers requires diagnostic services (pathology
and/or radiology services), and the samples collected by them are sent to our laboratories for analysis. In addition,
we also provide diagnostics services to several companies, for their employees, including for pre-employment
checks. This category of customers typically pays on a negotiated fee-for-service basis.

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS
Established brand name

We have built a trusted, high quality and reliable brand of choice over the last two decades. Over the years, we have
received awards that recognize the strength of our brand and our focus on offering superior diagnostic services. For
example, we were recognized as Best Diagnostic Chain of India Award 2019, in Category of 20 + ( More than
Twenty ) diagnostic centres by Express Healthcare Which is prestigious Division of Indian Express Group. For
further details, see “History and Certain Corporate Matters — Major Events and Milestones” on beginning on
page no. 128 of this Draft Prospectus. Our patients and customers which not only include individuals but private and
public hospitals choose to our accept our service as a result of our trusted, well-established brand name built over
decades and their superior and quality diagnostic service experienced.

Customer Centric Services

We focus on a customer centric approach to enhance the overall quality of our services for optimal customer
satisfaction. For convenience of our customers, we provide value-added services such as home collection of
specimens, house calls and various delivery or access modes (i.e., at diagnostic Centre’s, SMS, email, web and
mobile portal) for test reports. Several factors, including the strength of our brand, integrated services model, quality
of our diagnostic services, center infrastructure and customer experience, convenience of our operational network
and home collection in our core geographies are important differentiating factors in customers choosing us as their
preferred diagnostic service provider, which helps us in retaining our customers, and sets us apart from our
competitors. Through introduction of No Profit-Affordable Health Model, NIDAN HEALTHCARE mobile app, our
customers and patients have widely accepted us, especially in the era of Covid-19. This has assisted us in changing
the dynamics of our business and traditional way of booking appointments and conducting tests.

Location Benefit

Our registered office and majority of our centre’s are located in the Northern District of Mumbai. Since 2000,
various centre’s were set up within the Northern District of Mumbai & Pune and Southern District of Pune. In 2000,
the Northern District of Mumbai was still under developed and/ or under developing which provided our Company
the first mover advantage. With the largest and fastest growing diagnostic chain with dominant position in Northern
District of Mumbai, we are well positioned to leverage the high growth in Indian diagnostics industry. With this in
mind, our Company now proposes to expand its diagnostic and collection centres PAN Mumbai.

One-Stop Solution at Affordable Price

As on this date, our 35 diagnostic cum collection centres are operate under the brand name of “Nidan Healthcare”
and offer radiology, neurology, cardiology, dental as well as pathology services. Out of the 35 Centre’s, 16 centre’s
are under the Franchisee model where 1 centre acts as a fully operated diagnostic centre and 15 centre’s act solely as
standalone collection centres. We provide integrated diagnostics services more than 1 million patients per year.
Through our Diagnostics centre's, as on March 31, 2021, we offer a comprehensive range of approximately 740
routine and 3000 specialized pathology tests and approximately 220 basic and 320 advanced radiology tests that
cover a range of specialties and disciplines. As of June 30, 2021, all of our centre’s are Pre-Conception and Pre-
Natal Diagnostic Techniques (“PCPNDT”) accreditations. With introduced wide range of home visit sources not
limited to pathology only which includes Pathology-ECG, EEG, EMG, BMD, X-Rays, AMBP and Cardiac Holter;
introduced “No Profit-Affordable Health Model” and Packages wherein we offer our services at a discounted rate.
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We have also come out with unique appointment booking mobile application under the name of “NIDAN
HEALTHCARE” which is supported by self-indigenous software called “Nidan Operation Management (NOM).”
This unique app enables our patients to book appointments “For Any test. From Anywhere. At Any-time. By
choosing particular time slot for test. By knowing the exact cost of test. By paying the exact Amount online. By
getting the exact instructions of preparation for particular test.” The introduction of these strategies which have been
widely accepted our patients, especially in the era of Covid-19, have assisted us in changing the dynamics of our
business and traditional way of booking appointments and conducting tests.

Robust Technical Capability and State of the Art Technology with Strong IT Infrastructure

Our strong technical capability and ability to adopt to the latest technologies in the diagnostic industry allow us to
provide high quality and reliable diagnostic services to our customers. As on June 30, 2021, our radiology testing
operations are supported by radiology equipment including 13 CT machines, 8 MRI machines by a medical
professional team consisting of 94 laboratory doctors, radiologists, physicians and 256 well-trained technical staff in
our operational network. Further, all of our centre’s are Pre-Conception and Pre-Natal Diagnostic Techniques
(“PCPNDT”) accreditations as on date. With continuously upgradation of our technology, continuous investment
and the long standing relationships with our medical technology vendors, we have been successful of introducing
new tests by adopting the latest medical technologies across our operational network which has ultimately benefited
our customers.

Dedicated Management Team with Significant Industry Experience

Our Company is the brain child of our promoter- Dr. Nitin Vithalrao Throve who under his leadership and
experience and with assistance of our former medical directors like Dr. Shailesh Barrot, a renowned pediatrician in
Mumbai, Dr. Suresh Sonawane, a senior physician and Dr. Ashish Jain, a Senior Radiologist have been instrumental
in growth of our company. As on today, We are led by a strong and dedicated team of experienced professionals
with skill sets that are complementary and, we believe, requisite for the fast-growing Indian diagnostic market.
Members of our management team have experience in the healthcare industry, and, under their leadership over the
last several years, we have grown rapidly and increased both the productivity and efficiency of our network. Our
Board of Directors, includes a combination of management executives and experts from healthcare industry. The
combination of our experienced Board of Directors and our dynamic management team positions us well to
capitalize on future growth opportunities. For further details relating to the experience of our promoter and directors,
please refer to the chapters titled “Our Promoter and Promoter Group” and “Our Management” beginning on page
no. 146 and 132 respectively of this Draft Prospectus.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGY
Focusing on increasing reach within PAN Mumbai and PAN India.

With the largest and fastest growing diagnostic chain with dominant position in Northern District of Mumbai &
Pune and Southern District of Pune, we are well positioned to leverage the high growth in Indian diagnostics
industry. With this in mind our Company proposes to expand its diagnostic and collection centres PAN Mumbai by
entering into Joint Ventures with various Laboratories such as Metropolis Healthcare Limited, SRL Diagnostics, on
the terms and conditions as agreed between the parties. As on date, our company has entered into a APSC with
Metropolis Healthcare Limited. For terms and conditions and other important features on the same, please refer to
chapter titled “History and Certain Corporate Matters” beginning on page no. 128 of the Draft Prospectus. Our
Company over the next 5 years, intends to set up more centres PAN India, either by acquiring brown field projects
especially in Rajasthan, Punjab or by using "Hub and Spoke model" within the Metro cities of India.

Continue to Focus on Providing Customer Centric Services and Offerings

We plan to increase the breadth of our diagnostic services by offering additional preventive and wellness services
and through, among other things, by introducing online Health Care Consultancy Services, Health Care Services
(Medical), Hospital And Diagnostic Services under the brand name “HEALTHEXPEDIA”, “TRUFIT CLINIC” and
“NIDAN HEALTHMALL”. We also intend to enhance our pathology and radiology test offerings by creating
customized packages to our customers, based on customers’ age, sex and medical history, to cater to specific their
needs. We expect that these packages will increase revenue per customer visit. Leveraging the current needs of our
customer base, we offer COVID vaccine and various medical tests to our patients at discounted rate. Our dedicated
sales and marketing team will continue to promote our specialty tests and disease specific profiles and grow our
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corporate customer base by marketing our healthcare proposition to human resource departments and other
corporate decision makers.

Expand our offerings of diagnostic sources with focuses on splendid diagnostic services

We intent to grow our through digital media by inventing new ways to increase the effectiveness of reaching end
user concept by developing the patient education platform through the IT platform which is helping common people
to understand about diseases and appropriate investigations which indirectly leads to brand awareness of Nidan. This
promotes and provides for positive business growth many medias like print, hoardings as well as social media. We
intend to use direct as well as indirect marketing expansion of our business and to reach the masses.

Branding & Advertising

We seek to utilize cost-efficient marketing to enhance our brand awareness and increase our customer base. Our
main marketing activities are in the areas of retail marketing, digital marketing and direct marketing. Our retail
marketing efforts aim to increase our walk-in and home collection customers mainly by creating awareness of our
health check-ups and wellness initiatives as well as highlighting the convenience of our home collection services.
Our digital marketing is help to increase brand awareness and new customer acquisition though online platforms.
We also continue to target institutional customers and develop our business through our educational social media
and online initiatives. Direct marketing is touching people at their home and offices by doing health and wellness
camps to create awareness preventive care and stay healthy. At camps and at other marketing initiatives, we offer
discount vouchers and coupons to potential individual consumers for tests at our diagnostic Centre’s.

Logistics and Procedures
Logistics and Specimen Tracking

The patient’s specimens are collected at our diagnostic centres, hospitals and home collection. Once collected, a
specimen is transported to a reference laboratory capable of processing the specific type of test sought, which could
be a nearby reference laboratory or in the event a test sought is of certain specialized nature, to our national
reference laboratory. The specimens collected are transported, under the requisite temperature controlled conditions,
to our reference laboratories via road networks. We believe that an efficient logistics network is critical to maintain
quality of specimens collected by us. Our dedicated logistics team is responsible for monitoring, in real time, daily
shipments from all locations, recording the status of the shipment from the time of collection of the specimen or
sample, until it arrives and is accepted at our laboratories.

Sample Receipt, Registration and Barcoding

NOM assigns a unique identification number and barcode to each specimen, which helps control and manage the
entire process from registration to specimen collection until the release of the test report. The barcode generated is
tagged on to the appropriate customer tube at the time of specimen collection.

Specimens are received in the accession department of our reference laboratories. Specimens delivered to our
reference laboratories are required to be accompanied by a sample data sheet or a test request form, which includes
information such as test to be performed and the necessary demographic, medical and billing information. Each
specimen and its test request form is rechecked for completeness.

Our staff follows specimen acceptance and rejection criteria laid down by our quality assurance department to
ensure that poor quality or insufficient specimens are rejected. If the specimens meet our defined acceptance
criteria, they are distributed to the relevant departments.

Testing Procedures

Most of our pathology tests are conducted through fully automated systems. The specimens are placed in the testing
equipment and/or instrument, which are interfaced bi-directionally with NOM. The testing equipment and/or
instrument can take instructions from NOM after it reads the sample barcode and automatically connects to LIMS
for customer and test details. The process is fully automated, and once the equipment and/or instrument concludes
the testing, the results are automatically uploaded into NOM under the relevant barcode. Authorized signatories of
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the department closely monitor the results and, wherever needed, orders re-check. Validated results, if relevant, are
then transferred into NOM for a medical review by lab doctors including pathologists, microbiologists, biochemists,
histopathologists and geneticists review and authenticate the results in reports.

As part of our standard operating procedure, we select certain test results for re-testing as part of our quality
assurance practices. To facilitate additional tests and re-checks, we store specimen for a specified length of time in
accordance with our internal policy. Pursuant to our biomedical waste management agreements with authorized third
parties, specimens are disposed of through a waste management system that complies with applicable environment
and health and safety laws.

Reports

We prepare detailed reports which include the precise values of the parameters requested with the biological
reference ranges and the methodology followed. Once the results are ready, the customer gets a trigger through a
SMS to download the report through email, our web portal/website or collect the reports from the centre. Our lab
doctors are available to physicians to discuss and clinically correlate the test reports.

Information Technology

Our information technology systems are the backbone of our operations. Our core infrastructure consisting of
physical and virtual servers are configured for high availability and are scalable to support our growing needs. All
our branches are provisioned with dual internet connections to ensure very high uptime and are securely connected
to data centre through VPN. Our network and servers are proactively monitored to ensure efficient and
uninterrupted service delivery. We have a mix of servers hosted on premise and tier 1V data centre.

The main components of our technology architecture include the following:

Nidan Operation Management Software (NOM)

Center management software helps us to manage entry of patient, their reports, their timings, their EMR (electronic
medical report), consumption particulars of every patient, stock sent to the center, the revenue management details
(complete accounting).

This software helps us to manage 100% operations of the center. The same software helps us in the HR management
which helps us in managing everything related to staff- right from interviewing them to monitoring their
performance also helps we monitor regular attendance and checking whether the assigned duties have been done
properly, it also helps us in imposing penalties and awarding with suitable rewards.

Image Management Software: (Tele-radiology):

Image management software enables us to make the image available on internet as soon as it is captured on the
machine, which in turn helps the radiologists to put the image in post processing work station if required also helps
in immediate reporting.

The Center Vigilance Software:

This software connects all the CCTV’s (even inbuilt audio) from all the centers together and which is analyzed by
trained staff-365 days which helps us to keep the security in control of all the centers.

Nidan Mobile App:

This is the latest and the most innovative app across the medical industry which helps the patient to book his
diagnostic appointment according to his preference regarding the location of the center, timeslot, with complete
online payment provision which will let them avoid all the hassles and personal interaction and all of this can be
done within few clicks.

The well appreciated dynamic pricing system is also integrated with this software, all these systems are brainchild
of our promoter Dr. Nitin Thorve.
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Quality Assurance

Our Entire quality assurance system is designed to provide confidence in Patient safety, maintain the optimal
diagnostic image quality and ensure the consistent provision of prompt and accurate diagnosis. Our radiology
quality assurance system essentially consists of an organized set of activities and processes that ensure equipment
are functioning properly and providing satisfactory diagnostic information in a timely manner with minimum
radiation exposure to customers and staff, and administrative procedures to ensure uniform application of
recommended techniques throughout the network Centre’s.

We have established an in-house radiation quality assurance committee which includes a team of experts responsible
for overseeing our radiology quality assurance program, formulating the standards for image quality and conducting
regular review the effectiveness of the program. We have a set of defined standard operating procedures which are
department and role specific including guidelines for equipment appraisal and replacement, guidelines for the
standardization of patient exposure and guidelines for quality acceptance of diagnostic radiograms.

Our adherence to defined processes is monitored by quality assurance team through robust internal audits as well
staff and facility preparedness to handle an emergency which may arise during day to day operations is evaluated
through regular mock drills. As on date, all of our centre’s are Pre-Conception and Pre-Natal Diagnostic Techniques
(“PCPNDT”) accreditations. As a part of quality assurance effort, our quality assurance team conducts quality
assessment through peer review regularly. Quality assurance also encompasses other facets of our services
including turnaround time and customer satisfaction. Using quality assessment techniques, our diagnostic services
employ a variety of programs to monitor critical aspects of service to our customers.

Sales and Marketing

We have department of sales and marketing with full time Staff dedicated to coordinate our sales and marketing
activities and promote our brand. The team focuses on developing relationships with physicians, and is also
responsible for educating healthcare professionals on the value of our service offerings and new technologies and
tests provided at our diagnostic centres. We also have a dedicated team, which engages with key opinion leaders and
diagnostic experts, whose primary focus is to identify the needs and upcoming trends in the fields of advance
radiology, oncology, nephrology, nuclear medicine and gastroenterology. The team also engage with professional
medical bodies, to organise continuing medical education (“CME”) programs and other medical education
initiatives. Also many promotional activities through camps in different localities, School, Govt. Officers are also
undertaken by our teams. At camps and at other marketing initiatives, we offer discount vouchers and coupons to
potential individual consumers for tests at our diagnostic centres.

We have a dedicated Call Centre with Toll free number which is operational round the clock with almost 20 inbound
and outbound lines the well trained call center staff serves to incoming as well as outgoing call and also do the
promotion through outbound calls. We also have a special team which takes care of the social media management
and all the other online advertising platforms.

We seek to utilize cost-efficient marketing to enhance our brand awareness and increase our customer base. Our
main marketing activities are in the areas of retail marketing, digital marketing and direct marketing. For the same,
we have a unique appointment booking mobile application under the name of “NIDAN HEALTHCARE” which is
supported by self-indigenous software called “Nidan Operation Management (NOM).” This unique app enables our
patients to book appointments “For Any test. From Anywhere. At Any-time. By choosing particular time slot for
test. By knowing the exact cost of test. By paying the exact Amount online. By getting the exact instructions of
preparation for particular test.” Our Company intends to introduce online Health Care Consultancy Services, Health
Care Services (Medical), Hospital And Diagnostic Services under the brand name “HEALTHEXPEDIA”, “TRUFIT
CLINIC” and “NIDAN HEALTHMALL”.

Our retail marketing efforts aim to increase our walk-in and home collection customers mainly by creating
awareness of our health check-ups and wellness initiatives as well as highlighting the convenience of our home
collection services. Our digital marketing is help to increase brand awareness and new customer acquisition though
online platforms. We also continue to target institutional customers and develop our business through our
educational social media and online initiatives. The introduction of these strategies have been widely accepted our
patients, especially in the era of Covid-19, have assisted us in changing the dynamics of our business and traditional
way of booking appointments and conducting tests.
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Competition

Our business is highly competitive and we face competition from organized as well as unorganized providers. In
addition, we compete with many smaller, independent clinical and anatomical laboratories as well as laboratories
owned by hospitals and physicians. For further information regarding the highly competitive nature of our industry,
see “Industry Overview” beginning on page no. 80 of this Draft Prospectus.

We believe the strength of our brand, integrated services model, quality of our diagnostic services, centre
infrastructure and customer experience, convenience of our operational network and home collection in our core
geographies are important differentiating factors in customers choosing us as their preferred diagnostic service
provider, which helps us in retaining our customers, and sets us apart from our competitors.

Insurance

Our diagnostic centres, laboratories and office locations including our corporate office are insured against fire and
certain special perils, including earthquake and terrorism damage. We also have several other insurance policies
covering equipment and instruments, money-transit, fidelity guarantee and statutory employee liability insurance,
business interruption at our facilities resulting from various perils, all risks relating to information systems
equipment, burglary causing loss of inventory.

We have also obtained management liability insurance. Additionally, our Company is also insured against
professional indemnity liability including liability arising out of breach of confidentiality, third party public liability
and loss of goodwill.

We believe that our insurance coverage is of the type and in the amounts commensurate with the nature and scope of
our operations.

Environmental, Health and Safety matters

We are subject to Indian laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment, human health and safety,
and laws and regulations relating to the handling, transportation and disposal of medical specimens, infectious and
hazardous waste and radioactive materials/wastes. All our laboratories are subject to applicable laws and regulations
relating to biohazard disposal of all laboratory specimens. For further details, see “Key Regulations and Policies” on
page no. 115 of this Draft Prospectus.

We also strive to provide employees with a safe working environment. Our employees are trained and encouraged to
use protective equipment and instruments while handling biological specimen and adhere to national and local safety
guidelines, including that of biomedical waste disposal. We monitor radiation levels of all the personnel working in
radiation generating area. We imbibe knowledge of radiation safety practices to all our staff working in radiation
zone through our regular academic programs taught by qualified radiation safety officer.

Safety devices are provided and the functions of which are regularly checked. These devices include biosafety and
laminar flow cabinets, emergency showers, fire extinguishers, eye wash facilities, fire alarms, smoke detectors and
fire hose reels. Fire evacuation plans and emergency exits are displayed at provisional areas.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Certain of our CSR activities include conducting health camps in rural areas. As part of our CSR initiatives and on
account of the COVID-19 pandemic, Dr Nitin Thorave along with his team provided round the clock treatment
through online to COVID patients. Wherever necessary, oxygen arrangement and supported treatment was also
provided to Patients. The patients who were getting critical at home were treated with all the Critical Care treatment
at home only through simple guidance and medication where side affects of the medicines were not observed by the
patients. The Age group of patients was from new born infant to 97 years of age Comorbid conditions from high
Blood pressure, severe diabetes, patients on dialysis, patient underwent angioplasties Bypass surgeries to Organ
Transplants. Between April 2020 to September 2021, he has treated more than 21000 patients.
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

For details of our trademarks, please refer the chapter titled “Government and Other Statutory Approvals”
beginning on page 224 of this Draft Prospectus.

HUMAN RESOURCE
We believe that our employees are key contributors to our business success. We focus on attracting and retaining the
best possible talent. Our Company looks for specific skill-sets, interests and background that would be an asset for

our business.

As of June 30, 2021, we had a total of 213 employees on the payroll of our Company. The table below shows the
functional breakdown of our employees:

Function / Department Number of Employees Designation
2 Executive Directors
Senior Management & KMP 3 CEO, . CFO . Company  Secretary &
Compliance Officer
8 Others
Allied Management 10 Allied Management
Radiologists, Laboratory, Radiologists, Laboratory, Doctors and
- 03 -
Doctors and Physicians Physicians
Technical Staff 178 Technical Staff
Sales and Marketing 09 Sales and Marketing
Total 213

We offer training to our staff on an ongoing basis and such training goes beyond the development of the required
skills. This encompasses training on knowledge, skills and attitude. This approach ensures the deployment of
competent staff to deliver quality service to our customers that earns the trust of not just our customers but the entire
ecosystem of healthcare providers at large.

The training of employees is based on a phased training program. At the initial level, we provide training on
knowledge and skills for new joiners, while the experienced staff is trained on the protocols followed within our
operational sites to ensure standards of our Company are maintained. The second level was designed for continuous
education that is done departmental wise to ensure there is a retention and recall of the learning while refreshing the
employees with the latest updated practices. We also involve manufacturers of the radiology and laboratory
equipment and instruments during the training to ensure the comprehensiveness of the training. The third level
involves the cross departmental training and upskilling of the existing staff to prepare them for greater
responsibilities.

Managerial and leadership trainings are also conducted to boost the development of the managerial competencies
while building a leadership pipeline for our Company.

OUR PROPERTIES

Name of the License/
Sr. Lease Seller/ Licensor/ Leased/ Location of the Area | Period Purpose
No. Date Lessor/ Vendor/ Owned/ Property
Franchisee Franchisee
Swapnshilpa,  Behind 55
. Aarti Apartment, months | Used as
1 16-09- \[/)lithNa::gl) Leased Vartak Road, Virar 5;';3 w.e.f. | Registered and
' 2021 Thorve (West) — 401303, Ft. from | Administrative
Palagar, Maharashtra, ' 01-09- | office
India 2021
18-03- Purva_ Shop No.1 to | 2519 U_sed oas
2. 2005 Construction Owned 13,Accord Apartment, | Sq. NA Diagnostic cum
LLP at Village Navghar, Ft. Collection
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Name of the License/
Sr. Lease Seller/ Licensor/ Leased/ Location of the .
No. Date Lessor/ Vendor/ Owned/ Property G | IPErT AU
Franchisee Franchisee
Taluka Vasai — 401201 Centre at Vasai
Ambadi
Shop Nos. 14, 15, 18, Used as
T 19, 22, 23, 24, 34 and Diagnostic cum
5 | 1801 ;fg'gt \?;ggg:: owned | Shop No28 to 31, 1¢ 3;’30 Collection
' 2006 PVt Ltd floor, Thakur Arcade, Ft' NA Centre at
' Virar West — 401303 ' Thakur Aracde,
Virar West
Room No. 210 to 213
13-04- Dr. Nitin and 214 to 216 Buzzy | 1574
4. Vitthalrao Leased Plaza,, Nashik - Pune | Sg. NA
2006
Thorve Hwy, Narayangaon, Ft.
Maharashtra 410504
Room No. 110 to 116
Mr. Sachin C. Buzzy Plaza, Nashik - 2364
5. 23-09- Gandhi and Mr. Owned Pune Hwy, sq NA
2004 Rahul K. Vora Narayangaon, Ft. Used as
Maharashtra 410504 ' Diagnostic cum
Room No. 22, 23, Collection
. 24,Ground Floor, Centre at
6 20-09- \I?r.hN:tm q Buzzy Plaza, Nashik - 1054 Narayangaon
. 2010 itthalrao Lease Pune Hwy, Sq. NA
Thorve Ft.
Narayangaon,
Maharashtra 410504
One Hall ,Ground
20-00- Qr. Nitin Floor_, Buzzy Plaza,, | 134
7. 2010 Vitthalrao Leased Nashik - Pune Hwy, | Sg. NA
Thorve Narayangaon, Mtrs.
Mabharashtra 410504
Vasundhara Space, Plot
No. A, Out of Survey
Mr. VVasantrao No._167/1, 168/1 also 15 U_sed _ as
07-07- Baburao bearing CTS N_o. 2493 | 5,500 | wyears, Dlagno_stlc cum
8. 2012 Gaikwad & Leased &_ 2494 respectively, of | Sq. w.e.f | Collection
Others Village Aundh, Taluka Ft. 01-06- | Centre at
— Haveli, District — 2012 | Aundh, Pune
Pune, Maharashtra,
India
Sanjivani Hospital
Premises, Ground
Floor, Survey No. 9 vears Used as
17-05- Sa_njivani _ 293A, 1/1 Part, 293/6 | 1,000 vB\//ef’ standalone CT
9. 2019 Hospital Public Leased part, 292 A/2 Part, | Sq. 01;0'6- & MRI and
Charitable Trust 260/7 Part, Taluka - Ft. 2019 Collection
Vasai, Dist — Palghar — Centre at Vasai
401 209, Maharashtra,
India
Madhumati  Complex, Used as
Ground Floor, Room 5 years Diagnostic cum
No. 5, Grampanchayat | 5,210 Collection
10. 220022 ggv:\:g%hazﬁg Leased | House No. 558/5At | Sq. Ovi'_'g';_ Centre at
Post Ambadi, Taluka Ft. 2018 Ambadi
Bhivandi, District
Thane, Maharashtra,
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Name of the License/
Sr. Lease Seller/ Licensor/ Leased/ Location of the .
No. Date Lessor/ Vendor/ Owned/ Property G | IPErT AU
Franchisee Franchisee
India
Nilgiri Apartment, 10 gisaednostic cuarri
Mr. Bhuvnesh Shop No. C/16 & C/17, | 400 years, gnos
04-12- - . . Collection
11. 2014 Krushnaji Leased Village Virar, Taluka — | Sq. w.e.f Centre at Virar
Chaudharir Vasai, District — Thane, Ft. 01-12- East
Maharashtra, India 2014
Manvelpada
Shree Harmony, Shop Used as
No. 51, Ground Floor, 33 Collection
Yashwant Viva | 375 | Months, | Centre at
12. 1200;3' MPr.urSsL\J/\rl]griliS Leased | Township, Vasai (East), | Sg. w.ef | Achole,
City Achole, District | Mtrs. | 10-11- | Nallasopara
Palghar, Maharashtra, 2020
India
Krishna Complex Used as
Shopping Complex, Diagnostic
Shop No. 1, Ground 5 Centre cum
Floor, Block No.1, | 350 years, | Collection at
13. 0210(2)(2) Mh:r:é;? \éigh Leased | Thane Road, Kaneri, | Sq. w.ef | Kalyan Naka
Village Kanerigaon, | Mtrs. | 01-02-
Tehsil. Bhivandi, Dist. 2020
Thane, Maharashtra,
India
Mr. Bhuvnesh Nilgiri Apartment, 10 Used as
Krushnaji Shop No. C/18 & C/19 oars Diagnostic cum
14 01-12- Chaudharir & Leased & C/03, Village Virar, 1,065 )\/Nefl Collection
' 2014 Mr. Kishore Taluka — Vasai, District ' b Centre at Virar
. 01-12-
Vishvanath — Thane, Maharashtra, 2014 East
Shirsekar India Manvelpada
Digamber Co-operative Used as
Society, Shop No. 20 & standalone CT
21, Ground Floor, 615 5 Centre at Parel
15 01-12- Kishori Manohar Leased Bhoiwada, Jerbai S 3\'5&::?
| 2018 Chikhalikar Wadia Road, Parel, | >3 ©
. Mtrs. | 01-09-
Dadar Naigaon, 2018
Mumbai - 400012,
Maharashtra, India
Shop No. 1,2,3 Used as
Mr. H. L. Veera, Ramjanaki Co-op 15 Diagnostic cum
03-02- Mr. [_)evchand Housing Society .Ltd 1500 | years, Collection  at
16. Kheraj Gada and Leased 80 w.e.f.
2016 Survey No. 86 , Village Nallasopara
Mrs. Rekha . Ft. 03-2-
Devchand Gada Nilemore, Nallasopara 2016 West
(West ), 401203
Vasai Pan Ground Floor , CO-OP, 7 Used as
. Hissa no.  3/1,3/7 | 1032 | years, | Diagnostic
01-12- Marketing .
17. 2018 Sahakari societ Leased Village Sandor, Taluka, | Sq. w.e.f | Centre cum
Limited y Vasai Ft. 01-02- | Collection at
2018 | Bhabola
Haresh Shah, Shop No. 9, 10, 1_1 5 U_sed oas
Jayesh Shah Kamar)wala Kpnj, 1055 | years Dlagno_stlc cum
01-09- ! Agashi Road, Besides ' | Collection
18. Bhavana Shah Leased . Sq. w.e.f
2015 Sheetal Nagar, Virar Centre at
and Ft. 01-09-
. West, 401 303 Kamanwala
Manisha Shah 2015 .
Virar West
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Name of the License/
Sr. Lease Seller/ Licensor/ Leased/ Location of the .
No. Date Lessor/ Vendor/ Owned/ Property G | IPErT AU
Franchisee Franchisee
Ground & 1% Floor, Used as
Tahera Apartment, Plot 15 Diagnostic cum
01-03- _Salahuddin _ No.3&4,_Survey No.42, | 2205 | vyears, | Collection
19. 2013 Ziauddin Ansari Leased Opp Arif arden, V .P. | Saq. w.e.f | Centre at
Naka, Bhiwandi - | Ft 01-3- | Tahera
421302 2013 | Apartment,
Bhiwandi
Shree Warkari Shree Warkari Bhavan, 5 Used as
Prabodhan and Ganpatrao Kadam 1920 | years Diagnostic cum
20 01-10- Shree Leased Marg, Gomata Nagar, sq We f’ Collection
' 2018 Rameshwar in fornt of Nerolac ' >y Centre at Worli
. . Ft. 01-10-
Shastri Paint, Lower Parel, 2018
Mumbai - 400 013
Agarwal Nagri Used as
Complex AcholeGaon 1 year Diagnostic
. Near Andhra Bank, cum Collection
21. 22-06- Dr. Vijay Franchisee | opp. VVMC  Fire 1184 | wel. | conie at
2021 Shirishakar : S| sqft | 22-06-
Brigade, VasantNagari, 2021 Nalasopara
Nalasopara East, East, near Fire
Maharashtra 401208 Brigade
Shop no. 2, 5 years Used as
SushilaSadanAgashi Collection
22. 09-12- Mrs..Shagufta Franchisee | Naka, Front o? VVSB 200 we.. Centre at
2019 Amin Dhada . . sq ft | 09-12- A
Bank, Agashi, Virar, 2019 Agashi, Vihar
Maharashtra 401301
Shop no. 1, SaiLaxman Used as
Mr. Anil Kumar C.H.S._ LTI?., Near 5 years | Collection
15-07- ' . GanpatiMandir, ST | 200 w.e.f. | Centre at
23. Yadav and Mrs. | Franchisee
2021 BavitaYaday Depot, sqft | 15-07- | Nalasopara (W)
NalasoparaWest, 2021
401203
Shop no. 1, Opposite Used as
sadhanaPatpedhi, Holy 5 years | Collection
24 09-12- Mrs. Mayuri Franchisee Action rd, next to Holy | 200sq | w.e.f. | Centre at Holy
' 2019 Mukhane Market, Holy, Vasai ft 09-12- | Vasai West
West, Maharashtra 2019
401201
Shree Used as
MangalMurtiMandir Collection
3 years
99-12- _ _ Trust, Shop. No. 1,1 .55 | 7 " | Centre _at
25. Mrs. Nisha More | Franchisee | Near  GanpatiMandir, MangalmurtiM
2020 . sqft | 22-12- . :
Opp. Old Viva College, 2020 andir, Virar
Y. K. Nagar, Virar West
(West), 401 303.
Shop No. B/11, Ground Used as
floor, Kam_at Park_Co. 5 years Collection _
09-01- Mr. Praveen _ Op. Hou5|_ng Souety, 150 wef Centre at Vihar
26. . Franchisee | Near VidhyaMandir East
2021 kumar Mali - sq ft | 09-01-
School, VirSavarkar 2021
Road, Virar  East,
401305.
301, Shivalik, A Wing, 5years | Used as
27. 029021_ Yoge':;/fl1rF;andit Franchisee | Opp.  SBI  Bank, s4q51?t w.e.f. | Collection
Parnaka, Vasai West. 09-01- | Centre at Vasai
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Name of the License/
Sr. Lease Seller/ Licensor/ Leased/ Location of the .
No. Date Lessor/ Vendor/ Owned/ Property G | IPErT AU
Franchisee Franchisee
2021 | West
Shop  No-2,  near 5 vears Used as
. KolhapuriDhaba, Opp. | 300 Y Collection
27-02- Mr. Amit . : w.e.f. .
28. Franchisee | to Rajkarnav Hotel, | sq ft Centre at Virar
2021 Kondlekar . 27-02-
Chandansar, Virar East 7? 2021 East
401305
Mrs. GhosaliMalebhatAgash 5years | Used . as
29 08-11- BenitleaJohnyTu | Franchisee | i, Virar, Maharashtra 200sq | w.ef. | Collection
' 2019 scano Iln dia ' ' ft 08-11- | Centre at
2019 | Agashi
Ms. Jessica Shop no 9, bldg no A 5years | Used as
30 09-04- BlaiseD’mello& Franchisee 1/C wing, pareiranagar, | 2250s | w.e.f. | Collection
' 2021 Mr. Blaise near ramdev park, | qft 09-04- | Centre at
Victor D’mello Naigaon east. 2021 | Naigaon East
. W07 /2746/ 289-1, Used as
MS' J?ssma Beside Simran Caterers, 5 years Collection
09-12- BlaiseD’mello& . 225 w.e.f. .
31. . Franchisee | Opp. Tamtalav Post, Centre at Vasai
2019 Mr. Blaise . sqft | 09-12-
. , Vasai, Palghar 401201, West
Victor D’mello . 2019
Maharashtra, India
Mrs. Shop no. 3, Ground 5years | Used as
32 30-06- SonalChaudhari Franchisee Floor, Ashiyana Apt., | 250 w.e.f. | Collection
' 2021 & Mrs. Bolinj Naka, Agashi | SqFt | 30-06- | Centre Bolinj,
SonaliMoralwar Road, Virar West 2021 | Virar West
Shop no. 3, Ground 5 years Used . as
Mrs. Collection
06-05- . . Floor, Shree Ganesh, w.e.f.
33. ShashiShyamsun | Franchisee 250 Centre Central
2021 Central Park, Nalaopara 06-05-
darChavan Park,
East 2021
Nalasopara East
Shop No. 15, Bldg. No. Used as
Ms. Sharayu 15, Agarwal Lifestyle 5 years Collection
30-06- More & Mr. . 220 w.e.f. .
34. Franchisee | Avenue Bl CHS, Centre  Virar
2021 Chandrakant D . . . sqft | 30-06-
More ChikalDongri, Virar 2021 West
West, 401 303
Mr Shop No. 1, Ground 5 years Used as
07-07- AnkushYande& _ Floor, Prltam_VeeIa, 150 wef Collection _
35. . Franchisee | Near DayaSmruti Hall, Centre  Virar
2021 Mrs. Daisy sqft | 07-07-
Dabre Vger SavarkarMarg, 2021 East
Virar East 401305.
Shop no. 1, SaiLaxman 5 vears Used as
15-07- Mr. Anil Kumar CHS. LTD., Near 200 vyef Collection
36. Yadav and Mrs. | Franchisee | GanpatiMandir, ST " | Centre
2021 - sqft | 15-07-
BavitaYadav Depot, Nalasopara 2021 Nalasopara
West, 401203 West
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KEY INDUSTRY REGULATIONS AND POLICIES

The following description is a summary of the relevant sector-specific laws, regulations and policies as prescribed
by the Government of India, and other regulatory bodies that are applicable to our business. The information
detailed in this Chapter has been obtained from the various legislations, including rules and regulations
promulgated by the regulatory bodies and the bye laws of the respective local authorities that are available in the
public domain. The regulations and policies set out below may not be exhaustive and are only intended to provide
general information to the investors and are neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional advice.

The statements below are based on the current provisions of Indian law, and the judicial and administrative
interpretations thereof, which are subject to change or modification by subsequent legislative, regulatory,
administrative or judicial decisions.

Under the provisions of various Central Government and State Government statutes and legislations, our Company
is required to obtain and maintain applicable licenses or registrations and to seek statutory permissions to conduct
our business and operations. For details of government approvals and other approvals obtained by us, see the
chapter titled “Government and Other Approvals” beginning on page no. 224 of this Draft Prospectus.

Business and/or Key Industry and/or Trade related Laws and Regulations
The Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Act, 2010 (“CERR Act”)

The CERR Act provides for registration and regulation of clinical establishments and prescribes minimum standards
for facilities and services provided by them. Currently, the CERR Act is in effect in the States of Arunachal Pradesh,
Himachal Pradesh, Mizoram, Sikkim, Uttar Pradesh, Rajasthan, Bihar, Uttarakhand and Jharkhand and all Union
Territories except Delhi (“Notified Areas”). Additionally, the States of Bihar, Jharkhand, Uttarakhand, Himachal
Pradesh, Arunachal Pradesh and Sikkim, and Union Territories of Puducherry, Dadra & Nagar Haveli, Daman &
Diu and Andaman & Nicobar Islands have framed rules applicable to their respective states under the CERR Act
prescribing inter alia the powers of registration authority, procedure for registration of clinical establishments and
applicable fee.

The CERR Act defines a “clinical establishment” to include inter alia a place established in connection with the
diagnosis or treatment of diseases where pathological, bacteriological, genetic, radiological, chemical, biological
investigations or other diagnostic or investigative services with the aid of laboratory or other medical equipment, are
usually carried.

While draft minimum standards under the CERR Act for various services to be provided by, and application formats
for permanent registration of, clinical establishments have been made publicly available, these are yet to be notified
in the Official Gazette. In the interim, clinical establishments in Notified Areas are required to apply for provisional
registration under the CERR Act within six months of establishment, irrespective of prior registration under any
other applicable laws, which would be valid for an initial period of 12 months, subject to renewal for time periods as
prescribed under the CERR Act. Permanent registration shall only be applied for and granted if the clinical
establishment meets the prescribed standards for registration under the CECG Rules, once notified. Unless revoked
on account of contravention of any provisions of the CERR Act or CECG Rules, such registration would be valid for
a period of five years and may be renewed pursuant to an application made within six months before the expiry of
the permanent registration.

The Clinical Establishments (Central Government) Rules 2012 (“CECG Rules™)

The Ministry of Health and Family Welfare, Government of India by a notification dated May 23, 2012 brought into
force the CECG Rules, which are applicable to the states wherein the CERR Act is in operation. The CECG Rules
inter alia, provide conditions for registration and continuation of clinical establishments. In terms of CECG Rules,
clinical establishments are required to display the rates for each type of services in vernacular and English language,
the rates to be charged are ought to be within the range as determined by the Central Government, the clinical
establishments are required to ensure compliance with standard treatment guidelines as determined and issued by the
Central Government or the State Governments as the case may be, clinical establishments are required to maintain
electronic records of every patient. Additionally, clinical establishments are also required to maintain information
and statistics in accordance with the CECG Rules.
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Additionally, States of Bihar, Jharkhand, Uttarakhand, Himachal Pradesh, Arunachal Pradesh and Sikkim, and
Union Territories of Puducherry, Dadar & Nagar Haveli, Daman & Diu and Andaman & Nicobar Islands have
framed rules applicable to their respective states under the CERR Act, prescribing inter alia the powers of
registration authority, procedure for registration of clinical establishments and applicable fee.

Certain states/union territories which are governed by other legislations for regulation of clinical establishments or
nursing homes, wherein the CERR Act is not applicable, are as follows:

i)  Haryana Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Act, 2014;

i)  The Andhra Pradesh Private Medical Care Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Act, 2002;

iii) The Bombay Nursing Homes Registration Act, 1949;

iv)  The Delhi Nursing Homes Registration Act, 1953;

v)  The Jammu and Kashmir Nursing Homes and Clinical Establishment (Registration and Licensing) Act, 1963;

vi) The Madhya Pradesh Upcharya Griha Tatha Rujopchar Sanbabdu Sthapamaue (Ragistrikaran Tatha
Anugyapan) Adhiniyam, 1973;

vii) The Manipur Homes and Clinics Registration Act, 1992;

viii) The Nagaland Health Care Establishments Act, 1997;

iX) The Orissa Clinical Establishments (Control and Regulation) Act, 1990;

X)  The Punjab State Nursing Home Registration Act, 1991; and

xi)  The West Bengal Clinical Establishments Act, 1950.

The Preconception and Pre-Natal Diagnostic Techniques (Prohibition of Sex Selection) Act, 1994 as amended
(“PCPNDT Act”)

The PCPNDT Act prohibits sex selection, before or after conception; regulates use of pre-natal diagnostic
techniques for the purposes of detecting genetic abnormalities or metabolic disorders or chromosomal abnormalities
or certain congenital malformations or sex-linked disorders; and provide for prevention of their misuse for sex
determination leading to female foeticide. The PCPNDT Act prohibits any person, organisation, genetic counseling
centre, laboratory or clinic from issuing, publishing or distributing any advertisement regarding availability of
facilities of pre-natal determination of sex and from employing any person who does not possess the prescribed
qualifications. The PCPNDT Act mandates genetic counselling centres, genetic laboratories or genetic clinics to be
registered failing which penal action could be initiated against them. The central supervisory board constituted under
the PCPNDT Act is authorised to lay down a code of conduct for persons working in any genetic counselling centre,
laboratory or clinic. Appropriate authority appointed by Central and respective State Government are conferred
powers inter alia to grant, suspend or cancel the registration of a genetic counselling centre, laboratory or clinic,
enforce standards, investigate complaints and take necessary legal action.

The Preconception and Pre-Natal Diagnostic Techniques (Prohibition of Sex Selection) Rules, 1996 as
amended (“PCPNDT Rules™)

The PCPNDT Rules prescribe minimum qualifications of employees, equipment and places for a genetic counseling
centre, laboratory and clinic. The PCPNDT Rules stipulate the format in which an application for registration should
be made by such centre, laboratory or clinic before the appropriate authority appointed under the PNCPDT Act and
lays down the manner in which records are to be maintained and preserved by such genetic counselling centre,
laboratory or clinic. The PCPNDT Rules provide for code of conduct and conditions to be followed by owners,
employees or any other persons associated with a genetic counselling centre, laboratory and clinic registered under
the PCPNDT Act. The PCPNDT Rules further require every genetic counselling centre, laboratory and clinic to
intimate every change of employee, place, address and equipment installed, to the appropriate authority within the
time prescribed and preserve such information as permanent records.

The Atomic Energy Act, 1962 as amended (“AE Act”)

The AE Act aims to ensure safe disposal of radioactive waste and secure public safety, including that of persons
handling radioactive substances. The AE Act empowers the Central Government to inter alia:

i) Prohibit the manufacture, possession, use, and transfer by sale or otherwise, export and import and in any
emergency, transport and disposal, of any radioactive substances without its written consent;

ii) require any person to make periodical returns or other such statements as regards any prescribed substance in a
person’s possession or control that can be a source of atomic energy; and
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iii) In order to prevent radiation hazards, secure public safety and safety of persons handling radioactive substances
or radiation generating plants, ensure safe disposal of radioactive wastes at such premises.

The Atomic Energy (Radiation Protection) Rules, 2004 (“AERP Rules”)

The AERP Rules stipulate that every person intending to use any radioactive material for any purpose, in any
location and in any quantity has to comply with the requirements of AE Act. The AERP Rules mandate every person
handling radio-active material to apply for a license which may be subsequently modified, revoked or withdrawn at
the discretion of the competent authority which is the Atomic Energy Regulatory Board (“AERB”) unless exempted
under AERP Rules. The license shall be valid for a period of five years from the date of its issue. The power of
AERB extends to notifying appropriate radiation surveillance procedures, requisitioning medical records of workers
and ensuring rehabilitation of affected workers. The AERP Rules lay down various compliance measures inter alia
as regards maintenance of radiation protection equipment and health surveillance of workers. AERP Rules also
prescribe certain general safety guidelines, directives for emergency preparedness and accidents. The AERP Rules
require radiation symbol or warning sign to be conspicuously and prominently displayed at all times on the radiation
equipment and at the entrance of the room housing such equipment. The AERP Rules confer power upon the AERB
to issue safety codes, safety standards and prescribe the requirements for radiation installation, sealed sources,
radiation generating equipment and equipment containing radioactive sources, and transportation of radioactive
material. The licensee has to ensure compliance with such standards and requirements. Every employer with the
written approval of AERB is required to appoint a radiological safety officer who would ensure the safety of
workers, safe storage and movement of radioactive material and report the loss or leakage of any radioactive
material to the competent authority. The AERB has been vested with wide powers under AERP Rules for
conducting inspections of premises, radiation installations and conveyances. Violations of either AERP rules or the
terms of license shall be punishable with imprisonment or fine or both.

The Atomic Energy (Safe Disposal of Radioactive Wastes) Rules, 1987 (“AE Rules”)

The AE Rules have been framed to ensure safe disposal of radioactive wastes. A person can dispose radioactive
wastes only after obtaining authorisation from the competent authority as per the procedure laid down in the AE
Rules and in accordance with the terms and conditions including location and quantity of disposable as specified in
such authorisation. The competent authority constituted under AE Act can suspend, cancel authorisation in event
when the authorised person fails to comply with conditions of the authorisation or with any provisions of the AE Act
or the AE Rules. The AE Rules lay down specific duties for the authorised person and various safety measures to be
adhered to discharging radioactive waste and procedure to be followed in the event of accidental release.

Atomic Energy Regulatory Board — Safety Code for Medical Diagnostic X-Ray Equipment and Installation
dated October 5, 2001 as amended (“X-ray Code”)

The X-ray Code governs radiation safety in design, installation and operation of x-ray generating equipment for
medical diagnostic purposes. Pursuant to the X-ray Code medical diagnostic x-ray equipment and protective devices
are required to be operated in accordance with the requirements outlined and it is the responsibility of the
employer/owner of medical X-ray installation equipment to ensure compliance with the statutory provisions. The
Xray Code mandates that only medical X-ray equipment which is of the type approved by AERB is to be installed
for use. The purchase, transfer, gift, leasing or loan of X-ray equipment shall be registered with AERB by the person
acquiring the equipment. Further, no diagnostic X-ray equipment shall be operated unless the licensee obtains
license and/or registration from AERB. Non-compliance with the regulatory requirement set forth in the X-ray Code
shall be punishable with imprisonment or fine or both.

Atomic Energy Regulatory Board —Safety code on Nuclear Medicine Facilities dated November 4, 2010
(“Nuclear Medicine Code”)

The Nuclear Medicine Code stipulates requirements of radiation safety in handling of radioactive materials for
nuclear medicine facilities. Pursuant to the Nuclear Medicine Code, diagnostic and therapeutic procedures using
unsealed radioisotopes are to be carried out only in facilities approved by the AERB and such facilities cannot be
commissioned until approval to commence is received from AERB. The Nuclear Medicine Code mandates that
nuclear medicine facilities should not be located in residential buildings and such facilities are to ensure compliance
with specified regulatory requirements. The Nuclear Medicine Code requires active rooms, wards and areas of
source storage and handling to be marked with radiation symbol and to provide a legend denoting active area and
presence of a radiation hazard. The Nuclear Medicine Code mandates employers to designate with the approval of a
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competent authority, a person having prescribed qualifications to function as a radiological safety officer, who shall
be a full time employee. The Nuclear Medicine Code embeds requirement of emergency preparedness plan outlining
emergency response actions.

Atomic Energy Regulatory Board- Safety Code on Safe Transport of Radioactive Material AERB/NRF-
TS/SC-1, 2015 (“Transport Code”)

The Transport Code which is based on the International Atomic Energy Agency regulations, regulates the transport
of radioactive material in public domain. The basic requirement for the transport of radioactive material is that the
package containing the material shall be designed and prepared in such a way that during the whole process of
transport, the radioactive material remains contained to prevent contamination and remains shielded to avoid
radiation exposure to cargo handlers and the public. The prime responsibility for ensuring compliance with the
regulations lies with the consignor. Once the package is prepared as per the prescribed procedures, it can be
transported by any mode.

Aircraft (Carriage of Dangerous Goods) Rules, 2003

The Aircraft (Carriage of Dangerous Goods) Rules, 2003, issued by the Directorate General of Civil Aviation,
Ministry of Civil Aviation govern the carriage of dangerous goods, namely articles or substances which are capable
of posing a risk to health, safety, property or the environment and which are listed as such under the Technical
Instructions for the Safe Transport of Dangerous Goods by Air issued by the International Civil Aviation
Organisation (the “Technical Instructions”). Carriage of dangerous goods in ay aircraft and delivery for loading on
an aircraft has to be in accordance with the Technical Instructions. For the carriage of radioactive material in any
aircraft, the operator is required to ensure that the consignor and consignee has the written consent of the Central
Government under Section 16 of the Atomic Energy Act. The packaging, labelling, marking and classification of
dangerous goods also have to be in accordance with Technical Instructions.

Radiation Surveillance Procedures for Medical Applications, 1989 (“RSPM Notification™)

The RSPM Notification was promulgated under rule 15 of the Radiation Protection Rules, 1971 to ensure that
procedures and installations involving radiation, radiation equipment and radioactive material are conducted in a
manner that provide adequate protection against the hazards of radiation. In the light of the RSPM Notification, any
person desirous of handling any radioactive material or radiation equipment has to approach the competent authority
for prior permission in the form of either a license or an authorisation. The RSPM Notification provide safety
guidelines as regard to certain key aspects such as the design safety of equipment, planning of radiation instalments,
commissioning of radiation equipment and isolation and disposal of radioactive effluents or damaged radioactive
material. The RSPM Notification stipulates adherence to working conditions in a medical radiation installation
formulated by the competent authority in this regard. The RSPM Notification holds an employer directly responsible
for effective implementation of surveillance procedures. However, the RSPM notification is yet to be issued under
the Atomic Energy (Radiation Protection) Rules, 2004.

National Accreditation Board for Testing and Calibration Laboratories (“NABL”)

The NABL is an autonomous body established under the aegis of Department of Science and Technology,
Government of India. NABL provides government, regulators and the diagnostic industry with a scheme of
laboratory accreditation through third-party assessment for formally recognizing the quality and technical
competence of the testing and calibration of laboratories in accordance with International Organisation for
Standardization Standards. NABL certification is a mandatory eligibility condition for diagnostic centres
empanelment under the Central Government Health Scheme. Diagnostic laboratories which are not accredited by
NABL may also participate in application and get empanelled under the Central Government Health Scheme but
their empanelment shall be provisional till they are inspected by Quality Council of India or NABL, and are
recommended for continuation of empanelment under the Central Government Health Scheme; however there is no
legal obligation to obtain certification from the NABL.

Guidelines relating to import of blood samples

The “Guidelines for Exchange of Human Biological Material for Biomedical Research Purposes” issued by the
Central Government on November 19, 1997 authorises the Indian Council of Medical Research (“ICMR”) to set up
a committee for consideration of proposals relating to import of biological materials, such as blood samples, for
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commercial purposes. Pursuant to these guidelines, ICMR has issued the “Guidance on Transfer of Human
Biological Material for Commercial Purposes” (“ICMR Guidance”). In accordance with the ICMR Guidance,
applications for import of blood samples are required to be made to the ICMR for onward consideration by a
committee. Applicant companies are required to comply with inter alia the “Guidance on Regulations for the
Transport of Infectious Substances (2013-2014)” and “Laboratory Biosafety Manual — 2004”, issued by the World
Health Organization, United Nations, class (6.2) specifications for packing instructions, and the Environment
Protection Act, 1986, along with the rules framed thereunder.

The Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940 (the “Drugs and Cosmetics Act”)

The Drugs and Cosmetics Act regulates the import, manufacture, distribution and sale of drugs in India and provides
for labelling, packing, testing and licensing of drugs. The manufacture, sale and distribution of drugs are primarily
governed by relevant state authorities. Drugs manufactured/sold/distributed/imported have to meet the standards of
quality set out in the Second Schedule to the Drugs and Cosmetics Act. Central Government can prohibit the import
of drugs in public interest. The Central Government has issued the Drugs and Cosmetics Rules, 1945 (the “Drugs
and Cosmetics Rules”) which mandate an import licence in the prescribed form for import of drugs. Such import
licence will be valid for a period of three years from the date of its issue unless it is suspended or cancelled sooner.
The imported drug has to meet the standard of strength, quality and purity. The Drugs and Cosmetics Rules also
require a licence to sell, stock, exhibit or offer for sale or distribute drugs. This licence will be valid for a period of
five years from the date of grant or renewal unless suspended or cancelled sooner.

The Consumer protection Act, 2019 as amended (“CPA”)

The Consumer Protection Act, 2019 came into effect from 20th July,2020 will empower consumers and help them in
protecting their rights through its various notified rules and provisions like Consumer Protection Councils,
Consumer Disputes Redressal Commissions, Mediation, Product Liability and punishment for manufacture or sale
of products containing adulterant / spurious goods. It will be empowered to conduct investigations into violations of
consumer rights and institute complaints / prosecution, order recall of unsafe goods and services, order
discontinuance of unfair trade practices and misleading advertisements, impose penalties on
manufacturers/endorsers/publishers of misleading advertisements. It introduces the concept of product liability and
brings within its scope, the product manufacturer, product service provider and product seller, for any claim for
compensation. The new Act provides for simplifying the consumer dispute adjudication process in the consumer
commissions, which include, among others, empowerment of the State and District Commissions to review their
own orders, enabling a consumer to file complaints electronically and file complaints in consumer Commissions that
have jurisdiction over the place of his residence, videoconferencing for hearing and deemed admissibility of
complaints if the question of admissibility is not decided within the specified period of 21 days.

Environmental laws and regulations
Environment Protection Act, 1986 as amended (“Environment Act”)

The Environment Act is an umbrella legislation designed to provide a framework for the Central Government to
coordinate activities of various state and central authorities established under previous environmental laws. The
Environment Act specifies that no person carrying on any industry, operation or process shall discharge or emit or
permit to be discharged or emitted any environment pollutants in excess of such standards as may be prescribed. The
Environment Act empowers the Central Government to make rules for various purposes viz., to prescribe:

(i) the standards of quality of air, water or soil for various areas;

(if) the maximum allowable limits of concentration of various environmental pollutants for different areas;

(iii) the procedures and safeguards for the prevention of accidents which may cause environmental pollution and
remedial measures for such accidents.

Environment (Protection) Rules, 1986, as amended, (“Environment Rules”)
In the exercise of powers conferred under Environment Act, the Central Government has framed the Environment
Rules. Pursuant to Environment Rules, every person who carries on an industry, operation or process requiring

consent under Water Act or Air Act or shall submit to the concerned SPCB, an environmental statement for that
financial year in the prescribed form.
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Bio-Medical Waste (Management and Handling) Rules, 1998, as amended (“BMW Rules™)

The Central Government has framed the BMW Rules, pursuant to the rule making power conferred under the
Environment Act. The BMW Rules apply to persons generating, collecting, receiving, storing, transporting, treating,
disposing or handling bio-medical waste in any form including hospitals, clinics and pathological laboratories. The
BMW requires an occupant of an institution generating bio-medical waste to take steps to ensure that such waste is
handled without any adverse effect to human health and the environment. The BMW Rules regulates modes of
treatment and disposal of “bio-medical waste” which is defined as any waste generated during diagnosis, treatment
or immunization of human beings or animals or in research activities pertaining thereto or in the production or
testing of animals, as defined in the BMW Rules. The BMW Rules require every occupier of an institution handling
bio-medical waste in any form and providing services to more than 1000 patients per month, to obtain an
authorization from the prescribed authority. The BMW Rules require such authorized person to submit an annual
report and an accident report to the prescribed authority and maintain relevant records. However, the prescribed
authority may cancel, suspend or refuse to renew an authorisation, if for reasons to be recorded in writing, the
occupier/ operator has failed to comply with any of the provisions of Environment Act or BMW Rules.

Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974, as amended

The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974prohibits the discharge of pollutants into water bodies
beyond a given standard, and lays down penalties for non-compliance. The Water Act also provides that the consent
of the State Pollution Control Board must be obtained prior to opening of any new outlets or discharges, which is
likely to di scharge sewage or effluent.

The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess Act, 1977

Provides for the levy and collection of a cess on water consumed by persons carrying on certain industries and by
local authorities, with a view to augment the resources of the Central Board and the State Boards for the prevention
and control of water pollution constituted under the Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974.

The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981requires that any individual or institution responsiblefor
emitting smoke or gases by way of use as fuel or chemical reactions must apply in a prescribed form and obtain
consent from the state pollution control board prior to commencing any activity. National Ambient Air Quality
Standards (NAAQS) for major pollutants were notified by the Central Pollution Control Board in April 1994.

The Noise Pollution (Regulation & Control) Rules 2000 (“Noise Regulation Rules”)

The Noise Regulation Rules regulate noise levels in industrial, commercial and residential zones. The Noise
Regulation Rules also establish zones of silence of not less than 100 meters near schools, courts, hospitals, etc. The
rules also assign regulatory authority for these standards to the local district courts. Penalty for non-compliance with
the Noise Regulation Rules shall be under the provisions of the Environment (Protection) Act, 1986.

Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management and Trans boundary Movement) Rules, 2016.

In suppression of the Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Trans boundary Movement) Rules, 2008 the
Central Government has put in place Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management and Trans boundary Movement)
Rules, 2016with effect from April 4, 2016. These rules require that the occupier and the operator of the facility, that
treats hazardous wastes, must properly collect, treat, store or dispose the hazardous wastes without adverse effects
on the environment. The legislation has been enacted in order to include “other wastes” as well which maybe
produced indigenously during manufacturing and waste that are imported or exported from India. Under the new
rules, manufacturers are made responsible to ensure proper treatment of hazardous waste in a manner which shall
protect health and the environment against the adverse effects which may result from such waste.

The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSME Act”)

The MSME Act seeks to provide for the promotion and development along with facilitating and enhancing
competition among micro, small and medium enterprises. The MSME Act inter-alia empowers the Central
Government to classify by notification, any class of enterprises including a company, a partnership, firm or any
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other undertaking engaged in the manufacture or production as specified in the first schedule to the Industries
(Development and Regulation) Act, 1951.

The MSME Act also stipulates that any person who intends to establish, a micro or small enterprise or a medium
enterprise engaged in rendering of services, may at his discretion and a medium enterprise engaged in the
manufacture or production of goods as specified hereinabove, file a memorandum of micro, small or medium
enterprise, as the case may be, with the prescribed authority.

The ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterptises vide notification dated 1% June 2020 changed the criteria for
classification to the following which will be effective from July 01, 2020:-

(i) a micro enterprise, where the investment in Plant and Machinery or Equipment does not exceed one crore
rupees and turnover does not exceed five crore rupees;

(i) a small enterprise, where the investment in Plant and Machinery or Equipment does not exceed ten crore
rupees and turnover does not exceed fifty crore rupees; and

(iii) a medium enterprise, where the investment in Plant and Machinery or Equipment does not exceed fifty crore
rupees and turnover does not exceed two hundred and fifty crore rupees.

The Maharashtra Shops and Establishments Act, 1948

The Company has its registered and corporate office situated in Vihar, Maharashtra. Accordingly, the provisions of
the Maharashtra Shops and Establishments Act, 1948 are applicable to the Company. The provisions of the
Maharashtra Shops and Establishments Act, 1948 regulate the conditions of work and employment in shops and
commercial establishments and generally prescribe obligations in respect of inter alia registration, opening and
closing hours, daily and weekly working hours, holidays, leave, health and safety measures, and wages for overtime
work.

Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation) Act, 1992 (“FTA”)

In India, the main legislation concerning foreign trade is the Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation) Act, 1992
(“FTA”). The FTA read along with relevant rules provides for the development and regulation of foreign trade by
facilitating imports into, and augmenting exports from, India and for matters connected therewith or incidental
thereto. As per the provisions of the Act, the Government:- (i) may make provisions for facilitating and controlling
foreign trade; (ii) may prohibit, restrict and regulate exports and imports, in all or specified cases as well as subject
them to exemptions; (iii) is authorized to formulate and announce an export and import policy and also amend the
same from time to time, by notification in the Official Gazette; (iv) is also authorized to appoint a 'Director General
of Foreign Trade' for the purpose of the Act, including formulation and implementation of the Export-Import
(“EXIM”) Policy. FTA read with the Indian Foreign Trade Policy provides that no export or import can be made by
a company without an Importer-Exporter Code number unless such company is specifically exempt. An application
for an Importer-Exporter Code number has to be made to the office of the Joint Director General of Foreign Trade,
Ministry of Commerce.

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999

Foreign investment in Indian companies is governed by the provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act,
1999 (“FEMA”) read with the applicable regulations. The Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion
(“DIPP”), Ministry of Commerce and Industry has issued the Consolidated FDI Policy (the “FDI Circular”) which
consolidates the policy framework on Foreign Direct Investment (“FDI”), with effect from September 7, 2016. The
FDI Circular consolidates and subsumes all the press notes, press releases, and clarifications on FDI issued by DIPP
till September 6, 2106. All the press notes, press releases, clarifications on FDI issued by DIPP till September 6,
2016 stand rescinded as on September 7, 2016. Foreign investment is permitted (except in the prohibited sectors) in
Indian companies either through the automatic route or the approval route, depending upon the sector in which
foreign investment is sought to be made. Under the approval route, prior approval of the Government of India
through FIPB is required. FDI for the items or activities that cannot be brought in under the automatic route may be
brought in through the approval route. Where FDI is allowed on an automatic basis without the approval of the
FIPB, the RBI would continue to be the primary agency for the purposes of monitoring and regulating foreign
investment. In cases where FIPB approval is obtained, no approval of the RBI is required except with respect to
fixing the issuance price, although a declaration in the prescribed form, detailing the foreign investment, must be
filed with the RBI once the foreign investment is made in the Indian company. The RBI, in exercise of its power
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under the FEMA, has also notified the Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person
Resident outside India) Regulations, 2000 to prohibit, restrict or regulate, transfer by or issue security to a person
resident outside India. The Consolidated FDI Circular dated September 7, 2016 issued by the DIPP does not
prescribe any cap on the foreign investments in the sector in which the Company operates. Therefore, foreign
investment up to 100% is permitted in the Company under the automatic route. No approvals of the FIPB or the RBI
are required for such allotment of equity Shares under this Issue. The Company will be required to make certain
filings with the RBI after the completion of the Issue. RBI has also issued Master Circular on Foreign Investment in
India dated July 01, 2015. In terms of the Master Circular, an Indian company may issue fresh shares to persons
resident outside India (who are eligible to make investments in India, for which eligibility criteria are as prescribed).
Such fresh issue of shares shall be subject to inter-alia, the pricing guidelines prescribed under the Master Circular.
As mentioned above, the Indian company making such fresh issue of shares would be subject to the reporting
requirements, inter-alia with respect to consideration for issue of shares and also subject to making certain filings
including filing of Form FC-GPR.

FEMA Regulations

As laid down by the FEMA Regulations, no prior consents and approvals are required from the Reserve Bank of
India, for Foreign Direct Investment under the automatic route within the specified sectoral caps. In respect of all
industries not specified as FDI under the automatic route, and in respect of investment in excess of the specified
sectoral limits under the automatic route, approval may be required from the FIPB and/or the RBI. The RBI, in
exercise of its power under the FEMA, has notified the Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of
Security by a Person Resident Outside India)Regulations, 2000 ("FEMA Regulations") to prohibit, restrict or
regulate, transfer by or issue security to a person resident outside India. Foreign investment in India is governed
primarily by the provisions of the FEMA which relates to regulation primarily by the RBI and the rules, regulations
and notifications there under, and the policy prescribed by the Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion,
Ministry of Commerce & Industry, Government of India.

The Conservation of Foreign Exchange and Prevention of Smuggling Activities Act, 1974 (COFEPOSA)

COFEPOSA came into force for the reason to provide preventive detention and to protect and augment the
guidelines of foreign exchange. The Act also aims to control smuggling activities and other issues in relation to
these activities. COFEPOSA confers power on the Central and the State Governments to issue orders for detaining a
person if it is satisfied that the person has acted detrimental to the protection and intensification of foreign exchange.
The Government shall also issue order of detention on the ground that the person has engaged in the activity of
smuggling goods, assists any person in smuggling goods, transports or conceals such goods, harboring any person
employed in the smuggling activities or does any other activity related with smuggling. Such an order shall be issued
by the Joint Secretary to the Central Government or Secretary to the State Government or any senior officer
authorized by the Government.

STATUTORY LEGISLATIONS
The Companies Act, 1956

The Act deals with the laws relating to company and certain other associations. It was enacted by the parliament in
1956. The Companies Act, 1956 primarily regulated the formation, financing, functioning and winding up of the
companies. The Act prescribes regulatory mechanism regarding all relevant aspect including organizational,
financial and managerial aspects of companies. Regulation of financial and management aspects constitutes the main
focus of the Act. In the functioning of the corporate sector, although freedom of the companies is important,
protection of the investors and shareholders, on whose funds they flourish, is equally important. The Companies Act
plays the balancing role between these two competing factors, namely management autonomy and investor
protection.

The Companies Act, 2013 (To the extent notified)

The Companies Act, 2013, has been introduced to replace the existing Companies Act, 1956 in a phased manner.
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide its notification dated September 12, 2013 has notified 98 (Ninety Eight)
Sections of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same are applicable from the date of the aforesaid notification. A
further 183 (One Eighty Three) Sections have been notified on March 26, 2014 and have become applicable from
April 1, 2014. The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2015 has inter-alia amended various Sections of the Companies
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Act, 2013 to take effect from May 29, 2015. Further, vide the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2015, Section 11 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been omitted and Section 76A has been inserted in the Companies Act, 2013.The Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, has also issued rules complementary to the Companies Act, 2013 establishing the procedure to
be followed by companies in order to comply with the substantive provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Competition Act, 2002

The Competition Act, 2002 (“Competition Act”) aims to prevent anti-competitive practices that cause or are likely
to cause an appreciable adverse effect on competition in the relevant market in India. The Competition Act regulates
anti-competitive agreements, abuse of dominant position and combinations. The Competition Commission of India
(“Competition Commission”) which became operational from May 20, 2009 has been established under the
Competition Act to deal with inquiries relating to anti-competitive agreements and abuse of dominant position and
regulate combinations. The Competition Act also provides that the Competition Commission has the jurisdiction to
inquire into and pass orders in relation to an anti-competitive agreement, abuse of dominant position or a
combination, which even though entered into, arising or taking place outside India or signed between one or more
non-Indian parties, but causes an appreciable adverse effect in the relevant market in India.

Indian Contract Act, 1872

The Indian Contract Act, 1872 (“Contract Act”) codifies the way in which a contract may be entered into, executed,
implementation of the provisions of a contract and effects of breach of a contract. A person is free to contract on any
terms he chooses. The Contract Act consists of limiting factors subject to which contract may be entered into,
executed and the breach enforced. It provides a framework of rules and regulations that govern formation and
performance of contract. The contracting parties themselves decide the rights and duties of parties and terms of
agreement.

The Specific Relief Act, 1963

The Specific Relief Act is complimentary to the provisions of the Contract Act and the T.P. Act, as the Act applies
both to movable property and immovable property. The Act applies in cases where the Court can order specific
performance of a contract. Specific relief can be granted only for purpose of enforcing individual civil rights and not
for the mere purpose of enforcing a civil law. ‘Specific performance’ means Court will order the party to perform
his part of agreement, instead of imposing on him any monetary liability to pay damages to other party.

Transfer of Property Act, 1882

The transfer of property, including immovable property, between living persons, as opposed to the transfer property
by operation of law, is governed by the Transfer of Property Act, 1882 (“T.P. Act.”). The T.P. Act establishes the
general principles relating to the transfer of property, including among other things, identifying the categories of
property that are capable of being transferred, the persons competent to transfer property, the validity of restrictions
and conditions imposed on the transfer and the creation of contingent and vested interest in the property. Transfer of
property is subject to stamping and registration under the specific statutes enacted for the purposes which have been
dealt with hereinafter.

The T.P. Act recognizes, among others, the following forms in which an interest in an immovable property may be

transferred:

- Sale: The transfer of ownership in property for a price, paid or promised to be paid.

- Mortgage: The transfer of an interest in property for the purpose of securing the payment of a loan, existing or
future debt, or performance of an engagement which gives rise to a pecuniary liability. The T.P. Act recognises
several forms of mortgages over a property.

- Charges: Transactions including the creation of security over property for payment of money to another which
are not classifiable as a mortgage. Charges can be created either by operation of law, e.g. decree of the court
attaching to specified immovable property, or by an act of the parties.

- Leases: The transfer of a right to enjoy property for consideration paid or rendered periodically or on specified
occasions. Leave and License: The transfer of a right to do something upon immovable property without creating
interest in the property.
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Further, it may be noted that with regards to the transfer of any interest in a property, the transferor transfers such
interest, including any incidents, in the property which he is capable of passing and under the law, he cannot transfer
a better title than he himself possesses.

The Registration Act, 1908

The Registration Act, 1908 was passed to consolidate the enactments relating to the registration of documents. The
main purpose for which the Act was designed was to ensure information about all deals concerning land so that
correct land records could be maintained. The Act is used for proper recording of transactions relating to other
immovable property also.

The Act provides for registration of other documents also, which can give these documents more authenticity.
Registering authorities have been provided in all the districts for this purpose.

The Indian Stamp Act, 1899

The Indian Stamp Act, 1899 prescribes the rates for the stamping of documents and instruments by which any right
or liability is, or purports to be, created, transferred, limited, extended, extinguished or recorded. Under the Indian
Stamp Act, 1899, an instrument not ‘duly stamped’ cannot be accepted as evidence by civil court, an arbitrator or
any other authority authorised to receive evidence. However, the document can be accepted as evidence in criminal
court.

Maharashtra Stamp Act, 1958

The Maharashtra Stamp Act, 1958 (“Maharashtra Stamp Act”) prescribes the different rates of duties on the
instrument falling within the various descriptions set-out in Schedule | of the Maharashtra Stamp Act., then the
instrument is chargeable with the highest of the duty prescribed. In addition, the Maharashtra Stamp Act also
prescribes methodology for adjudication, refund of duties, grievance processes and prosecutions. The Collector is
normally vested with the power of adjudication. If a document is not stamped or adequately stamped, it is likely to
be impounded.

TAX RELATED LEGISLATIONS
Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax Act, 1961 is applicable to every Domestic / Foreign Company whose income is taxable under the
provisions of this Act or Rules made under it depending upon its —Residential Statusl and —Type of Incomel
involved. U/s 139(1) every Company is required to file its Income tax return for every Previous Year by 31%
October of the Assessment Year. Other compliances like those relating to Tax Deduction at Source, Fringe
Benefit Tax, Advance Tax, and Minimum Alternative Tax and the like are also required to be complied by every
Company.

Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 (the “GST Act”)

Goods and Services Tax (GST) is considered to be the biggest tax reform in India since independence. It will help
realize the goal of “One Nation-One Tax-One Market.” GST is expected to benefit all the stakeholders — industry,
government and consumer. Goods and Services Tax (GST) is an indirect tax throughout India and was introduced as
The Constitution (One Hundred and Twenty Second Amendment) Act 2017, following the passage of Constitution
122nd Amendment Bill. The GST is governed by GST Council and its Chairman is Union Finance Minister of India
- Arun Jaitley. This Act has been made applicable with effect from 1st July 2017.

With the introduction of GST all central, state level taxes and levies on all goods and services have been subsumed
within an integrated tax having two components — central GST and a state GST. Thus there will be a comprehensive
and continuous mechanism of tax credits.

The Central government passed four sets of GST Acts in the Budget session this year. These were Central GST Act,

2017; Integrated GST Act, 2017; Union Territory GST Act, 2017 and GST (Compensation to States) Act, 2017. The
Acts were approved by the Parliament after they were introduced as the part of the Money Bill. Following the

124


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Indirect_tax
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/One_Hundred_and_First_Amendment_of_the_Constitution_of_India
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/One_Hundred_and_First_Amendment_of_the_Constitution_of_India
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Minister_of_Finance_(India)
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Arun_Jaitley

passage of GST Acts, the GST council has decided 4 tax rate slabs viz., 5%, 12%, 18% and 28% on supply of
various goods and services.

India has adopted a dual GST model, meaning that taxation is administered by both the Union and State
Governments. Transactions made within a single State will be levied with Central GST (CGST) by the Central
Government and State GST (SGST) by the government of that State. For inter-state transactions and imported goods
or services, an Integrated GST (IGST) is levied by the Central Government. GST is a consumption-based tax,
therefore, taxes are paid to the State where the goods or services are consumed and not the State in which they were
produced.

Customs Act, 1962

The provisions of the Customs Act, 1962 and rules made there under are applicable at the time of import of goods
i.e. bringing into India from a place outside India or at the time of export of goods i.e. taken out of India to a place
outside India. Any Company requiring to import or export any goods is first required to get itself registered and
obtain an IEC (Importer Exporter Code).

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS LEGISLATIONS
The laws relating to intellectual property will also apply to the Company.
The Trade Marks Act, 1999

The Trade Marks Act, 1999 (“Trademark Act”) governs the statutory protection of trademarks in India. In India,
trademarks enjoy protection under both statutory and common law. Indian trademarks law permits the registration of
trademarks for goods and services. Certification trademarks and collective marks are also registrable under the
Trade Mark Act. An application for trademark registration may be made by any person claiming to be the proprietor
of a trademark and can be made on the basis of either current use or intention to use a trademark in the future. The
registration of certain types of trademarks is absolutely prohibited, including trademarks that are not distinctive and
which indicate the kind or quality of the goods.

Applications for a trademark registration may be made for in one or more international classes. Once granted,
trademark registration is valid for 10 years unless cancelled. If not renewed after 10 years, the mark lapses and the
registration for such mark has to be obtained afresh.

While both registered and unregistered trademarks are protected under Indian law, the registration of trademarks
offers significant advantages to the registered owner, particularly with respect to proving infringement. Registered
trademarks may be protected by means of an action for infringement, whereas unregistered trademarks may only be
protected by means of the common law remedy of passing off. In case of the latter, the plaintiff must, prior to
proving passing off, first prove that he is the owner of the trademark concerned. In contrast, the owner of a
registered trademark is prima facie regarded as the owner of the mark by virtue of the registration obtained.

The Patents Act, 1970

The Patents Act, 1970 (‘Patents Act’) is the primary legislation governing patent protection in India. In addition to
broadly requiring that an invention satisfy the requirements of novelty, utility and non obviousness in order for it to
avail patent protection, the Patents Act further provides that patent protection may not be granted to certain specified
types of inventions and materials even if they satisfy the above criteria. The term of a patent granted under the
Patents Act is for a period of twenty years from the date of filing of application for the patent. The Patents Act
deems that computer programs per se are not ‘inventions’ and are therefore, not entitled to patent protection. This
position was diluted by The Patents Amendment Ordinance, 2004, which included as patentable subject matter:

1. Technical applications of computer programs to industry; and
2. Combinations of computer programs with the hardware.

However, the Patents Amendment Act, 2005, does not include this specific amendment and consequently, the
Patents Act, as it currently stands, disentitles computer programs per se from patent, may disentitle the said
invention to patent protection on grounds of lack of novelty. Under the Patents Act, an invention will be regarded as
having ceased to be novel (and hence not patentable), inter alia, by the existence of:
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1. Any earlier patent on such invention in any country;

2. Prior publication of information relating to such invention;

3. An earlier product showing the same invention; or

4. A prior disclosure or use of the invention that is sought to be patented.

Following its amendment by the Patents Amendment Act, 2005, the Patents Act permits opposition to grant of a
patent to be made, both pre-grant and post-grant. The grounds for such patent opposition proceedings, inter alia,
include lack of novelty, inventiveness and industrial applicability, non-disclosure or incorrect mention of source and
geographical origin of biological material used in the invention and anticipation of invention by knowledge (oral or
otherwise) available within any local or indigenous community in India or elsewhere. The Patents Act also prohibits
any person resident in India from applying for patent for an invention outside India without making an application
for the invention in India. Following a patent application in India, a resident must wait for six weeks prior to making
a foreign application or may obtain the written permission of the Controller of Patents to make foreign applications
prior to this six week period. The Controller of Patents is required to obtain the prior consent of the Central
Government before granting any such permission in respect of inventions relevant for defense purpose or atomic
energy. This prohibition on foreign applications does not apply, however, to an invention for which a patent
application has first been filed in a country outside India by a person resident outside India.

Copyright Act, 1957

The Copyright Act, 1957 (“Copyright Act”) protects original literary, dramatic, musical and artistic works,
Cinematographic films and sound recordings from unauthorized use of such works. Unlike the case with patents,
copyright protects the expressions and not the ideas. There is no copyright in an idea. The object of copyright law is
to encourage authors, artists and composers to create original works by rewarding them with exclusive right for a
fixed period to reproduce the works for commercial exploitation. Copyrights subsist in following class of works:

a) Original literary, musical, dramatic and artistic works

b) Cinematograph films

¢) Sound recordings

Under the copyright law the creator of the original expression in a work is its author who is vested with a set of
exclusive rights with respect to the use and exploitation of the work. The author is also the owner of the copyright,
unless there is a written agreement by which the author assigns the copyright to another person or entity, such as a
publisher, where work is done under a ‘work for hire’ agreement, the copyright vests with the hirer, i.e., the person
providing the work. The owner of copyright in a work can assign or license his copyright to any person, such as
publisher, under a written agreement. Copyright subsists in a work since the time it comes into being. Therefore,
registration of copyright neither creates any rights nor precludes enforcement of the existing ones. However, owing
to its evidentiary value, a registered copyright is easier to establish in the court of law. The term of copyright varies
across different types of works. In the case of broadcasts, the Act grants “broadcast reproduction rights” to
broadcasting organizations which subsist for 25 years.

OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

In addition to the above, depending upon the nature of the activities undertaken or to be undertaken in future by our
Company is also required to comply with the required provisions other applicable statutes and rules framed
thereunder as imposed by the Centre or the State Government and authorities may include the following:

e The Maharastra Entertainments Duty Act, 1923 (Formerly known as The Bombay Entertainments Duty Act,
1923) (MED Act, 1923)

Municipality Laws

Maharashtra Municipalities Act, 1965

The Bombay Police Act, 1951

The Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 (“FSSA™)

Prevention of Food Adulteration Act, 1954 and The Prevention of Food Adulteration Rules, 1955
The Bombay Prohibition Act, 1949

Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970

Maharashtra Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Central Rules, 1971

Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1986
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The Employees” Compensation Act, 1923

The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 and Equal Remuneration Rules, 1976

Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

Apprentices Act, 1961

The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

Maharashtra Minimum Wages Rules, 1963

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
The Motor Transport Workers Act, 1961 (“MTW Act”) Employees Deposit Linked Insurance Scheme, 1976;
The Employees Pension Scheme, 1995;

The Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991;

The Factories Act, 1948;

Maharashtra Factories Rules, 1963,;

Industrial (Development and Regulation) Act, 1951;

The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 and Industrial Dispute (Central) Rules, 1957;

The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946;

Trade Union Act, 1926;

National Environmental Policy, 2006; and

The Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemicals Rules, 1989 (“Hazardous Chemical Rules”).

127



HISTORY AND CERTAIN CORPORATE MATTERS
Brief History of our Company

Our Company was originally incorporated as Abhi Diagnostic Imagings Private Limited on December 05, 2000
under the Companies Act, 1956 vide certificate of incorporation issued by the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra.
Subsequently, the name of the company was changed from “Abhi Diagnostic Imagings Private Limited” to “Nidan
Laboratories And Healthcare Private Limited” under the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to a special resolution
passed by our shareholders at the EGM held on February 26, 2021 and had obtained fresh certificate of
incorporation dated March 24, 2021 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra. Subsequently, our
Company was converted into a public limited company and the name of our Company was changed to ‘Nidan
Laboratories And Healthcare Limited’ and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon conversion to public
limited company was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra, on May 24, 2021. The CIN of
the Company is U33111MH2000PLC129883.

The Promoter of our company is Dr. Nitin Vitharao Thorve.

For further details of our Company’s activities, services and the growth of our Company, please refer to the chapters
titled ‘Business Overview’ and ‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of
Operations’ beginning on page no. 100 and 201 respectively of this Draft Prospectus.

For details on the government approvals, please refer to the chapter titled “Government and Other Approvals” on
page no. 224 of this Draft Prospectus.

Changes in our Registered Office

As on the date of filing this Draft Prospectus, Our Company's Registered Office is situated at Swapnshilpa, Behind
Aarti Apartment, Vartak Road, Virar (West) — 401303, Palagar, Maharashtra, India.

Following are the details of the change in the address of the registered office of our Company since incorporation:

- From Shop No. 3 & 4, Geeta Building, M. B. Estate, S. V. Nagar, Virar (West) — 401 303, Thane, Mumbai City,
Maharashtra, India TO Swapnshilpa, Behind Aarti Apartment, Vartak Road, Virar (West) — 401303, Palagar,
Maharashtra, India w.e.f. April 01, 2016 due to administrative purpose

Major Events and Milestones

Apart from the evolution of our company as mentioned in the business overview chapter beginning on page no. 100
of this Draft Prospectus, some of the other key events in the history of our Company are set forth below:

Year Details

2019 Nidan has received Best Chain of Diagnostic award 2019 By Express Health care by Division of
Express Healthcare

2021 Dr. Nitin Thorve Promoter has done extensive work during Covid 19

Main Objects of our Company

The object clauses of the Memorandum of Association of our Company enable us to undertake our present activities.
The main objects of our Company are:

To carry on the business of Diagnostic Centre, (Such as X-Ray, Sonography, 2 D ECHO, PFT, CST, C.T. Scan,
MRI etc.) Blood Bank, Pathology Laboratories, Dialysis Unit, Intensive Care Unit, Burn & Poisoning Centre and
Poly Clinic.

Amendments to the MoA of our Company since Incorporation

Since incorporation, the following amendments have been made to the MoA of our Company:

Sr. No. Changes In M.O.A Date & Type of Meeting
A Change in Authorized capital
1) Increase in authorized capital from Rs. 1.00 Lakhs to Rs. 5.00 09-03-2001; EGM
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Sr. No. Changes In M.O.A Date & Type of Meeting

Lakhs
Increase in Authorized Capital from Rs. 5.00 Lakhs to Rs. .

2) 15.00 Lakhs. 06-09-2004; EGM
Increase in Authorized Capital from Rs. 15.00 Lakhs to Rs. .

3) 25,00 Lakhs. 01-08-2007; EGM

a) Increase in Authorized Capital from Rs. 25.00 lakhs to Rs. 21-03-2014: EGM
3.00 Crores.

5) Increase in Authorized Capital from Rs. 3.00 Crores to Rs. 08-07-2014: EGM
5.00 Crores.

6) Increase in Authorized Capital from Rs. 5.00 Crores to Rs. 06-06-2016: EGM
10.00 Crores.

7 Increase in Authorized Capital from Rs. 10.00 Crores to Rs. 20-08-2021:EGM
20.00 Crores.

B. Alternation In AcA

Alteration of AoA due to adoption of new set of Article of
1) Association subsequent to the conversion to Limited 29-04-2021; EGM
Company

C. Change in Name of the Company

Alteration of MoA & Ao0A due to Change in Name from Abhi
1) Diagnostic Imagings Private Limited to Nidan Laboratories 26-02-2021; EGM
and Healthcare Private Limited

Alteration of MoA & AO0A due to conversion to limited
company from “Private Limited” to “Limited”

2) 26-03-2021; EGM

Launch of Key Products or services

Except as disclosed in the chapter titled ‘Business Overview’ beginning on page no. 100 of this Draft Prospectus,
Our Company has not changed its products and services since Incorporation.

Subsidiaries and Holding Company

Our Company is not a subsidiary of any company. Further, as on the date of this Draft Prospectus our Company
does not have any subsidiary company.

Our Company has no holding company as on the date of filing of the Draft Prospectus.

Joint Ventures

As on the date of this Draft Prospectus, there are no existing joint ventures entered into by our Company except for
Associate Patient Service Centre Agreement (APSC Agreement) entered on April 11, 2018 between Metropolis
Healthcare Limited and our Company.

Mergers and Acquisitions in the history of Our Company

There has been no merger or acquisition of businesses or undertakings in the history of our Company and we have
not acquired any business/undertakings as on the date of filing of the Draft Prospectus.

Divestment of Business or Undertaking

Our company has not divested any of its business or undertaking in last 5 years from the date of this Draft
Prospectus.

Strategic Partners:
Our Company does not have any strategic partner(s) as on the date of this Draft Prospectus.

Financial Partners:
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Apart from the various arrangements with bankers and financial institutions which our Company undertakes in the
ordinary course of business, our Company does not have any other financial partners as on the date of this Draft
Prospectus.

Shareholders' agreement:

Our Company does not have any subsisting shareholders' agreement as on the date of this Draft Prospectus.

Material Agreements:

Our Company has not entered into any specific or material or special agreements and/or arrangements except that
have been entered into in ordinary course of business as on the date of filing of the Draft Prospectus.

Fraudulent Borrower

Our Company or any of our promoters or directors are not declared as ‘Fraudulent Borrower’ by the lending banks
or financial institution or consortium, in terms of RBI master circular dated July 01, 2016.

Injunctions or Restraining Orders

There are no injunctions/ restraining orders that have been passed against the Company.

Fund raising through equity or debt

For details in relation to our fund-raising activities through equity and debt, please refer to the chapters titled
'Restated Financial Statement' and ‘Capital Structure' beginning on page no. 176 and 58, respectively, of this Draft
Prospectus.

Revaluation of Assets

Our Company has not revalued its assets since its incorporation.

Defaults or Rescheduling of borrowings with financial institutions/banks

There have been no Defaults or Rescheduling of borrowings with financial institutions/banks as on the date of this
Draft Prospectus.

Strikes and lock-outs

Our Company has, since incorporation, not been involved in any labour disputes or disturbances including strikes
and lock- outs. As on the date of this Draft Prospectus, our employees are not unionized.

Time and cost overruns

As on the date of this Draft Prospectus, there have been no time and cost overruns in any of the projects undertaken
by our Company.

Changes in the activities of Our Company having a material effect

Other than as mentioned above in the chapters titled ‘Business Overview’ and ‘History and Certain Corporate
Matters’ beginning on page no. 100 and 128, respectively, of this Draft Prospectus, there has been no change in the
activities being carried out by our Company which may have a material effect on the profits/ loss of our Company,
including discontinuance of the current lines of business, loss of projects or markets and similar factors in the last
five years.
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Other declarations and disclosures

Our Company is not a listed entity and its securities have not been refused listing at any time by any recognized
stock exchange in India or abroad. Further, our Company has not made any Public Issue or Rights Issue (as defined
in the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations) in the past. No action has been taken against our Company by any Stock Exchange
or by SEBI. Our Company is not a sick company within the meaning of the term as defined in the Sick Industrial
Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985. Our Company is not under winding up nor has it received a notice for
striking off its name from the relevant Registrar of Companies.

Number of Shareholder in the Company

As on the date of this Draft Prospectus, the total number of holders of our Equity Shares is 15. For further details of
our shareholding pattern, please see ‘Capital Structure’ on page no. 58 of this Draft Prospectus.
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OUR MANAGEMENT

As per the Articles of Association of our Company, we are required to have not less than 3 (three) Directors and not
more than 15(fifteen) Directors on its Board, subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act. As on date
of filing this Draft Prospectus, we have 6 (Six) Directors on our Board.

Sets forth below are the details regarding our Board as on the date of this Draft Prospectus:

Name, Age, Designation/Occupation, Address,
Din No., Term, Occupation & Nationality

Date Of Appointment

Other Directorships

Mr. Edwin Francis Dabre

S/o. Mr. Francis John Dabre

Age: 53 yrs

Designation: Executive Director

Address: Room No. 104, Gangubhai Apartment,
Umrala Nanbhat Road, Virar (West), Bolinj,
Thane — 401303, Maharashtra, India

DIN: 07705632

Occupation: Self Employed

Nationality: Indian

Appointed as  Executive
Director w.e.f. 13-01-2017

Companies

= Techbuilt Infrastructure and
Developer Private Limited

= Thorve Patil And Abrol
Constructions Private
Limited

= Dr. Nitin V. Thorve Patil
Infras  And  Properties
Private Limited

= San Trica Realtors Private
Limited

LLP
-NIL

Ms. Tejal Anil Jayakar

D/o Mr. Anil Vasantrao Jayakar

Age: 40 yrs

Designation: Executive Director & CFO
Address: A — 603, Siddhivinayak Tower, Y. K.
Nagar N.X, Virar (West), Virar Vasai Palghar -
401303, Maharashtra, India

DIN: 07984686

Occupation: Salaried

Nationality: Indian

Appointed as  Additional
Director w.e.f. 08-08-2018

Regularise Appointment as
Additional Director of the
company at the AGM held on
29-09-2018

Change in designation as
Executive Director w.e.f. 29-
09-2018

Companies

= Techbuilt Infrastructure and
Developer Private Limited

= Thorve  Patil Realtors
Private Limited

= Origin Associates Private
Limited

= San Trica Realtors Private
Limited

= Junnar Sugars Limited

= TECH-ART Infrastructure

Change in designation as Private Limited
Executive Director & CFO | = Virar Townships Private
w.e.f. 02-08-2021 Limited
LLP
- NIL
Mr. Krupesh Deepak Thakur Appointed as an Non- | Companies

S/o Mr. Deepak Bhaurao Thakur
Age: 30 years

Executive Director w.e.f. 26-
03-2021

e Junnar Sugars Limited

Designation: Non-Executive Director LLP

Address: House No. 131/1, Umrale (Bhandarali), - NIL

Bolinj Sopara Road, Near Umadevi Mandir,

Nalasopara (West), Umrale, Thane — 401203,

Mabharashtra, India.

DIN: 07978746

Occupation: Professional

Nationality: Indian

Mr. Nilesh Ghanshyam Bide Appointed as  Additional | Companies

S/o Mr. Ghanshyam Ramchandra Bide Director w.e.f. 02-08-2018 = Origin Associates

Age: 37 years
Designation:
Director

Non-Executive Independent

Regularise as an Non-

Private Limited

LLP
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Name, Age, Designation/Occupation, Address,
Din No., Term, Occupation & Nationality

Date Of Appointment

Other Directorships

Address: Flat No. 63, Building — C3, Elite
Empire Society, Balewadi, Pune — 411 045,
Mabharashtra, India.

DIN: 06366702

Term: 5 years

Occupation: Professional, Architect
Nationality: Indian

Executive Independent
Director at EOGM w.e.f. 20-
08-2021

- NIL

Mr. Abhinay Shashikant Nerurkar
S/o Mr. Shahsikant Krishnaji Nerurkar
Age: 48 years
Designation:
Director
Address: 101, 1% Floor, Shakti Park, Ram Nagar
Road, Vartak Ward, Virar (West), Thane -
401303, Maharashtra, India.

DIN: 09250964

Term: 5 years

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Non-Executive Independent

Appointed as  Additional
Director w.e.f. 02-08-2018

Regularise as an Non-
Executive Independent
Director at EOGM w.e.f. 20-

08-2021

Companies
-NIL

LLP
e Sai Sangam

Proprietary Firm
e Purvi Enterprise

Mr. Karim Hakam Khimani
S/o Mr. Hakam Hussein Khimani
Age: 29 years
Designation:
Director
Address: Khimani Niwas, Jivdani Road, Opp.
Munshi Bunglow, Bhoir Pada, Virar (East),
Thane — 401305, Maharashtra, India.

DIN: 07698480

Term: 5 years

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Non-Executive Independent

Appointed as  Additional
Director w.e.f. 02-08-2018

Regularise as an Non-
Executive Independent
Director at EOGM w.e.f. 20-

08-2021

Companies
= PGTTrading LLC
= PAR Kargo FZCO

LLP
= Pacifica General Trading
LLP

Proprietary Firm
= Quirky Kitchen (Firm)

Note: For further details on their qualification, experience etc., please see their respective biographies under the
heading “Brief Profile of the Directors of our Company” as mentioned on page no. 134 of this Draft Prospectus.

Confirmations as on the date of this Draft Prospectus:

1.

Prospectus.

on date of this Draft Prospectus.

None of the above mentioned Directors are on the RBI List of willful defaulters as on date of this Draft

None of the above mentioned Directors have been and/or are being declared as fugitive economic offenders as

None of the Promoters, persons forming part of our Promoter Group, our Directors or persons in control of our

Company or Our Company are debarred by SEBI from accessing the capital market.

None of the Promoters, Directors or persons in control of our Company, have been or are involved as a

promoter, director or person in control of any other company, which is debarred from accessing the capital
market under any order or directions made by SEBI or any other regulatory authority.

Further, none of our Directors are or were directors of any company whose shares were (a) suspended from

trading by stock exchange(s) during the (5) five years prior to the date of filing the Draft Prospectus or (b)

delisted from the stock exchanges.
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6. There are no arrangements or understandings with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or any other entity,
pursuant to which any of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel were selected as a Director or member of
the senior management.

7. The Directors of our Company have not entered into any service contracts with our Company which provide for
benefits upon termination of employment.

8. No proceedings/ investigations have been initiated by SEBI against any Company, the board of directors of
which also comprises any of the Directors of our Company. No consideration in cash or shares or otherwise has
been paid or agreed to be paid to any of our Directors or to the firms of Companies in which they are interested
by any person either to induce him to become or to help him qualify as a Director, or otherwise for services
rendered by him or by the firm or Company in which he is interested, in connection with the promotion or
formation of our Company.

Relationship between Directors

None of the Directors are related to each other and have any family relationships as per section 2(77) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Brief Profile of the Directors of our Company
Mr. Edwin Francis Dabre — Executive Director

Mr. Edwin Francis Dabre, aged 53 years, is 12" Passed, but having great experience. He is with Company since
20 years and is having experience in Real Estate and Constructions too. He is one of the versatile and experience
Director. He is assisting in sourcing new sites for centre and other legal formalities and disputes. Franchisee
business expansion of Nidan is one of the Major achievement through his vision .He is very instrumental in all
development activities of Nidan Healthcare

Ms. Tejal Anil Jayakar- Executive Director and CFO

Ms. Tejal Anil Jayakar aged 40 years, has worked with major auditors firms for many years and worked as banks
and institutional Auditor. She has experience of almost 15 years in Bank Audit and Accounts and Taxation. Since
her joining in Nidan Group, she has worked from basic accounting till all finance and taxation work. Apart from
finance she has been instrumental in all business development activities also she has held responsibility of Director
in Administration of Nidan Group.

Mr. Krupesh Deepak Thakur- Non-Executive Director

Mr. Krupesh Deepak Thakur aged 30 years, is graduated from Mumbai University and business management
courses from renown institutes . Apart from qualification in management he has got vast experience in management
of Nidan Healthcare from ground levels Infrastructure source and planning is his core competency through which he
is helping franchisee wing of Nidan Healthcrae .

Mr. Nilesh Ghanshyam Bide - Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Nilesh Ghanshyam Bide, aged 37 years, is very dynamic post graduate architect by qualification, having kieen
interest in planning and operation of healthcare centres since 14 Years. He has been instrumental in designing set
ups with cost effective consumable cost as well as enhancing efficiency in staff performance.

Mr. Abhinay Shashikant Nerurkar - Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Abhinay Shashikant Nerurkar, 48 Years, is basically business enthusiast having graduation in commerce and
post graduate. He has his core competence in managing Profit & Loss as well as extensive experience in manpower

training.

Mr. Karim Hakam Khimani - Non-Executive Independent Director
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Mr. Karim Hakam Khimani, aged 29 years, Commerce Graduate, and completed masters from Mumbai’s
Renowned institution. He is having vast experience in international business . His experience helps to import
equipment’s also he has major experience in Digital Marketing which is very vital in present growth of Nidan.

Borrowing Powers of the Board

Our Avrticles of Association, subject to applicable law, authorize our Board to raise or borrow money or secure the
payment of any sum or sums of money for the purposes of our Company.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on September 29, 2021, our shareholders in their Annual General Meeting
authorized our Board to borrow from time to time such sums of money as may be required under Section 180(1)(c)
of the Companies Act, 2013, provided that such amount shall not exceed Rs. 100.00 Crores.

For further details of the provisions of our Articles of Association regarding borrowing powers, please refer to the
section titled 'Main Provisions of the Articles of Association' beginning on page no. 277 of this Draft Prospectus.

Terms and conditions of employment of our Executive Director and CEO
Mr. Edwin Francis Dabre— Executive Director

Mr. Edwin Francis Dabre, was designated as the Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. 13-01-2017vide Board
of Directors resolution dated 13-01-2017.

Remuneration Gross Salary of Rs. 4.20 Lakhs per annual

Other terms and conditions | Executive Director of the Company will not be entitled to any Sitting Fees for
attending meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees thereof.

Remuneration in the event | In case of inadequacy of profits or loss in any financial year, the salary (and other
of loss or inadequacy of | allowances, if any as per Company’s Policy) will be paid to CEO & Executive
profits Director in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Section Il of PART
Il of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or such other limits as may be
prescribed by the Board of Directors.

Ms. Tejal Anil Jayakar — Executive Director & CFO

Ms. Tejal Anil Jayakar, was appointed as Additional Director vide Board Resolution 08-08-2018. She is also
designated as the Executive Director of the Company Further, she was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company vide Ordinary Resolution dated 29-09-2018. In addition to the above, she was also appointed as CFO of
the Company w.e.f. 02-08-2021vide Board of Directors resolution dated 02-08-2021.

Remuneration Gross Salary of Rs. 4.80 Lakhs per annual

Other terms and conditions CEO & Executive Director of the Company will not be entitled
to any Sitting Fees for attending meetings of the Board of
Directors or Committees thereof.

Remuneration in the event of loss or | In case of inadequacy of profits or loss in any financial year,
inadequacy of profits the salary (and other allowances, if any as per Company’s
Policy) will be paid to CEO & Executive Director in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Section Il of
PART Il of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or such
other limits as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors.

Remuneration to Executive Directors

Details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors in Financial Year 2020-2021 is as under:

Name of the Director Amount (Rs.)
Mr. Edwin Francis Dabre 420,000
Ms. Tejal Anil Jayakar 480,000
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Sitting Fees paid to our Independent and Non-Executive Directors

Our Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors are entitled to sitting fees for attending meetings of the
Board, or of any committee of the Board and as may be decided by our Board in accordance with the provisions of
the Articles of Association, the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws and regulations. We have not paid
any sitting fees to any of our Directors in the FY 2021and as on June 30, 2021.

Shareholding of Directors in our Company

Our Avrticles of Association do not require our Directors to hold qualification shares.

As on date of filing of this Draft Prospectus, except the following, none of our Directors hold any Equity Shares of
our Company:

Sr No. of Shares % of pre-issue
‘ Name of Director Designation held in our paid-up Equity
No. -
Company Share Capital
1. Mr. Edwin Francis Dabre Executive Director 100 0.00
2. Ms. Tejal Anil Jayakar Executive Director 100 0.00
3. Mr. Krupesh Deepak Thakur Non-Executive Director 100 0.00
. . Non-Executive
4, Mr. Nilesh Ghanshyam Bide Independent Director - -
. . Non-Executive
5 Mr. Abhinay Shashikant Nerurkar Independent Director - -
6 | Mr. Karim Hakam Khimani Non-Executive - -
Independent Director
TOTAL 300 0.00

Interest of Directors

All of our Directors, Non-Executive Independent Director may be deemed to be interested to the extent of fees
payable to them (if any) for attending meetings of the Board or a committee thereof as well as to the extent of
remuneration payable to him for his services as Executive Director of our Company and reimbursement of expenses
as well as to the extent of commission and other remuneration, if any, payable to them under our Articles of
Association. Some of the Directors may be deemed to be interested to the extent of consideration received/ paid or
any loans or advances provided to anybody corporate including companies and firms, and trusts, in which they are
interested as directors, members, partners or trustees.

All our Directors, Non-Executive Independent Director may also be deemed to be interested to the extent of equity
shares, if any, already held by them or their relatives in our Company, or that may be subscribed for and allotted to
our Non-Promoter Directors, out of the Issue and also to the extent of any dividend payable to them and other
distribution in respect of the said equity shares.

The Directors, Non-Executive Independent Director may also be regarded as interested in the equity shares, if any,
held or that may be subscribed by and allocated to the companies, firms and trusts, if any, in which they are
interested as directors, members, partners, and/ or trustees.

Our Directors, Non-Executive Independent Director may also be regarded interested to the extent of dividend
payable to them and other distribution in respect of the equity shares, if any, held by them or by the
companies/firms/ventures promoted by them or that may be subscribed by or allotted to them and the companies,
firms, in which they are interested as directors, members, partners and promoters, pursuant to the Issue.

All our Directors, Non-Executive Independent Director may be deemed to be interested in the contracts, agreements/
arrangements entered into or to be entered into by the Company with either the Director himself or other company in
which they hold directorship or any partnership firm in which they are partners, as declared in their respective
declarations.

Interest in promotion of Our Company
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Except as stated in this chapter titled “Our Management” and the chapter titled “Financial Statement- Annexure
32- Related Party Transactions” beginning on page nos. 132 and 199 of this Draft Prospectus respectively and to
the extent to remuneration received/ to be received by our Directors, none of our Directors have any interest in the
promotion of our Company.

Interest in the property of Our Company

Save and except as stated otherwise in “Our Properties” within the chapter titled “Our Business” on page no. 100
and in ‘Annexure 32: Statement of Related Parties’ Transactions’ in the chapter titled ‘Restated Financial
Statement’ beginning on page no. 176 of this Draft Prospectus:

- Our Directors have no interest in any property acquired or proposed to be acquired by our Company in the
preceding two years from the date of this Draft Prospectus;

- Our Directors do not have any interest in any transaction regarding the acquisition of land, construction of
buildings and supply of machinery, etc. with respect to our Company as on the date of this Draft Prospectus;

- Our Directors have not entered into any contract, agreement or arrangements in relation to acquisition of property,
since incorporation in which the Directors are interested directly or indirectly and no payments have been made to
them in respect of these contracts, agreements or arrangements or are proposed to be made to them as on the date
of this Draft Prospectus.

Interest in the business of Our Company

Save and except as stated otherwise in ‘Annexure 32: Statement of Related Parties’ Transactions’ in the chapter
titled ‘Restated Financial Statement’ beginning on page no. 199 of this Draft Prospectus:

- Our Directors do not have any other interests in our Company and/or our business as on the date of this Draft
Prospectus except to the extent of their shareholding in our Company and/ or their relative shareholding in our
Company and/ or any dividends paid/ payable to them and/ or their relatives and/or any other distributions in
respect of the Equity Shares of our Company;

- Our Directors are not interested in the appointment of Underwriters, Market Markers, Registrar and Bankers to the
Issue or any such intermediaries registered with SEBI as required to be appointed for the process of listing;

- There is no arrangement or understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others, pursuant to
which any of the directors was selected as a director or member of senior management;

- Our company has not entered into any contract, agreements or arrangements during the preceding two years from
the date of this Draft Prospectus in which the Directors are directly or indirectly interested and no payments have
been made to them in respect of the contracts, agreements or arrangements which are proposed to be made with
them including the properties purchased by our Company.

Interest as a creditor of Our Company

Except as stated in the ‘Annexure 32: Statement of Related Parties’ Transactions’ on 199 and chapter titled
“Statement of Financial Indebtness” on page no. 207 in the chapter titled ‘RestatedFinancial Statement’
beginning on page no. 149 of this Draft Prospectus:

- Our Company has not availed any loans from our Directors of our Company as on the date of this Draft
Prospectus;
- None of our sundry debtors or beneficiaries of loans and advances are related to our Directors.

Interest as Director of our Company

Except as stated in the chapter titled ‘Our Management, ‘Capital Structure’ and ‘Annexure 32: Statement of
Related Parties’ Transactions’ beginning on page no. 132, 58 and 199 of this Draft Prospectus, our Directors, may
be deemed to be interested to the extent of fees, if any, payable to them for attending meetings of our Board or
Committees thereof as well as to the extent of remuneration and/or reimbursement of expenses payable to them for
services rendered to us in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act and in terms of agreements entered
into with our Company, if any and in terms of our AoA.

Interest of Key Managerial Personnel
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None of the key managerial personnel has any interest in our Company other than to the extent of the remuneration
or benefits to which they are entitled to as per their terms of appointment, reimbursement of expenses incurred by
them during the ordinary course of business.

Our key managerial personnel may also be deemed to be interested to the extent of Equity Shares that may be
subscribed for and allotted to them, pursuant to this Issue. Such key managerial personnel may also be deemed to be
interested to the extent of any dividend payable to them and other distributions in respect of the said Equity Shares.
None of our key managerial personnel has been paid any consideration of any nature, other than their remuneration
except as stated in the chapter titled ‘Our Management, ‘Capital Structure’ and ’‘Annexure 32: Statement of
Related Parties’ Transactions’ beginning on page no. 132, 58 and 199 of this Draft Prospectus.

Details of Service Contracts

Except as stated in the ‘Annexure 32: Statement of Related Parties’ Transactions’ on page no. 199 and in the
Chapter titled “Statement of Financial Indebtness” of our Company on page no. 207 of this Draft Prospectus, there
is no service contracts entered into with any Directors for payments of any benefits or amount upon termination of
employment.

Bonus or Profit Sharing Plan for the Directors

There is no bonus or profit sharing plan for the Directors of our Company.

Contingent and Deferred Compensation payable to Directors

No Director has received or is entitled to any contingent or deferred compensation as on the date of filing this Draft
Prospectus. Further, there is no contingent or deferred compensation accrued for the year, which is payable to our
Directors as on the date of filing this Draft Prospectus.

Changes in the Board for the last three years

Except as mentioned below, there has been no change in the Board of Directors since the inception::

Sr. : . . Date Of Date Of

No. Name of Director Designation Appointment Cessation Remarks

1 Dr. Nitin Vitharao Director 05-12-2000 ) Prqmotgr Dlrgctor
Thorve since inception

2 Mrs. Roshan Nitin Director 05-12-2000 ) Prqmotgr Dlrgctor
Thorve since inception

3. Dr. Suresh Ganpat Director 18-12-2000 - Fresh Appointment

Sonawane
4, Dr. Shag(;srr;tRamesh Director 18-12-2000 - Fresh Appointment
Mr. Jagannath . .

5. Raghunath Pathare Director 18-12-2000 - Fresh Appointment

6. Mr. Edwin Francis Dabre | Executive Director | 13-01-2017 - Fresh Appointment

7. Ms. Tejal Anil Jayakar Adqmonal 08-08-2018 - Fresh Appointment

Director
8. Dr. Shag(;srr;tRamesh Director - 23-08-2016 Due to pre-occupation
9. Dr. Suresh Ganpat Director - 21-08-2018 Due to pre-occupation
Sonawane
10 | Ms. Tejal Anil Jayakar Director 29-09-2018 : Regularizing
Appointment

11. Ms. Tejal Anil Jayakar | Executive Director | 29-09-2018 - Change in Designation

12. Dr. Nitin Vitharao Director - 04-04-2019 | Disqualification u/s 164
Thorve
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Sr. . . . Date Of Date Of
No. Name of Director Designation Appointment ST Remarks
13. Mrs. Roshan Nitin Director - 04-04-2019 Disqualification u/s 164
Thorve
Mr. Jagannath . . S
14 Raghunath Pathare Director - 04-04-2019 | Disqualification u/s 164
Mr. Krupesh Deepak Non-Executive .
15. Thakur Director 26-03-2021 - Fresh Appointment
16 Mr. Nllesh_Ghanshyam AdFiItIOI’]Eﬂ 02-08-2021 - Fresh Appointment
Bide Director
17 Mr. Abhinay Shashikant AdFiItIOI’]Eﬂ 02-08-2021 i Fresh Appointment
Nerurkar Director
18 Mr. Kar_lm H_akam AdFiItIOI’]Eﬂ 02-08-2021 - Fresh Appointment
Khimani Director
. Non-Executive Regularising
19 Mr. N|Iesh.Ghanshyam Independent 20-08-2021 - Appointment
Bide .
Director
. . Non-Executive Regularising
po | Mr.Abhinay Shashikant | e nendent 20-08-2021 i Appointment
Nerurkar .
Director
. Non-Executive Regularizing
21 Mr. Karim Ha kam Independent 20-08-2021 - Appointment
Khimani .
Director

Corporate Governance

Applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to corporate governance and the provisions of the
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, will be applicable to our Company upon the listing
of the Equity Shares with the Stock Exchanges in India.

Our Company is in compliance with the corporate governance code in accordance with Companies Act, 2013, SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI Regulations, as amended from time to time, particularly those relating to
composition of Board of Directors and constitution of committees thereof. The corporate governance framework is
based on an effective independent Board, separation of the Board’s supervisory role from the executive management
team and constitution of the Board Committees, as required under law.

Our Board has been constituted in compliance with the Companies Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. The
Board functions either as a full board, or through various committees constituted to oversee specific operational
areas.

Composition of Board of Directors

Currently, the Board of Directors of our Company has an optimum combination of executive and non-executive
Directors as envisaged in accordance with Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. Our Board
has Six Directors, comprising of Two Executive Directors, and One Non-Executive-Non Independent Director and
Three Independent Directors.

Our Company has constituted the following Committees in compliance with the corporate governance norms:

1) Audit Committee;
2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee; and
3) Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was constituted vide Board resolution dated September 7, 2021, pursuant to section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013. As on the date of this Draft Prospectus the Audit Committee consists of the following
Directors:
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Name of the Director Designation in the Committee Nature of Directorship
Mr. Abhinay Shashikant Nerurkar Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Nilesh Ghanshyam Bide Member Non-Executive Independent Director
Ms. Tejal Anil Jayakar Member Executive Director

Our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company, Mr. Akshay Joshi would act as the secretary of
the Audit Committee.

Set forth below are the scope, functions and the terms of reference of our Audit Committee, in accordance with
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

1) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure
that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

2) Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of
the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees.

3) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

4) Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for approval,
with particular reference to:
=  Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s

report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013
= Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same
= Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management
= Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings
= Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements
= Disclosure of any related party transactions
= Qualifications in the draft audit report.

5) Reviewing, with the management, the half yearly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval

6) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in
the offer document//notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in
this matter.

7) Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

8) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

9) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

10) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

11) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

12) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal
control systems.

13) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit.

14) Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on.

15) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the board.

16) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

17) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

18) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.

19) Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance
function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience & background, etc. of the
candidate.

20) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

Explanation (i): The term "related party transactions™ shall have the same meaning as contained in the Accounting
Standard 18, Related Party Transactions, issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Explanation (ii): If the Issuer has set up an audit committee pursuant to provision of the Companies Act, the said
audit committee shall have such additional functions / features as is contained in this clause.

The Audit Committee enjoys following powers:

a) To investigate any activity within its terms of reference

b) To seek information from any employee

c) To obtain outside legal or other professional advice

d) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise if it considers necessary

e) The audit committee may invite such of the executives, as it considers appropriate (and particularly the head of
the finance function) to be present at the meetings of the committee, but on occasions it may also meet without
the presence of any executives of the Issuer. The finance director, head of internal audit and a representative of
the statutory auditor may be present as invitees for the meetings of the audit committee.

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

a) Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

b) Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by
management;

c) Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

d) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

e) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by
the Audit Committee.

The recommendations of the Audit Committee on any matter relating to financial management, including the audit
report, are binding on the Board. If the Board is not in agreement with the recommendations of the Committee,
reasons for disagreement shall have to be incorporated in the minutes of the Board Meeting and the same has to be
communicated to the shareholders. The Chairman of the committee has to attend the Annual General Meetings of
the Company to provide clarifications on matters relating to the audit.

Quorum and Meetings

The audit committee shall meet at least four times in a year and not more than four months shall elapse between two
meetings. The quorum shall be either two members or one third of the members of the audit committee whichever is
greater, but there shall be a minimum of two independent members present. Since the formation of the committee,
no Audit Committee meetings have taken place.

Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee

The Shareholders and Investors Grievance Committee have been formed by the Board of Directors pursuant to
section 178 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 at the meeting held on September 07, 2021.

As on the date of this Draft Prospectus the Shareholders and Investors Grievance Committee consists of the
following:

Name of the Director Designation in the Committee Nature of Directorship
Mr. Abhinay Shashikant Nerurkar Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Karim Hakam Khimani Member Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Nilesh Ghanshyam Bide Member Non-Executive Independent Director

Our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company, Mr. Akshay Joshi would act as the secretary of
the Shareholders/ Investors Grievance Committee.

This Committee will address all grievances of Shareholders and Investors in compliance of the provisions of section
178 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and its terms of reference include the following:

1. Redressing of shareholders and investor complaints such as non-receipt of declared dividend, annual report,
transfer of Equity Shares;

2. Issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates on split/consolidation/renewal, etc.;

3. Allotment of shares, monitoring and approving transfers, transmissions, dematerialization, re-materialization,
splitting and consolidation of Equity Shares and other securities issued by our Company, including review of
cases for refusal of transfer/ transmission of shares and debentures;
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Reference to statutory and regulatory authorities regarding investor grievances;

To otherwise ensure proper and timely attendance and redressal of investor queries and grievances;

And to do all such acts, things or deeds as may be necessary or incidental to the exercise of the above powers;
and

7. Carrying out any other function contained in the SEBI (LODR) Regulations as and when amended from time to
time.

IS

Quorum and Meetings

The quorum necessary for a meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall be two members or one third
of the members, whichever is greater. The Stakeholder/ Investor Relationship Committee shall meet at least at least
four times a year with maximum interval of four months between two meetings and shall report to the Board on a
quarterly basis regarding the status of redressal of complaints received from the shareholders of the Company. Since
the formation of the committee, no Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetings have taken place.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The re-constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted at a meeting of the Board of
Directors pursuant to section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 held on September 07, 2021.

As on the date of this Draft Prospectus the Remuneration Committee consists of the following Directors:

Name of the Director DESELE 11 e Nature of Directorship
Committee
Mr. Nilesh Ghanshyam Bide Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Abhinay Shashikant Nerurkar Member Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Karim Hakam Khimani Member Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Krupesh Thakur Member Non-Executive Director

Our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company, Mr. Akshay Joshi would act as the secretary of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The scope of Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall include but shall not be restricted to the following:

1) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees;

2) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board,;

3) Devising a policy on Board diversity;

4) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. The
company shall disclose the remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria in its Annual Report;

5) To recommend to the Board, the remuneration packages i.e. salary, benefits, bonuses, perquisites, commission,
incentives, stock options, pension, retirement benefits, details of fixed component and performance linked
incentives along with the performance criteria, service contracts, notice period, severance fees etc. of the
executive directors;

6) To implement, supervise and administer any share or stock option scheme of our Company; and

7) To attend to any other responsibility as may be entrusted by the Board within the terms of reference.

Quorum and Meetings

The quorum necessary for a meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be two members or one
third of the members, whichever is greater. Meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration/Compensation Committee
shall be called by at least seven day’s notice in advance.

Policy on Disclosures and Internal Procedure for Prevention of Insider Trading

Our Company undertakes to comply with the provisions of Regulation 9 of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, after listing of our Company's equity shares on the Stock
Exchange in India. Further, Board of Directors have approved and adopted the policy on insidertrading in view of
the proposed public issue.
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Our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Mr. Akshay Joshi is responsible for setting forth policies,
procedures, monitoring and adhering to the rules for the prevention of price sensitive information and in the
implementation of the code of conduct under the overall supervision of the Board.

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY

Fromoter

Dr. Nitin Torve

l |

| Diectors |

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Our Company is managed by our Board of Directors, assisted by qualified professionals, who are permanent
employees of our Company. Below are the details of the Key Managerial Personnel of our Company:

Sr Age Exp. | Date of | Compensation Previous|
No. Name Designation | In Qual. In | Appoin | for Last Fiscal Emblo e():i/
' Yrs. Yrs. | tment | (Rs. In Lakhs) ploy

Mrs.  Roshan 02-08-
L | Nitin Thorve CEO 51 LLB 2L | 2021 3.00 )
. . Executive
2. | s TeRLANL Directorg, | 40 | BCOMCA-| gg | 008 4.80 .
y CFO
Company
Mr.  Akshay | SeCrety B.Com, LLB, 02-08- Pentokey
3| Arun Joshi and 33 ACS 8 2021 i Organy
Compliance (India) Ltd
officer
Notes:

« All of our Key Managerial Personnel mentioned above are on the payrolls of our Company as permanent
employees.
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» There is no agreement or understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others pursuant to
which any of the above mentioned personnel was selected as a director or member of senior management.

Relationship between Key Managerial Personnel, Promoters and Directors

Except for Dr. Nitin Vitharao Thorve and Mrs. Roshan Nitin Thorve being spouse to each other; and none of the
other Key Managerial Personnel are related to each other or Directors and have any other family relationships as per
section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Arrangement / Understanding with Major Shareholders / Customers / Suppliers

As on the date of this Draft Prospectus, Our Company has no arrangement or understanding with major
shareholders, customers, suppliers or others pursuant to which any of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel

was selected as a Director or member of senior management.

Shareholding of the Key Managerial Personnel other than the Directors

Sr No. of Shares | 9% of pre-issue
N ‘ Name of the KMP"s Designation held in our paid-up Equity
0. .
Company Share Capital
1. | Ms. Tejal Anil Jayakar Executive Director & CFO 100 0.00
2. | Mrs. Roshan Nitin Thorve CEO 957,200 9.67
3 Mr. Akshay Arun Joshi Company_ Secretar_y and - -
Compliance officer
Total 9,57,300 9.67

Changes in Key Managerial Personnel during the last three years

Following have been the changes in the Key Managerial Personnel during the last three years:

Name Designation Date Of Appointment Date Of Cessation Remarks

Dr. Nitin Vitharao Promoter 1o ' Appointment due to
Thorve Director 05-12-2000 04-04-2019 disqualified u/s 164(2)
Mrs. Roshan Nitin Promoter 1o v Appointment due to
Thorve Director 05-12-2000 04-04-2019 disqualified u/s 164(2)
Mr. Edwin Francis Executive .
Dabre Director 13-01-2017 - Fresh Appointment
Ms. Tejal Anil [Ei);zgg:rvg 29-09-2018 & i Change in Designation
Jayakar CFO 02-08-2021 & Fresh Appointment
Mrs. Roshan Nitin CEO 02-08-2021 i Fresh Appointment
Thorve

CS &
Mr. Akshay - Arun Compliance 02-08-2021 Fresh Appointment
Joshi Officer

Interest of Key Managerial Personnel

Except as disclosed in “Interest of Directors” on page no. 136 in respect of our Directors, none of our other key
managerial personnel have any interest in our Company other than to the extent of the remuneration or benefits to
which they are entitled to as per their terms of appointment, reimbursement of expenses incurred by them during the
ordinary course of business.

Our key managerial personnel may also be deemed to be interested to the extent of Equity Shares that may be
subscribed for and allotted to them, pursuant to this Issue. Such key managerial personnel may also be deemed to be
interested to the extent of any dividend payable to them and other distributions in respect of the said Equity Shares.

None of our key managerial personnel has been paid any consideration of any nature, other than their remuneration.
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Bonus and/ or Profit Sharing Plan for the Key Managerial Personnel

As on the date of this Draft Prospectus our Company does not have any performance linked bonus or profit-sharing
plan with any of our key managerial personnel and any bonus and/ or profit sharing plan for the Key Managerial
Personnel, except the normal bonus payment as a part of remuneration.

Contingent and Deferred Compensation payable to Key Managerial Personnel
None of our Key Managerial Personnel has received or is entitled to any contingent or deferred compensation.
Scheme of Employee Stock Options or Employee Stock Purchase (ESOP/ESPS SCHEME)

Our Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme or Employee Stock Purchase Scheme or any other
similar scheme giving options in our Equity Shares to our employees.

Loans to Key Managerial Personnel

Except as disclosed in chapter ‘Financial Statement’ beginning on page no. 176, there are no loans outstanding
against the Key Managerial Personnel as on the date of this Draft Prospectus.

Payment of Benefits to our Key Managerial Personnel (Non- Salary Related)

Except for the payment of salaries, perquisites and reimbursement of expenses incurred in the ordinary course of
business and as disclosed in ‘Annexure 32: Statement of Related Parties’ Transactions’ under the chapter
‘Financial Statement’ beginning on page no. 199 we do not have any performance linked bonus or profit sharing
plan with any of our Key Managerial Personnel. Further, we have not paid/ given any other benefit to the officers of
our Company, within the two preceding years nor do we intend to make such payment/ give such benefit to any
officer as on the date of this Draft Prospectus.

Service Contracts with Key Managerial Personnel

As on the date of this Draft Prospectus, our Company has not entered into any service contracts with the Key
Managerial Personnel’s.
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OUR PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP

The Promoter of our Company is Dr. Nithin Vitthalrao Thorave. As on date of this Draft Prospectus, our Promoter
together hold 89,41,500 Equity Shares having face value of Rs. 10 per share and representing 90.32% of the pre-
issue Paid up Capital of our Company.

THE BRIEF PROFILE OF OUR INDIVIDUAL PROMOTER IS AS FOLLOWS:

DR. NITHIN VITTHALRAO THORAVE

Dr. NitinVithalraoThorve, aged 51 years, is the Promoter of our Company. He is a
BHMS, Post Graduate course in modern pharmacology from MUHS and presently
perusing a healthcare management studies from Indian institute of management (11M)
Calcutta. He has got Executive Healthcare Management degree from Harvard Business
School USA. Started his medical career with small Clinic as General Physician and
expanded in healthcare from small diagnostic centre in Virar to various diagnostics
hubs in India. He also has Vast Experience in Real Estate as well as Hospitality.

For details on his shareholding in Our Company, please refer chapter titled “Capital
Structure” beginning on page no. 58 of this Draft Prospectus.

For details of his other ventures, please refer “Our Group Entities” on page no. 154 of
this Draft Prospectus.

Date of Birth 21-05-1970
Pan ACBPT2601D
Adhaar Card No. 6165 7432 6529
Passport Number Z - 2984213
Driving License No. MHO09 19900006714
Nationality Indian
Swapnashilp Bunglow, Vartak Road, Behind Arti
Address Apartment, Virar (West), Vasai Virar Municipal

Corporation, Thane — 401 303, Maharashtra, India

- San Trica Realtors Private Limited

- Techbuilt Infrastructure and Developers Private Limited

- Tech Art Infrastructure Private Limited

- Thorve Patil And Abrol Constructions Private Limited

- Dr. Nitin V. Thorve Patil Infras And Properties Private
Limited

- Origin Associates Private Limited

- Junnar Sugars Limited

- Virar Townships Private Limited

- Thorve Patil Realtors Private Limited

- Arnala Beach Resort

- Dr. Nitin Thorve (Proprietorship Firm)

Other Ventures

For details of the build-up of our Promoter’ shareholding in our Company, please see “Capital Structure —
Shareholding of our Promoter ” beginning on page no 58 of this Draft Prospectus.

Other Declaration and Confirmations

Our Company hereby confirms that the personal details of our Individual Promoter viz., Permanent Account
Number, Passport Number and Bank Account Number will be submitted to the Stock Exchange at the time of
filing this Draft Prospectus with them.

Our Promoter, members of our Promoter Group, Promoter Group Entities/ Companies confirm that:

- They have not been prohibited from accessing or operating in the capital markets or restrained from buying,
selling or dealing in securities under any order or direction passed for any reasons by the SEBI or any other
authority or refused listing of any of the securities issued by any such entity by any stock exchange in India or

abroad;
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- They have not been declared as a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of Fugitive Economic Offenders
Act, 2018;

- Have not declared as ‘Fraudulent Borrower’ by the lending banks or financial institution or consortium, in terms
of RBI master circular dated July 01, 2016;

- They are not a Promoter, directors or person in control of any other company which is debarred from accessing
the capital market under any order or directions made by the SEBI;

- They have not been identified as a willful defaulter by RBI or any other Government authority; and

- There are no violations of securities laws committed by them in the past or any such proceedings are pending
against the them.

Relationship of Promoter with our Directors

Dr. Nithin Vitthalrao Thorave does not hold directorship in any Company since his disqualification under Section
164 (2) of Companies Act, 2013 as on the date of filing the Draft Prospectus except as mentioned below. For details
regarding his directorship and change in the board for the last three years in our Company, please refer to the chapter
titled “Our Management” on page 132 of this Draft Prospectus.

Except for Dr. Nithin Vitthalrao Thorave and Mrs. Roshan Nitin Thorve being spouse to each other, Our Company‘s
Directors and/ KMP are neither related to each other nor do they have any other family relationships as per section
2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Change in the Management and control of our Company

Our Promoter is the original Promoter of our Company and there has been no change in the Promoter, management
or control of our Company in the five years immediately preceding the date of this Draft Prospectus.

Details of Companies / Firms from which our Promoter have disassociated

Except as mentioned below, our Promoter has not disassociated himself from any firms or companies in the last
three (3) years preceding this Draft Prospectus.

San Trica Realtors Private Limited. Disqualified u/s 164(2)
Techbuilt Infrastructure and Developers Private Limited Disqualified u/s 164(2)
Tech Art Infrastructure Private Limited Disqualified u/s 164(2)
Thorve Patil And Abrol Constructions Private Limited Disqualified u/s 164(2)
Dr. Nitin V. Thorve Patil Infras And Properties Private Limited Disqualified u/s 164(2)
Origin Associates Private Limited Disqualified u/s 164(2)
Junnar Sugars Limited Disqualified u/s 164(2)
Virar Townships Private Limited Disqualified u/s 164(2)
Thorve Patil Realtors Private Limited Disqualified u/s 164(2)
Pune Built Art Infrastructure Private Limited Striked off.

KET Food courts & Hotels Pvt. Ltd. Striked off.

Sanjgaon Food Courts and Hotels Pvt. Ltd. Dormant U/s 455
Virar Rugnaseva Private Limited Striked off.

Pune Agro Hotels and Resorts Private Limited Striked off.

Ann Martins Inn ( India ) Private Limited Dormant U/s 455
Nidan HeartCare Private Limited Striked off.

Nidan Hospital and Research Limited Striked off.

Thorve Patil Builders and Developers Private Limited Dormant U/s 455

Common Pursuits of Our Promoter

As on the date of this Draft Prospectus, our Promoter is also a Promoter/ Director/ Partner/ Proprietor of our Group
Companies/ Entities as listed in the section “Our Group Companies” which are not engage in the similar business of
our Company and have objects similar to that of our Company’s business.
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Further, as on the date of filing this Draft Prospectus, we do not have any non-compete agreement/arrangement with
any of our Group Entities, currently. Such a conflict of interest may have adverse effect on our business and growth.
We shall adopt the necessary procedures and practices as permitted by law to address any conflict situations, as and
when they may arise.

For details of our members forming a part of our Promoter Group and Prompter Group Company/entities, please
refer to Section titled “Our Promoter Group and Group Companies / Entities” on page no. 154 and 199 and
‘Annexure 32: Statement of Related Parties’ Transactions’ in the chapter titled ‘Restated Financial Statement’
beginning on page no. 176 of this Draft Prospectus.

Interest of Promoter

Interest in promotion of Our Company

Our Promoter holds 89,41,500 Equity Shares aggregating to 90.32% of pre-issue Equity Share Capital in our
Company.

Our Promoter is interested to the extent that he has promoted our Company and to the extent of his shareholding in
our Company & dividend payable thereon, if any and the shareholding of their relatives in our Company and the
dividend declared and due, if any, and employment related benefits paid by our Company. For details regarding
shareholding of our Promoter in our Company, please refer to the chapters titled “Capital Structure” and “Our
Management” on page no. 58 and 132, respectively of this Draft Prospectus.

Our Promoter may be interested to the extent of unsecured loans granted to our Company, if any. Further, our
Promoter may also be interested to the extent of loans, if any, taken by them or their relatives or taken by the
companies/ firms in which they are interested as Directors/Members/Partners. Further, they may be deemed to be
interested to the extent of transactions carried on / payment made by our Company to the proprietorship firm /
partnership firm / companies in which they may act as a Proprietor/ Partner / Promoter and/or Directors. For further
details, please refer to ‘Annexure 32: Statement of Related Parties’ Transactions’ in the chapter titled ‘Restated
Financial Statement’ beginning on page no. 199 of this Draft Prospectus.

Our Promoter is also Promoter and Shareholders of certain Promoter Group Entities/ Companies and may be
deemed to be interested to the extent of the payments made by our Company, if any, to these Promoter Group
Companies and to the extent of their shareholding in our Group Companies with which our company transacts
during the course of its operations. For further details please see “Our Group Companies” beginning on page no.
154 of this Draft Prospectus.

Our Promoter is not the Director of our Company and may be deemed to be interested to the extent of remuneration
and/ or reimbursement of expenses payable to them for services rendered to us in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act and in terms of the agreements entered into with our Company, if any and AoA of our Company.
For details refer to the chapter titled “Our Management”, “Financial Statements” and “Capital Structure”
beginning on page nos. 132, 176 and 58 respectively of this Draft Prospectus.

Experience of our Promoter in the business of our Company

For details in relation to experience of our Promoter in the business of our Company, see Chapter “Our Promoter”
and “Our Management” beginning on page no. 146 and 154 of this Draft Prospectus.

Interest in the property of Our Company

Except as disclosed in the chapters titled “Our Business” beginning on page no. 100 and ‘Annexure 32: Statement
of Related Parties’ Transactions’ in the chapter titled ‘Restated Financial Statement’ beginning on page no. 176 of
this Draft Prospectus, our Promoter does not have any interest in any property acquired three (3) years prior to the
date of this Draft Prospectus.

Except as disclosed in the chapters titled “Our Business” beginning on page no. 100 and ‘Annexure 32: Statement
of Related Parties’ Transactions’ in the chapter titled ‘Restated Financial Statement’ beginning on page no. 176 of
this Draft Prospectus, our Promoter is currently not interested in various transactions with our Company involving
acquisition of land, construction of building or supply of any machinery.
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Our Promoter may be interested in transactions of our Promoter Group Companies/ Entities to the extent of their
being the Promoter/ Directors/ Shareholders wherein the Promoter Group Companies/ Entities are involved in
acquisition of land, construction of building or supply of any machinery. For further details please see “Our Group
Companies” beginning on page no. 154 of this Draft Prospectus.

One of our Promoter- Dr. Nithin Vitthalrao Thorave may also be interested in rent being paid by our Company to
extent of his ownership in the registered office which is being occupied by our Company. For further details please
see “Our Business” and “Financial Statements” beginning on page nos. 100 and 176 of this Draft Prospectus.

Interest in transactions involving acquisition of land

As on the date of this Draft Prospectus, except as disclosed in ‘Annexure 32: Statement of Related Parties’
Transactions’ in the chapter titled ‘Restated Financial Statement’ beginning on page no. 176 of this Draft
Prospectus, our Promoter does not have any interested in any property or in any transaction involving acquisition of
land, construction of building or supply of any machinery by our Company. However, Our Promoter may be
interested in transactions of our Promoter Group Companies/ Entities to the extent of their being the Promoter/
Directors/ Shareholders wherein the Promoter Group Companies/ Entities are involved in acquisition of land,
construction of building or supply of any machinery. For further details please see “Our Group Companies”
beginning on page no. 154 of this Draft Prospectus.

Interest as a creditor of Our Company

Except as stated in the ‘Annexure 32: Statement of Related Parties’ Transactions’ in the chapter titled ‘Restated
Financial Statement’ beginning on page no. 176 of this Draft Prospectus, our Company has not availed any loans
from the Promoter of our Company as on the date of this Draft Prospectus.

Interest as Director of our Company

Our Promoter- Dr. Nithin Vitthalrao Thorave does not hold directorship in the Company as on the date of filing the
Draft Prospectus. For details regarding on directorship and change in the board for the last three years in our
Company, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Management” on page 132 of this Draft Prospectus.

Except as stated in ‘Annexure 32: Statement of Related Parties’ Transactions’ in the chapter titled ‘Restated
Financial Statement’ beginning on page no. 176 of this Draft Prospectus and shareholding of our Promoter in our
Company in the chapter titled “Capital Structure” beginning on page no. 58 of this Draft Prospectus, our Promoter
do not have any other interest in our company.

Interest as members of our Company

Our Promoter is interested to the extent of their shareholding, the dividend declared in relation to such shareholding,
if any, by our Company. For further details in this regard, please refer chapter titled “Capital Structure” beginning
on page no. 58 of this Draft Prospectus.

Our Company has neither made any payments in cash or otherwise to our Promoter or to firms or companies in
which our Promoter is interested as Members, Directors or Promoter nor have our Promoter been offered any
inducements to become Directors or otherwise to become interested in any firm or company, in connection with the
promotion or formation of our Company otherwise than as stated ‘Annexure 32: Statement of Related Parties’
Transactions’ beginning on page no. 199 of the chapter titled ‘Financial Statements beginning on page no. 176 of
this Draft Prospectus and “Our Group Companies” beginning on page no. 154 of this Draft Prospectus.

Other Ventures of our Promoter of Our Company

Except as disclosed in the chapter titled *Our Promoter and Our Group Companies’ beginning on page no. 146 and
154 of this Draft Prospectus, there are no other ventures of our Promoter in which they have any other business
interests/other interests.

Payment or Benefit to Promoter of Our Company

Save and except as stated otherwise in ‘Annexure 32: Statement of Related Parties’ Transactions’ in the chapter
titled ‘Restated Financial Statement’ beginning on page no. 176 of this Draft Prospectus, no payment has been
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made or benefit given or is intended to be given to our Promoter in the three (3) years preceding the date of this
Draft Prospectus.

Related Party Transactions

For details of related party transactions entered into by our Promoter, members of our Promoter Group and our
Company, please refer to ‘Annexure 32: Statement of Related Parties’ Transactions’ on page no. 199 of the
chapter titled ‘Financial Statement’ beginning on page no. 176 of this Draft Prospectus.

Guarantees

Our Promoter(s) have given personal guarantees, respectively, towards financial facilities availed from Bankers of
our Company; therefore, they are interested to the extent of the said guarantees. For details, please refer to
‘Statement of Financial Indebtrness’ on page no. 207 of the chapter titled ‘Financial Statement beginning on page
no. 176 of this Draft Prospectus

Except as stated in the ‘Statement of Financial Indebtness’ on page no. 207 of the chapter titled ‘Financial
Statement beginning on page no. 176 of this Draft Prospectus, respectively, there are no material guarantees given
by the Promoter to third parties with respect to specified securities of the Company as on the date of this Draft
Prospectus.

Litigation details pertaining to our Promoter

For details of legal and regulatory proceedings involving our Promoter, please refer chapter titled “Outstanding
Litigation and Material Developments” beginning on page 211 of this Draft Prospectus.

OUR PROMOTER GROUP
In addition to the Promoter named above, the following natural persons are part of our Promoter Group:
1) Natural Persons who are part of the Promoter Group

As per Regulation 2(1) (pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the natural persons who are part of the Promoter
Group (due to their relationship with the Promoter), other than the Promoter, are as follows:

Relationship with Promoter Dr. Nithin Vitthalrao Thorave
Father Mr. Vithalrao Laxman Thorve
Mother Mrs. Shantabai Vithalrao Thorve
Spouse Mrs. Roshan Nitin Thorve
Brother Mr. Avinash Vithalrao Thorve

Mrs. Lata Vitthal Hande

Mrs. Kavita JagannathPathare
Son Mr. Haripreet Nitin Thorve
Ms. Akanksha Nitin Thorve

Sister

Daughter Ms. Abhilasha Nitin Thorve
Spouse’s Father Mr. Vishnu Waman Thakur
Spouse’s Mother Mrs. Vasanti Vishnu Thakur

Spouse’s Brother(s) -
Spouse’s Sister(s) -

2) As per Regulation 2(1) (pp) (iv) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, Companies/ Corporate Entities,
Firms, Proprietorships and HUFs which form part of our Promoter Group are as follows:

As per the extent of information available in relation to our Promoter group, there are no other companies, firms,

proprietorships and HUF’s forming part of our Promoter Group as on date of this Draft Prospectus except mentioned
below: -
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Sr. No. Name of the Promoter Entities/Company
1. San Trica Realtors Private Limited
2. Techbuilt Infrastructure and Developers Private Limited
3. Tech Art Infrastructure Private Limited
4. Thorve Patil And Abrol Constructions Private Limited
5. Dr. Nitin V. Thorve Patil Infras And Properties Private Limited
6. Origin Associates Private Limited
7. Junnar Sugars Limited
8. Virar Townships Private Limited
9. Thorve Patil Realtors Private Limited
10. Arnala Beach Resort
11. Dr. Nitin Thorve (Proprietorship Firm)

Details of Common Pursuits between our Company and Our Promoter Group Companies/ Entities:

As on the date of this Draft Prospectus, our Promoter is also a Promoter/ Director/ Partner/ Proprietor of our Group
Companies/ Entities as listed in the section “Our Group Companies” which are not engage in the similar business of
our Company and have objects similar to that of our Company’s business.

Further, as on the date of filing this Draft Prospectus, we do not have any non-compete agreement/arrangement with
any of our Group Entities, currently. Such a conflict of interest may have adverse effect on our business and growth.
We shall adopt the necessary procedures and practices as permitted by law to address any conflict situations, as and
when they may arise.

For details of related party transactions with our Promoter and Promoter Group Companies/ Entities, please refer
‘Annexure 32: Statement of 